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CORPORATE INFORMATION
A==
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REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.0. Box 2681

Grand Cayman

KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Room 411, 4/F, Building 2
Jianye Office Building

No. 19 Dirun Road
Zhengdong New District
Zhengzhou, Henan Province
PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Room 7708B, 77/F

International Commerce Center

No. 1 Austin Road West

Kowloon

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen'’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKS
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

nNoEN

LEGAL ADVISERS EREER

As to Hong Kong Law BEREBLE

Hogan Lovells EoBEEMT

As to Cayman Islands Law BAREEREEE

Conyers Dill & Pearman FRIERFEEM BT
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR SRR 23 4]
PricewaterhouseCoopers EERUKBEETRIES AT
Certified Public Accountants HEDEED

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor AL R T a5 B B2 1% AT
WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY NG P
www.ccnewlife.com.cn www.ccnewlife.com.cn
SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION RRER

Share listing 3 L

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of KRR EBEEZZBRAFR
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited W sn)

Ordinary Shares (as at 31 December 2022) ZER(R2022F12831H)
Shares outstanding: 1,278,726,000 shares BEITRS 1 1,278,726,000 f%
Nominal value: HK$0.01 per share EfE : §/%0.01%87T
INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT REEBFEBESTN
Email address: ir@ccnewlife.com.cn BE U : ir@ccnewlife.com.cn
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Central China New Life Limited (hereinafter referred to as “CCNL”
or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries hereinafter
referred to as the "Group”, stock code: 9983.HK) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16 October 2018 as an
exempt company with limited liability, the shares of which were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 15 May 2020 (the “Listing
Date”). On 7 September 2020, CCNL was included as a
constituent in Hang Seng Composite Index and Stock Connect
Southbound. On 19 April 2021, CCNL was included as a
constituent in the Hang Seng Property Service and Management
Index.

We are the largest property management service provider in
central China region (being a geographical region that covers the
central area of China, including the provinces of Henan, Hubei,
Hunan, Jiangxi, Shanxi and Anhui) by total gross floor area
("GFA") under management as of 31 December 2022 and total
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022. Throughout more
than two decades of operating history, we have significantly
grown our business and operations. We believe our prospects
and the pursuit of better living experience and lifestyle by the
people in central China are inseparable. We believe our well
established operating history affords us a trusted and reputable
brand which in turn enables us to continue to offer a full
spectrum of services that can satisfy our customers’ diverse
needs and effectively improve their living quality.

As of 31 December 2022, our property management and value-
added services covered all 18 prefecture-level cities (and also
100 of the 102 county-level cities) in Henan as well as outside
Henan Province (including 7 provinces of Shaanxi, Shanxi, Hebei,
Anhui, Hubei, Xinjiang and Hainan), and we served more than 2.4
million property owners and residents in 883 properties. We
manage a diverse portfolio of properties, including residential
properties, shopping malls, cultural tourism complexes,
commercial apartments, office buildings, schools, hospitals, city
services, factories, parks and properties of government agencies.
We were among the Top 100 Property Management Companies
in the PRC for two consecutive years, ranking 11th in 2022.

We focus on serving our customers’ diverse needs and enriching
the list of goods and services within the geographic areas which
we cover: where they stay, where they travel, what they eat and
how they relax. We believe our competitive edge is the extensive
network of lifestyle services we offer, coupled with our deep
understanding of market demands and our capabilities in data
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CORPORATE PROFILE
A

analytics. Through frequent interactions with our customers, we
have gained a deep understanding of customer needs and
preferences. Combined with our strong resource consolidation,
online-to-offline synergy and cross selling capabilities, we are
able to identify and deliver desirable services and products within
our network and constantly refine our offering to better satisfy
customer needs. By providing these services, we are able to
aggregate significant consumer information which helps us cater
to our customers with more tailor-made services.

Over the years, we have received numerous awards in
recognition of our service quality. According to the research
results of 2022 China Top 100 Property Management Companies
issued by China Index Academy (R #§#ff3thz) and China Real
Estate TOP10 Research (FREIE#ETOP10H1554H), we ranked
11th on the list of “2022 China Top 100 Property Management
companies (20227 Bl 2 ik 7% & 3R 2%)". Furthermore,
according to the “"Research Results on China’s Listed Real Estate
companies in 2022 (2022 B E#E QB KE)"
published by China Enterprise Evaluation Association, Institute of
Real Estate Studies and Beijing China Index Academy as the
researchers and organisers, in light of our good performance in
the capital market, we were awarded the “2022 China TOP10
Listed Property Management Companies by Comprehensive
Strength (202274 ¥ 2 k7% = A Rl4RE B ITOP10)". At the
"2022 China Real Estate Big Data Annual Conference cum 2023
China Real Estate Market Trend Report” organized by Beijing
China Index Academy and hosted by China Real Estate Index
System and China Property Service Index System, We were
awarded “2022 Central China Leading Company in Property
Management Market Position (TOP1) (20227 &8 [& 15 1 £ R 75 35
AL ZE S EE(TOP1))” and “2022 Henan Province Top 10
Companies in Property Management Market Position (TOP1)
(2022)71 F & M ZE BRI T 3 AL 1058 1 F(TOP1))" by virtue of our
steady performance in the central China over the years. We were
awarded the “Most Valuable Property Management Company (&
AEEMERR)" at the “2022 Global Investment Trends Forum
cum the 6th Golden Hong Kong Stock Awards Ceremony” jointly
organised by Zhitongcaijing (& @81 4%), Flush Finance ([RI{EIEEF
#%) and China Galaxy Securities.

We believe our three main business segments, namely property
management and value-added services, lifestyle services and
commercial property management and consultation services,
echo with the Group’s core value, which is to root in central
China and confer benefit on the people.

6 Central China New Life Limited / 2022 Annual Report

KEREFETRATE - BERPIRRNERE
B BREERTHREINIEEERS - HFIERN
AR I A PR B AR R AN B PR B IR TS e
Em o A TESRERPMREEORERERAE
iR R TP FE K BB REZFRS - M
ERARAAREHEEEN EtMAREPREHE
% JE il AR5

ZER BANREEEEEST - BREAE
Bz £ HR B 55 #h 22 TOP10 i 78 48 3% 17 /9 2022 71 B 47
ERBARBEREKRR - BMIRET2022FEY
¥RBEARCEBSEEINSG - I BRIEFAPEH
TEFERE FEABEEHMEMTEHN - LRFR
1B 15 BT B FE Be A7 55 ¥ /9 [2022 7 B = b 2=
ETARMAEKR] EM - BPIREERATIZHR
FRE - RE2022FBAMERE LT ARLGE
HITOP10] » T HIL RA 18 BTt 7ubr =
W PEEMERSES  PEMERBEHE
AR [ 2022 0 B = i BE K BUR F & B 2023
BEHEMSEEREE] L BIVREZFIUR
TP EF 0 [2 FR L AR T A 3R 30 48 & 12022 3 [ 15
Y1) 2 AR 7% T 35 #6778 o 1 2 (TOP1) ] ~ [20227 5
BYERETISHA 1082 TOP) ] - £HER
B - RTEIEEAAE - R BRI BHE S WD
[2022 F 2B IR A BEmEEE N ERBRBRA
Bl L BRMEE [ ZABEWERR] -

BPRA  BRAIN=EZ2X% 0 (AYEERE
MIBERT - ARG EEXEEEEREHR
B EMRETR - &Red] - SEZLEE
THFFE -



MAJOR EVENTS
==L

kP MARCH —H

Henan Aiou Electronic Technology Co., Ltd. (“Aiou Electronics”), a subsidiary of CCNL, launched a province-wide
franchising strategy of the “Ailaidian” in March to achieve full coverage in 18 cities in Henan Province by 2022. A total of
212 projects were served, covering scenarios including residential properties, commercial properties and business
parks, etc. The total number of households served exceeded 300,000 and the total number of charging users reached
130,000. The retention rate of monthly active users hit 70%, higher than the industry average.

A BEMEFEETIRANREFRRBERAR ([ XERE] XN RE] MEBZE MBS ERE  2022F BRI EE
1BEMTEEES 5%#)1&77%2121!155 BRIREE BE - PFRREES  REBZLFEEINE  7BAFLA
HEBE13E - AP AERBEEREDT70% - BEEIBRBITEFIIKF -

Henan Central China New Life Agricultural Development Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of CCNL, signed a strategic agreement
with Huangzhuang Town, Song County, in March on the village operation of the Sanhe Painting Village of Huangzhuang
Town, providing a turnkey solution, including overall planning, design, layout planning, construction supervision,
investment promotion and operation.
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MAJOR EVENTS
N5

17’9 APRIL [UH

The "Community Upgrading” campaign was initiated in April. Starting from micro scenarios of property owners’ interest,
the Group continued to upgrade various work streams, such as concierge, maintenance, cleaning, greening and
housekeeping with a view to building sustainable and evolving living environment by means of technology and
digitalization. The upgrading of micro scenarios makes property owners' life convenient and enhances their sense of
happiness and comfort.

AR BB EREE]TH AEEREIRAON/NMNEGRHE M RR - BB EXFTRFIITIE
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MAJOR EVENTS
==L

h1:P» JUNE 71 H

Henan Central China Property Management Co., Ltd. (“Central China Property Management”), a subsidiary of CCNL, was
certified to the GB/T 15496 (enterprise standards) in June. So far, Central China Property Management has been certified
to ten standards, including the ISO 9001 (quality), ISO 14001 (environment), ISO 45001 (occupational health and safety),
ISO/IEC 27001/27002 (information security), SA 8000 (social accountability), ISO 50001 (energy), SB/T 10595 (cleaning and
sanitation services), GB/T 31950 (corporate integrity), GB/T 27922 (aftersales services) and GB/T 15496 (enterprise
standards), thus further improving its standardisation system.

6 BEMAEZETNTERENEERERAR([EEMED @B [GB/T 15496 ((RXEFH) | RE - BEBA - #E
YIEBBAES [1S0 9001 (E=) * I1SO 14001 (3R3%) ~ 1SO 45001 (B # @R % 2) ~ ISO/IEC 27001/27002 (E 2L &) »
SA 8000 (#t & & {£) * 1SO 50001 (8&)R) + SB/T 10595 (B R IRE4AL & AR ) ~ GB/T 31950 ({2 {5) * GB/T 27922 (R M
F18) ~ GB/T 15496 (ZERE) | TAM [ T2 BERFE £ — T RS ETEERER -
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MAJOR EVENTS
A5

Central China Car Life launch event & investment promotion meeting was successfully held at Le Méridien Zhengzhou
in June with the theme of "CCNL Synergy Empowers Communities”. The business was launched in Zhengzhou,
Dengfeng and Shanggiu. Three physical stores were put into operation, namely the Zhengzhou City Garden store,
Jianlong authorised store and Headquarters Port store, where one-stop premium car services are provided for users,
including car washing, use, maintenance and play.

6A  BEBEATEHBEEHEN S [HREE Bt R | ERENEBEKINEIT o BEBEETEXBEAEZHMEN -
ZH - AmEEMT  AREEATIEEE  BHRERES RAEANEEIRE TS WERERESR /B
REAPRMEASE AT B  DE—UASRENTBRE -

| gg%s?’%%ﬁg

ERAL IRASHES

Cuisine Henan Foodcourt in Luyi was officially opened on 1 June. Located at the Feiyuxia Water Park, East Yingbin
Avenue, the foodcourt covers an area of more than 2,500 sg.m.. Over 200 Henan specialty snacks and traditional Henan
cuisine dishes are available.

6ATHE BERREBEEFAHAE BEURRADERBERAMRK LR - BLEEE2500%F 5K - #5200
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MAJOR EVENTS

A8

“Jianye+" launched “Jianye+618 Shopping Festival” from 1 to 18 June. The event hit a GMV of RMB 75 million with more
than 1,000 brands involved and over 11,000 products on discount, reaching over 3.5 million users, and serving more
than 200,000 users and 100,000 property owners. The Jianye service system was also mobilised to provide more than
100 Jianye service items so as to fulfil property owners' pursuit of quality life in multiple dimensions.

6A1E-18H " [EE+]HEBRT [BF+618EEIR] TBES - RXFBTHNTFERXHEBFETS00E AR - 268
mmh# 1,000+ 18 - JEENEE MR 11,000+ 5 - BEEAF350& + - RIEAFL 208+ MBEE 108+ - BRI ARBERE
ZHEMEREENmMmBEENE o

R K EAR100+ BEFEREER

The Outstanding Agriculture and Forestry Talent Training Centre jointly sponsored by Central China Yichuan Green
House and Henan University of Science and Technology was initiated on 15 June. The parties have reached in-depth
agreement on key agendas, including construction of a teaching and internship base, joint project application,
application of scientific research and talent recruitment.
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MAJOR EVENTS
N5

Henan Province announced the first batch of recommended camping sites on 18 June. Yanling Green House Magnolia
RV Camping Site, Zhoukou Green House Starry Sky Camping Site and Yichuan Green House Starry Camping Site were

included on the list, all of which became ideal destinations for camping enthusiasts and families in Henan Province.
6R18H M AMERBREHEERE BREEXGFECENMIWIEFERLH ANEXGCEMETR S - F
NEEZEEMETE FHREBRCHAEEE  KRTEEARETHERTELENBEER
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MAJOR EVENTS
==L

Yichuan Green House was named “Educational Tourism Demonstration Base of Yichuan County” by the Yichuan county
on 28 June. Yichuan Green House will focus on the educational tourism, promote the development of educational
tourism and resource utilisation in Yichuan, further build a better platform for Yichuan educational tourism, help
Yichuan become a hit educational tourism brand, and bring its educational tourism to next level.
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MAJOR EVENTS
N5

07 RIVINGaw=

Central China Car Life in Dengfeng (i.e. Jianlong authorised store) was officially open in July.
7R BREEAREHE(REAEEHREE) EXME-

In collaboration with the Group’s service system, “Jianye+" organised a series of “Wake up Summer” livestreaming
events in July and August, through which Cuisine Henan Foodcourts and Green Houses were presented with rural
scenery, gourmet and virtual touring. Premium products and scenery of the large service system were fully showcased,
attracting more than 25,000 views and over 190,000 likes.
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MAJOR EVENTS
==L

1P AUGUST /\H

Central China Car Life in Shanggiu (i.e. Headguarters Port store) was officially opened in August.
8H  EEBAFEFRBPBEEEAFE -

g iy Bl
|

Cuisine Henan Foodcourts Dining Culture Co., Ltd. (“Cuisine Henan Foodcourts”), a subsidiary of CCNL, signed an
agreement with Shishangnianhua in Luohe on 9 August to supply catering services for the agricultural complex. The
foodcourt covers an area of over 5,000 sg.m. with a dining capacity of 5,000 people.

BHIH  BEHMEFZE T ITHEERREBNXLBRAR([BEARE D IBEFNENZTRBFEL - REELS
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Jiang Ling, Member of the Standing Committee of CPC Henan Provincial Committee and Secretary of CPC Luoyang
committee, He Wei, Member of the Standing Committee and Director of Organization Department of CPC Luoyang
Committee, and other officials paid a visit to Yichuan Green House in the afternoon of 11 August. They acknowledged
efforts and outcomes of Yichuan Green House in boosting rural tourism, educational wild tour and modern agricultural
development.
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MAJOR EVENTS
N5

As listed by the Science and Technology Department of Henan Province on 15 August, Hebi Green House was included
into the fifth batch of "Henan Provincial Agricultural Makerspaces”. Since its operation, Hebi Green House has been
fitting itself into Hebi Urban-Rural Integration Demonstration Zone. Hebi Green House works with investment promaotion
entities to focus on innovation and entrepreneurship, and promotes the integrated development of primary, secondary
and tertiary industries in the Demonstration Zone. Meanwhile, online and offline services are combined to work on
policies and financial support, focus on development of new agricultural technologies, products and business formats,
mobilise farmers in the area to make innovation and start up businesses, and speed up exploration of innovation and
entrepreneurship examples for farmers to follow.

8A15H IR THARERMEAT  BEEEFCEMNEFAMTEELEEARIHEE - BIEEIANK - BEEFEHE
e TFBASRENA B RERENNECRE TS  EEMEREFURIFEERER  HETEHEEN
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The strategic partnership signing ceremony between People’s Government of Huojia County and Cuisine Henan
Foodcourts was successfully concluded on 24 August. Cuisine Henan Foodcourts was contracted to manage the
planning, design, investment promotion and operation of the Huojia Xiejie Urban Renewal Project. It's the first urban
renewal project that Cuisine Henan Foodcourts was commissioned to plan and operate. Featured blocks and Cuisine
Henan Foodcourts will be built to empower urban renewal with gourmet and folk culture.

8H24R  ERZARBNEZERREHBESEZNENERRN BEAREKAEZ [BEZERENMERER]
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MAJOR EVENTS
==L

1)) SEPTEMBER /15

“Jianye+" and Central China Property Management collaborated in a livestreaming event titled “Origin Tracing of
Yangcheng Lake Crab” on 28 September. The farming base and crab fishing were live, attracting more than 50,000
views and over 100,000 likes.
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MAJOR EVENTS
N5

«k NOVEMBER +—H

Aiou Electronic dedicated its efforts to building "Central China 85 Comfortable Home” and completed a new strategic
upgrading of scenarios and brand, ushering into a new model of one-stop customised smart home in November. Joint
rollout was launched in Zhengzhou, Xinxiang, Puyang, Nanyang and Shanggiu, covering more than 30 building
complexes.

1MA - XEEEENITER [RESSEFTFHEK ] THRESRMENEHEMAR AU EFHEERNOIER - &
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The steering committee office of the Chinese Farmers' Harvest Festival announced 100 featured events of the festival
on 3 November. The village cooking carnival hosted by Yichun Green House was included.
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“Jianye+" organised the “Heart-warming Double 11" event from 1 to 11 November, reaching a total of more than 2.5
million users and serving more than 150,000 property owners. During the event, property owners enjoyed our special
services of agriculture and hotels, housekeeping services such as heating pipe cleaning and household cleaning,
decoration services such as home furnishing and home appliances, and lifestyle products such as cosmetics and
personal care, fresh fruits and vegetables, and food and supplies.

MATE-MB  TEEX+]RERITERLEN]ES  EHHEBERL20E8+ REEXT 158+ FHHH - XF=X
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Aiou Electronic launched a photovoltaic project in December, continued to promote “smart energy + Internet” in the
deepening of the business of green power supply, and worked actively on carbon peaking and neutrality. In line with the
national strategy of rural revitalization, Aiou Electronic has been fully committed to expanding distributed photovoltaic
business. Given rich variety of rooftop scenarios in the rural area, we are rolling out a new model of operating lease for
photovoltaic power plants to facilitate the development of low-carbon intelligent counties.

128 NEERHERRIBEIE  HEHE[SE28RR+EHE] TEBERITENESR L  BREHEREE -2
JERRBIIREEE 20 ARSHANRES  BHENEREEENERAGS  HELKREHLCEEHEERES -
BRI S LSRR o

“Jianye+" ensures 24/7 support for property owners. In 2022, the platform users registered more than 4.8 million
signings in for collection of living interests and property owner entitlements; 354,465 express couriers were delivered.
There were 328,498 neighbour sharing and 103,574 customer support calls in total; over 13,000 shots in livestreaming
to sell products with Jianye characteristics.
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Most popular “Jianye+" services among property owners in 2022
2022 FEHREEFEDN [EE+] TR RS
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Happy Times activities were organised to create loving neighbourhoods, such as the spring photography contest, “Starry
Book Corner” public welfare program, summer bubble festival, contingent rose stations, growth summer camp, weight
losing campaign, and crafts festival among other activities. A total of 4,326 activities were held in 2022 with over 529,000
participants, through which harmonious and loving neighbourhoods were kept.
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Faced with complex situation and constantly evolving COVID-19 prevention and control policies in 2022, Central China
Property Management stood firmly in the frontline of over 800 projects under management and ensured living
necessities of 2.4 million property owners. While the epidemic recurred, Central China Property Management launched
“Helping Farmers” campaign across the communities under management so as to ensure daily supplies of property
owners and deal with unsaleable local vegetables. Fresh quality vegetables were purchased from farmers and given to
property owners for free to pass on love and hope. Central China Property Management delivered 34 “Helping Farmers”
events in 2022, and sold 545,000 kilograms of cabbages, radishes, celeries, leeks and other agricultural products.
2022 MEHEMEEMNTE BENMERR  BEVEARKBETASOLZEATEBRENNE—F  2EHRE
Q0BXEETMEFENT - RBREH  AREXXTHBEEWEHRE  BRMHTERBIOFENE  BEVECE/E
EERREIZOMER]ITE MEPKBELENERY 2BEXGET  BELONFEEELGET —EA - 20224F
BEVEAERREODPERARDEEIAES  BIHEOX #F X AESEERIOE -
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e The 2022 Global Investment Trends Forum & Sixth Golden Hong
%l \’E Kong Stocks Awards Ceremony, co-organised by zhitongcaijing,
ﬁ%&ﬁﬁg&*l’ Tonghuashuncaijing, and China Galaxy Securities, was held on 11
@ nune | GoRENE | O +ESAENCGS January 2022 in Shenzhen. CCNL was named the “Most Valuable
Property Management Company”.
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The 2021 Webinar and Press Conference on Research Results of Service Power of Property Management Companies in
Henan Province, jointly organised by the CRIC China, China Property Management Research Institution (CPMRI), and
E-house Real Estate Research Institute, was successfully convened on 19 January 2022. According to research results
about property management companies in Henan Province in 2021 announced by CRIC China at the meeting, Central
China Property Management won titles including “No.1 of Top 30 Service Power of Property Management Companies in
Henan Province in 2021, “No.1 of Top 3 Service Power of Housing Property Management Companies in Henan Province
in 2021" and “No.1 of Top 3 Service Power of Property Management Companies in Zzhengzhou in 2021".The Kai Xuan
Plaza in Zhengzhou was named the “Benchmark Project of Service Power of Office Building Property Management
Companies in Henan Province in 2021”, and Sky Mansion in Zhengzhou was named the “Benchmark Project of Service
Power of Housing Property Management Companies in Henan Province in 2021".

2022F 1198 r AR mMEYE - Wiy - SEEMEMIIE S RIE (2021 B E MERS DT RG L
AEEMG KB - HEMEEE « RMmEM2021 FE N mREYECEMRTATER  BEMELE
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BEEWHERE HERIER] -

BENEIERAT/ B —FERH 23



AWARDS AND HONOURS
18 B R

The 2022 China Beautiful Life Brand Plan launch event was held on 15 March, at which the list of “Top 10 Satisfactory
Property Management Companies in Zhengzhou in 2022" was announced, and Central China Property Management
was included.

3A158 2022/ BIE T A MERTEIE M E L - [2022F EMMERBHEE TR | REBE - ZEWERE
e

The “2022 Top 100 Property Management Companies in China”, hosted by China Index Academy and China Real Estate
Top 10 Research Group, was released on 26 April. The research group made a full and objective assessment of
companies’ comprehensive strength from five aspects, namely business size, operational efficiency, service quality,
growth potential, and social responsibility. Thanks to good market performance in central China for years, Central China
Property Management was ranked 11th in the "2022 Top 100 Property Management Companies in China”, and named
“2022 China Top 10 Property Management Companies in terms of Business Size” and “2022 China Leading Property
Management Companies in terms of Growth Potential”. The Honour Mansion in Luoyang managed by Central China
Property Management was named the “Demonstration Base in China’s Property Management Service Industry in 2022",
and Chinoiserie Palace in Anyang and Sky Mansion in Shanggiu were named the “Five-star Property Management
Service Projects in China in 2022".

4R26H - BHRIEHER - PRFHETOPI0MFAE I A [2022F Y X RE B R FATAKR ] 3 o FFMAK
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The Press Conference on Research Results of “China’s Listed
Real Estate Companies in 2022", organised by the China
Enterprise Evaluation Association, Institute of Real Estate Studies
of Tsinghua University, and China Index Academy, was hosted on
20 May. Due to outstanding performance in the capital market,
CCNL was awarded the “2022 China TOP10 Listed Property
Management Companies in terms of Comprehensive Strength”
and “2022 China Excellent Listed Property Management Company
by Investment Value”.

5A208 BT BEICXFNERE FEABFEHENTAH - LR
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RIBIEBEEFLE] 828 -
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The Press Conference on Research Results of Real Estate Brand
Value in China & the 19th China Real Estate Brand Development
Summit and the 2022 China Real Estate Strategy Summit was
convened in Beijing on 15 September. Thanks to the good brand
image, one-of-a-kind competitive business model, and reputation
accumulated over the years in central China, CCNL won honours,
including “2022 China Specialized Operational Leading Brand of
Property Management Companies”, “2022 Brand of Property
Management Companies in Central China” and “2022 Property
Management Excellent Brand in Henan”.

9A15H  [2022F BIEHEmREEERAKXREMBSEE TN
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& The 2022 Sina Finance Overseas Investment Summit Forum,
\ hosted by Sina Finance with Securities Daily as a strategic
partner, opened on 23 September. In parallel, the 2022 Golden
Kirin Best Hong Kong and U.S. Listed Companies Awards was
o s grandly initiated. Thanks to excellent financial indicators and
comprehensive strength, CCNL won the 2022 Sina Finance Best
20228 RIME S BB ) )
ﬂféﬁﬁﬁ Hong Kong and U.S. Listed Companies Award for Most Growth
Potential.
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The 2022 China Real Estate Big Data Conference cum 2023 China Real Estate Market Trend Seminar, hosted by China
Index Academy and organised by CREIS and China Property Service Index System, was held in Beijing on 7 December
2022. With years of solid performance in central China, Central China Property Management won titles including the
"2022 Leading Property Management Companies in Central China in terms of Market Position” and “2022 Top 10
Property Management Companies in Henan Province in terms of Market Position (Top 1)".

202212 A7 8 - BAERPIEEBRMA TR T - HEFSMEREER - HEMERFEERFUAMR 2022+ B
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The 2022 Report on ESG Evaluation of Listed Property Management Companies in China was released at the
conference. CCNL was named the “2022 China Qutstanding Property Management Companies in terms of ESG Best
Practice”.
g B [2022 R B AR TS LT A FIESGORIFT IR o s | o BTG RE [2022 R I AR LT AR ESG EBRE
FhEE] o
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In February 2022, Henan One Family Network Technology Co.,
Ltd., a subsidiary of CCNL, was awarded “Top 50 Software and
Information Technology Enterprises in Service Industry in
Zhengzhou”; in September, it was approved to construct the
Zhengzhou Digital Community Engineering Technology Research
Centre.

20224F2 F - EEFAEIER TR — KRR AR A AR 8
N B RS SR BRFS X 25052 1 9 B - BALt@RE M
BB TRERMHTH D o

Aiou Electronic was named the “Top 50 Electronic Information
Enterprises & Software and Information Technology Enterprises
in Service Industry in Zhengzhou” and “2022 Asia Top 100
Intelligent Building Enterprises”.
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Appendix: Awards and Honours of Central China Property Management in 2022

B 1 EBERWK2022 FERE

No. Year Honour Awarded by Awarded to

o BREH KREEH IR ERE 1EE

1 January 2022 2021 Leading Entity for Property Management Central China Property
Fighting Epidemic Association of Zhengzhou Management

1 202241 A 2V FEMBEIEREE BNTHESERE EEYE
iz

2 January 2022 2021 Leading Entity for Property Management Central China Property
Flood Fighting and Rescue  Association of Zhengzhou Management

2 202241 A 202V EEVUARRCEE ENTHEERHE BEME
iz

3 January 2022 2021 Model of Greening Property Management Central China Property
Maintenance for Property Association of Zhengzhou Management
Management in
Zhengzhou

3 202241 A 202V FEEBMTYERE BINTHEEERHE EEWE
BB EIFIR

4 January 2022 2021 Qutstanding Member  Property Management Central China Property
of Property Management Association of Zhengzhou Management
Enterprises

4 20224 1A 02 FEMERBEFE DINTHEERHE EEME
BEfy

5 January 2022 2021 Benchmark Project CRIC China, China Property  Kai Xuan Plaza, Zhengzhou
of Service Power of Office Management Research
Building Property Institution and E-house
Management Companies Real Estate Research
in Henan Province Institute

5 2022 1A 202V MERTEMER =MmWE - YR - N - e E S
BHRRIER 58 B EHR T

6 January 2022 2021 Benchmark Project CRIC China, China Property  Sky Mansion, Zhengzhou
of Service Power of Management Research
Housing Property Institution and E-house
Management Companies Real Estate Research
in Henan Province Institute

6 202241 A 22V EAEEMERDE =mmDE - PYHE - PN - EEREE
NiEIRIEE SIEEHEMRRKR

7 January 2022 2021 Five-Star Property Xinyang Bureau of Housing  Xinyang Branch
Management Enterprise and Urban-Rural

Development

7 202241 H 201K ETHhER] WE E5STE B M 2SR B RN
PR {2
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No. Year Honour Awarded by Awarded to
i BREH REEE TREHAE EHERE HA
8 January 2022 Leading Enterprise Property Management Kaifeng Branch
Association of Kaifeng
8 2022 %1 A S bR RHTYEERHE ESPaWNC]
9 January 2022 Honest Enterprise Property Management Kaifeng Branch
Association of Kaifeng
9 202241 A EA R FEmYEERRE EESSA/NC]
10 January 2022 2021 Outstanding Property Management Xihe Mansion, Kaifeng
Apartment Complex Association of Kaifeng;
Management Company for ~ Property Management
Epidemic Prevention and Centre of Kaifeng
Control in Property
Management Industry in
Kaifeng
10 202241 A VFERETYMEEIR  HEMDESERERE  HEERAE
TEREVGZEESDED TmEERPL
&
11 January 2022 2021 Outstanding Property Management Chrysanthemum Garden,
Apartment Complex Association of Kaifeng; Kaifeng
Management Company for ~ Property Management
Epidemic Prevention and Centre of Kaifeng
Control in Property
Management Industry in
Kaifeng
" 202241 A 2V FERETYMEEIE HRETDESEDERE HAHEEE
TEREHEEREYE) THRERDL
&
12 January 2022 Garden Apartment Henan Provincial Jianye City, Yucheng
Complex in Henan Department of Housing
Province and Urban-Rural
Development
12 202241 A A A BN R TG EEMEAERE R R FE K
13 January 2022 Garden Apartment Henan Provincial Spring Time, Qinyang
Complex in Henan Department of Housing
Province and Urban-Rural
Development
13 202241 A A BN NR MREEEEMRSERE B ERE
14 January 2022 Garden Apartment Henan Provincial Forest Peninsula, Xinye
Complex in Henan Department of Housing
Province and Urban-Rural
Development
14 202241 A RS B NR RS ERMMAERE HERMES
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No. Year Honour Awarded by Awarded to

i BREH REEE TREHE ERHE 1EE

15 January 2022 2021 Clean Apartment Henan Provincial Patriotic King of the City, Jiaozuo
Complex in Henan Health Committee
Province

15 2022 %1 A 1 FENEEHERR EEAEEFEEDHEE EESHEEH
NE@ =

16 January 2022 Garden Apartment Henan Provincial Forest Peninsula, Xiuwu,
Complex in Henan Department of Housing Jiaozuo
Province and Urban-Rural

Development

16 202241 A RS E R NR AEBEEEMMLERE EEERRNES

17 February 2022 2021 Outstanding Property Management Luoyang Branch
Enterprise in Property Association of Luoyang
Management Industry in
Luoyang

17 202242 A 2V FERETMERE  RETOEEERE -3 PN
THEERDE

18 February 2022~ Benchmark Project of CRIC China Sky Mansion, Zhengzhou
Service Power of Housing
Property Management
Companies in Henan
Province

18 202242 A AEBAEEMERBIE =ZRhBE EBM R EE
2I5H

19 February 2022  Garden Apartment Office of Jiaozuo Spring Time, Wenxian County,
Ccomplex in Jiaozuo Afforestation Committee Jiaozuo

19 202242 A EEMEMN R BIETHRLEZEERAE HEREERE

20 February 2022  Garden Apartment Office of Jiaozuo King of the City, Jiaozuo
complex in Jiaozuo Afforestation Committee

20 20222 A EETRN DR BIEMHLEZESMAE FIES B F

21 February 2022  Leading Entity for Fighting People’s Government of Linzhou Liuhe Property
Epidemic in Linzhou Linzhou Management Co., Ltd.

21 202242 3 MNTREHFBREEE  AMTARRAS MR EMERBERAF
v

22 March 2022 2021 Outstanding Puyang Real Estate Affairs Puyang Branch
Enterprise in Property Centre
Management Industry

22 20224 3 A 02 FEMERBESE EETRMBESHR L i PN
¥
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No. Year Honour Awarded by Awarded to
i BREH REEE TREHAE EHERE HA
23 March 2022 2021 Ethical, Honest and Zhumadian Commission Zhumadian Branch
Law-abiding Enterprise for Guiding Cultural and
Ethical Progress,
Zhumadian Consumers
Association
23 202263 A 02V FEEXHABE - E BEFETREXHERRE BEEHQA
REMERE BLREgNAE HER
TEBEHE
24 April 2022 Five-star Property China Index Academy Chinoiserie Palace, Anyang
Management Service
Projects in China in 2022
24 2022 % 4 A 202FBERERYFERT  ARPEEERMHARER  RGHRF
THH
25 April 2022 Five-star Property China Index Academy Sky Mansion, Shanggiu
Management Service
Projects in China in 2022
25 20224 4 A 202 Bl HEAMERS  ERPEESRNHARE  REERE
EH
26 April 2022 Demonstration Base in China Index Academy Honour Mansion, Luoyang
China's Property
Management Service
Industry in 2022
26 20224 4 A 2022 EIMERBITESR RPEEERNHARE REEN
RS
27 April 2022 Demonstration Base in China Index Academy Honour Mansion, Luoyang
China's Property
Management Service
Industry in 2022
27 2022F 4 A 2022 BEIMERBITESR ERPEBEESRNHARE REEN
FEHD
28 June 2022 Garden Apartment Henan Provincial Sky Mansion, Zhengzhou
Complex in Henan Department of Housing
Province and Urban-Rural
Development
28 20224 6 A S BN NE EEEREMMAERE  EMNRE
29 June 2022 2022 Qutstanding Property  Pingdingshan Real Estate Osmanthus Garden,
Management Enterprise Affairs Centre Pingdingshan
for Epidemic Prevention
and Control during
Lockdown
29 2022 6 A 2022 FHIEHFZEEE FRLUTEEEBRESR  FIELUEE
TERFMERBERE L
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No. Year Honour Awarded by Awarded to

FaR ERFEH REELW TR EERE HA

30 June 2022 2022 Garden Apartment Zhumadian Bureau of Jianye City, Queshan,
Complex in Zhumadian Urban Management Zhumadian

30 2022 6 A EESEm 2022 FAREMN  BESETHTERR B S ML
/J\E

31 June 2022 2022 Garden Apartment Zhumadian Bureau of Newtown Peninsula,
Complex in Zhumadian Urban Management Zhumadian

31 2022 6 H HREM2022FmAERK BHEEMRTERR HEEFRYS
N

32 June 2022 2022 Garden Unit in Zhumadian Bureau of Central Garden, Shangcai,
Zhumadian Urban Management Zhumadian

32 2022 6 H HREM2022FmAEKR BEEMRTERR HEE ARG
By

33 June 2022 2022 Garden Unit in Zhumadian Bureau of Jianye City, Shangcai,
Zhumadian Urban Management Zhumadian

33 2022F 6 A ELREM 2022 mARENR BEETHHTERR BTG R 2
B

34 July 2022 2021 Leading Entity for Luohe Bureau of Housing Luohe Branch
Cultural and Ethical and Urban-Rural
Progress in Housing and Development
Urban Development
System of Luohe

34 202247 A 202V FRDBATERERA RN MR R ESTIEA /NG
B TIES#E BN

35 July 2022 Leading Property Office of Xuchang Bureau Chinoiserie Palace, Xuchang
Management Enterprise of Housing and Urban-
for Epidemic Prevention Rural Development
and Control

35 20227 H MR EZ B EE FFEMEE AR R FFE AT
HEE WAE

36 August 2022 Demonstration Project for Zhoukou Bureau of China Villa, Shangshui
Housing Property Housing and Urban-Rural
Management Services in Development
Zhoukou

36 2022 8 H BAEmYEREEEME BB mEEMSAERR EESCE AR
THIAE

37 August 2022 Outstanding Project for Zhoukou Bureau of Jianye City, Xihua
Housing Property Housing and Urban-Rural
Management Services in Development
Zhoukou

37 20228 H AEmYERBEEME AR mEE Mk ER R [EES =]
BFHIEE
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Fi5 BRFH REER TREHAE EREE 1EE
38 August 2022 Demonstration Project for Zhoukou Bureau of Spring Time, Xiangcheng
Housing Property Housing and Urban-Rural
Management Services in Development
Zhoukou
38 2022 8 A AOmmERBEEME BAOMEEMHBERER  BEEEXRE
TEIEE
39 August 2022 2022 Top 10 Honest Luoyang Bureau of Luoyang branch
Construction Enterprises Housing and Urban-Rural
in Luoyang Development
39 20224 8 A 2022 &R RSB T1E REMEEBSERE 3 A l/NG]
EA RS
40 2022 2022 Excellent Apartment Property Management Osmanthus Garden, Yuzhou
complex Association of Xuchang
40 2022 2022 FBEFET R FETMYEEERE BMEEEE
41 December 2022 Outstanding Property Management Central China Property
2022 Enterprise in Property Association of Henan Management
Management Industry Province
a1 20212 A 02 EMERBITER  EEDEERHE BEWE
EE
42 December 2022 Qutstanding Property Management Central China Property
2022 Enterprise in Property Association of Henan Management
Management Industry Province
42 202212 A 0NFEMERBITEE  EEDERERGE BEEMHE
EE
43 December 2022 Outstanding Member  Property Management Central China Property
2022 of Property Management Association of Zhengzhou Management
Enterprises
43 202212 A FEMEREEFE DINTHEREEHS BEDE
BB
44 December 2022 Leading Entity for Property Management Central China Property
2022 Fighting Epidemic Association of Zhengzhou Management
44 2022412 A 0FENBRIFREE HINTHEERHE BEWE
iz
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Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Central China
New Life Limited, | am pleased to present the annual results of
the Group and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group achieved a
full-year revenue of RMB3,148.1 million. Net profit for the year
ended 31 December 2022 reached RMB571.2 million.

After more than 40 years of exploration and development, the
property management industry ushered in a rapid development
cycle boosted by the ‘golden era’ for the real estate sector after
2000, and saw a 'listing window" driven by the capital market in
2014. The performance of the property management industry in
the initial stage of COVID-19 in 2020 pushed up its social value,
marking the start of its brightest moment. However, with the in-
depth correction of the real estate industry, the property
management sector saw new changes in the external
environment in 2021, when the old order began to collapse and
the new order was being built. The property management sector
began to enter a new development cycle. The year 2022, fraught
with changes, is a more challenging year for the entire property
management sector. The valuation of the property management
sector was adjusted due to the resurgence of COVID-19 in China,
continuous downward trend in the real estate sector, a liquidity
crisis facing property developers and so forth. The property
management industry was always struggling to develop amid
various market challenges while moving towards a more
independent development path from property developers.

Throughout the development cycle, the Group sought growth
with firm confidence and steadily stepped up its presence in the
market to cope with changes with changes. Despite the
challenges from internal and external environments, the Group
implemented measures to withstand the multiple external
pressures brought by the macroeconomic slowdown and the
downturn in the real estate industry.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to all
shareholders and investors for their trust and support for the
Group, and to all employees for their conscientious efforts and
dedication.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

At the beginning of 2022, the Group optimised its overall
structure from “five-level management” to “three-level
management”, which is conducive to flatter management and
operation and more efficient business development.
Intelligentisation and optimisation of headquarters’ functions
allowed the Group to further enhance the per capita
management efficiency and cut management fees. At the
business level, in view of scale-based market logic, the Group
took multiple measures to promote the high-quality growth in its
property management business. As an active response to market
competition, the Group deepened its presence in the field of
value-added services and sought coordinated development of
different types of businesses. The Group, with focus on satisfying
property owners' demand to increase their satisfaction,
constantly improved its service quality. Its quality services have
been recognised by property owners. Due to its reliable operation
and sound development, the Group was highly recognised by the
market and won multiple key awards in the industry, which has
driven up its brand value.

1. New Chapter for Market Expansion and Steady
Growth in Core Businesses
In the face of scale-based market logic, the Group took
multiple measures to promote the high-quality growth in its
property management business.

At the end of 2022, the Company's total area of contract
projects reached 271.5 million sg. m., the area of projects
under management reached 156.7 million sg. m., and the
area of reserve projects reached 114.8 million sg. m.
Among which, the area of new contract projects in 2022
was 34.7 million sg. m., and third-party outreach accounted
for 89.6%, further increasing the proportion of total contract
project outreach to 64.8%, representing an increase of 3.6
percentage points from 2021. The revenue from basic
property management, the core of the Group's property
management business, recorded a significant growth by
nearly 30% in 2022 from the same period of 2021.

In addition, the Group maintained a high level of dividend
distribution, continued its steady dividend payment for
shareholders. The total dividend proposed in 2022 reached
RMB460.0 million for up to 80%.
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Constant Innovation in Diverse Businesses and
Steady Development of All Operations

As an active response to market competition, the Group
has always sought coordinated development of different
types of businesses.

As far as lifestyle services are concerned, riding on “Jianye
+" platform, the Group focused on user service and value
creation and gave full play to the advantages of the
platform and its resources, striving to provide customers
and property owners with services without blind spots in
time, region and function. In 2022, the “Jianye +" platform
made breakthroughs and innovations, bringing new
experience to users with more three-dimensional services
and more innovative forms. As of 31 December 2022, the
"Jianye +" platform had a total of 8.1 million registered
users. From January to December 2022, the total turnover
was about RMB170.9 million. Via "Jianye + love to home on
18 June" activity and internal service system resources, the
Group launched featured service products, in a bid to meet
property owners’ need for quality life from multiple
dimensions. It reached 3.5 million-plus users. The “Awaken
summer” activity was broadcast live in Cuisine Henan
Foodcourts and Jianye Green Base, during which local
delicacies and the green base were displayed. The total
views exceeded 25,000 and the cumulative number of likes
was 190,000. The live stream of “Source tracing —
Yangcheng Lake hairy crabs” attracted 50,000-plus viewers.
The "Heart-warming Double 11" reached 2.5 million-plus
users and served 150,000-plus property owners.
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A new Cuisine Henan Foodcourts opened. With a total
operating area of over 2,500 sq. m., Cuisine Henan
Foodcourts in Luyi officially opened in June 2022, offering
more than 200 kinds of Henan snacks and traditional Henan
dishes. Cuisine Henan Foodcourts signed a contract in
August to open for business in Luohe Shi Shang Nian Hua
complex, providing catering service for the agricultural
complex. With a total operating area of over 5,000 sg. m., it
can accommodate 5,000 people. It undertook the planning,
design and operation business of the urban renewal project
in Xiejie, Huojia County in August. This signing marks the
first time that Cuisine Henan Foodcourts plans and
operates an urban renewal project. It empowered urban
renewal with food culture and folk culture in the form of
“characteristic street + Cuisine Henan Foodcourts”.

Aiou Electronic, a subsidiary of the Group, made every
effort to create “Jianye 8S cozy home”. It offers property
owners with new one-stop professional home decoration
and intelligent scenario services. As the innovation and
extension of the “Jianye +" service system, Central China
Car Life creates a happy life under all scenarios of
community business. With its debut at Le Méridien hotel,
Central China Car Life held its investment promotion
meeting in Zhengzhou, Dengfeng and Shanggiu in June
2022, and opened an outlet at Jianye City Garden in
Zhengzhou, an authorised outlet in Dengfeng and an outlet
in Headquarters Bay in Shanggiu. Focusing on car-related
service scenarios, it provides users with one-stop high-
standard car services, such as car washing, car use and car
maintenance.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

FIRHRS

BERKREBRAIE - 202F 68 - B¥KX
REEEEFAME  LEEEE2500%
Tk - B 200RE N EEENENER
BE-8A  IBFBEHNENREFEE B
BEFEEMEERS  PIEBLEEA
5,000% ¥ 75K + AI[RIBE A 495,000 A R F 5k
. RA - ERURE [ BEEENERTESR
BHEIWBRERT R BEELED  WRE
HRBERREBENREEE [WHES
BB UIEFeEHE+ZEAREME]ER
23 - AERXUEMERA UL B3 E 5

ak
Ae °©

REBE N ERHRIE N ITER [ E2 3 8SEF
BR| BEFREZF A BERERN
RESHIGERYG - BEBASIERY#
¥+ KRG ZABIFTALER - FTE R
BMERISSE THEREE - 202F6H - &
EEA R EEEEEN S EEENEEEK
TERTT - BIRTEENN - B 5 - EmEH™
FREEBMERE - EHRERESE -5
ERBEEEIRE ML - UERBRSS
SREDN RAPRMKE  FHE- - BH -
BN SEERRBERE

BENEIERAT/ B —FERH 37



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TR S

38

Jianye Green Base sold 516,000 fresh cut flowers and 42
tons of cherry tomatoes and other vegetables throughout
the year. It constantly pushed forward with innovative
projects. It entered into a rural operation strategy
agreement on a ‘town of sketching’ in Sanhe Village,
Huangzhuang with Songxian County. The Henan University
of Science and Technology — Yichuan Jianye excellent
agriculture and forestry talent education base has been
approved. Hebi Jianye Green Base was nominated for
inclusion on the Star Creation World (Xingchuang Tiandi) list
in Henan. Yichuan Jianye Green Base was named a study
and travel demonstration base. Jianye green bases in
Yanling, Zhoukou and Yichuan were among the first
recommended campsites in Henan. Yichuan Jianye Green
Base was added with new projects, in which the physical
fitness paradise and water slide were put into use.

Wholehearted Efforts on Upgrade, Continuous
Improvement in Service Quality

The Group initiated the “Jade carving in the spring breeze”
campaign in April 2022. The Group constantly performed
upgrade from guards of honour, maintenance, cleaning,
greening, housekeeping and so forth to create satisfactory
scenes for property owners, with an attempt to create a
living environment that can grow and evolve through
science and technology and digital intelligence. Central
China Property Management got certified to GB/T 15496
(enterprise standard) in June, in order to raise service
standards and constantly improve its standard systems. It
has been certified to ten standards, namely ISO
9001(quality), ISO 14001 (environment), 1ISO 45001
(occupational health and safety), ISO/IEC 27001/27002
(information security), SA 8000 (social responsibility), ISO
50001 (energy), SB/T 10595 (clean services), GB/T 31950
(enterprise integrity), GB/T 27922 (after-sales service of
commodity), and GB/T 15496 (enterprise standard).
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Setting a goal of comprehensively improving the quality of
community life of property owners, the Group frequently
organised high-quality community cultural activities named
Central China Happy Hours and created a differentiated,
quality and youthful community cultural system for
property owners from the perspective of “activities +
community + culture”, in a bid to meet their need for
spiritual life, create a harmonious neighbourhood
atmosphere, and build a humanistic community with love
and warmth. The activities include a spring photography
competition, Star Book Corner charity growth plan, a
summer bubble festival, an emergency rose station, a
growth camp, a fat reduction exercise and a time-to-shop
festival. In 2022, a total of 4,326 activities of Central China
Happy Hours were held, with more than 529,000
participants. Moreover, relying on the “Jianye +" platform
online, the Group offered uninterrupted services throughout
the year to satisfy property owners’ living needs. In 2022,
“Jianye +" platform users registered 4,800,000-plus times
online to receive living benefits and enjoy property owners’
privileges. There were a total of 354,465 parcel deliveries,
328,498 shares among neighbours, 103,574 customer
service calls and 13,000-plus live marketing events.
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It Frequently Wins Industry Awards and
Recognition from Property Owners, Showing Its
Strength

Despite tough market conditions, the Group was highly
recognised by the market in 2022 due to reliable operation
and sound development. the Group, which saw constant
increase in its brand value, won many honours and awards,
including 2022 Top 100 Property Management Companies
in China (11th), 2022 Leading Property Management
Enterprises in Central China (1st), 2022 Most Valuable
Property Management Company, Top 10 Companies by
Services among 2022 Top 100 Property Management
Companies in China, Leading Growing Company among
2022 Top 100 Property Management Companies in China,
2022 China TOP 10 Property Management Companies by
Comprehensive Strength, 2022 China Listed Property
Management Enterprise with Excellent Investment Value,
2022 China Specialised Operational Leading Brand of
Property Management Companies, and 2022 Sina Finance
Most Potential Hong Kong- and US- Listed Companies,
demonstrating its strength. In the meantime, Luoyang
Jianye Honour Mansion, a property Management project of
the Group, was named a Demonstration Base in China’s
Property Management Industry for 2022. Anyang lianye
Chinoiserie Palace and Shanggiu Jianye Sky Mansion were
awarded the title of 2022 China Five-star Property
Management Project. In addition to property management,
its First Plus Tech was honoured as Top 50 Zhengzhou
Software and Information Technology Service Enterprises,
while Aiou Electronic was named Top 50 Zhengzhou
Electronic Information Enterprises, Top 50 Zhengzhou
Software and Information Technology Service Enterprises
and 2022 Top 100 Asian Intelligent Construction
Enterprises.

What touches us most is the recognition from property
owners. In every ordinary day, the Group’s employees
poured boundless enthusiasm into their work, quickly
responded to the needs of property owners and solved
their problems to comprehensively guard their life. In the
Group's projects under management, employees
performed a total of 13,800 acts of kindness and good
deeds in 2022, who received 2,485 pennants, 1,541 thank-
you notes and 9,818 phone calls for praise.

Central China New Life Limited / 2022 Annual Report

BETHEREREIRT  ERLXEN

20224 - TRENTIZRIET - AEERE
HEMNKE  RENEE  WEMSHEE
E@—f ° Z’»‘%.uuﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ_iﬁﬁﬁﬂ' %F%E
(2022 Bl R AR E] E11467
[2022 / #B & 13 ) 2 AR 7% T 35 Mo i SR e 1 2 |
hEE— 202 B EEMERF]

[2022 B ) 2 B 75 B 58 1b % AR %5 3 1R
TOP10] [2022 R EA¥) % AR 76 B sd 1 A R M
FAEDZE 2022 R B RS LT A RIERE
& S TOP10] 1 [2022 7 B £ T ) 2 AR 75 4%
BEBEEFLE] 2022 ERBESE
k& **AE%DDHE‘EJL%J [2022 3R B 488 2%
B RE N LT AR ERY)4818 - &
ZR11T - f‘ijJED o Bl AEEETYE
HB&IZEE - BTE 20224 B9 3 Ak
AT RS EM [TH - RS - A -

LR RERE[02FRHAERME
FRFGIEE J IR - RWEIN - H T —HKEHK
ECTE [ BT FIE B &ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%w
R NERHRAE [BINmEFEERE
BN T B A {E B ﬁﬁ%%%m%ﬁw
112022 M ERER S ae b BoR 2] o

BLEENE  BITHRMAUESREEEH
R EE—EAFARE  AEEABEH
RIBETTIERR  RREEEXTFTR
FRRETHE  2ETEXEETEF 2022
FAEBETEHEE XBRLGTATFE138
B Ep g B4R E 2,485 - BEHE 1,541
B HMBEXREF9,818)K



OUTLOOK
Being Optimistic about the Vvalue of the Industry and
Always Having Firm Confidence in Development.

After getting through the pandemic and seeing changes in the
economic cycle in recent years, the property management sector
has showed its unigue value in the national economy. Meanwhile,
as series of policy signals have been released and the economy
is on a path to recovery, the sector has seen a new turning point.
The real estate market has undergone fundamental changes. The
city-specific approach supports rigid demand for housing and
housing improvement. So the real estate sector is set to have a
‘soft landing’. Policy support and market recovery will further
promote the long-term healthy development of the property
management industry.

Making Meticulous Efforts to Increase Effectiveness and
Conducting Fine Management.

The property management industry will usher in a new
development cycle in 2023. The positioning of the property
management industry will become clearer. Deeply rooted in
Henan Province for more than two decades, the Group has
constantly increased its presence in the province and has also
expanded its footprints to the surrounding regions, which has
further improved its regional market share, and achieved the
improvement in both size and effectiveness. On the basis of
maintaining a stable expansion, the Group will focus on
management and implement fine management in 2023.
Continuous efforts will be made to cut costs and increase
effectiveness and further carry out finer property management
for projects under management, in a bid to improve profitability.
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Achieving Growth in an Innovative Way and Tapping the
Potential of Value-added Services.

With the continuous extension of the service boundary of the
property management industry and the continuous upgrading of
customer demands, value-added services have become a new
track for the development of property management companies
in recent years. After the fight against the pandemic over the
past three years, retail, group buying, door-to-door service and
other supply chains have further penetrated to communities. The
prospects for value-added services are bright. Value-added
services are the top priority of the Group that will make great
efforts to achieve growth in 2023. Its organisational structure has
been further adjusted and optimised. Through the integration of
online and offline businesses, the Group will accurately match
user portraits with its business modules, and combine and
subdivide business modules to meet the precise needs of
property owners, with a view to seeking significant growth in
value-added services.

Seeking High-quality Development and Enhancing Users’
Sense of Happiness.

According to the report to the 20th CPC National Congress, China
will ensure and improve living standards through development
and the wellbeing of the people is the fundamental goal of
development. Since its inception, the Group has been adhering
to the philosophy of customer-centricity. The Group will always
capture the essence of services and build the moat of
development with high-quality services. In the future, the Group
will keep improving its services, focus on satisfying property
owners’ demand to increase their satisfaction, and provide them
with warmer and more high-quality services, in order to enhance
their sense of gain, happiness and satisfaction.
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Facing challenges and changes, the Group will adopt policy-
oriented strategies, deepen its presence in central China and
move ahead steadily to firmly create value for customers in the
long run. We always have full confidence in ourselves, in the
industry, and in Henan Province. The Group will pursue regional
in-depth development, expand the service boundary, resonate
with the urban and regional development, in a bid to strive for
high-standard and high-quality development.

Wang Jun
Chairman

24 March, 2023
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
RIF5 22

SUMMARY OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME EHEHINERUE

For the year ended 31 December HE12A31HILFE
2022 2021 Changes
2022 F 20214 HE
Revenue (RMB'000) WA AEEFT) 3,148,141 3,598,918 -12.5%
Gross profit (RMB’000) EMAEEFT) 1,043,196 1,183,222 -11.8%
Gross profit margin ER=E 33.1% 32.9% 0.2%
Net profit (RMB’000) FREARETFT) 571,164 653,388 -12.6%
Net profit margin FREE 18.1% 18.2% -0.1%
Profit attributable to equity [ EGFE(AREFT)
shareholders (RMB’000) 562,260 619,559 -9.2%
Basic earnings per share (RMB) FREABFN(ARE) 0.44 0.49 -10.2%
Diluted earnings per share (RMB) BREERN(ARK) 0.44 0.48 -8.3%
Final dividends per share (HK cent) SRR RERREE CEL) 19.1 337 -43.3%
SUMMARY OF BALANCE SHEET BEESEREE
AS at 31 December R12H31H
2022 2021 Changes
2022 F 20214 HE
Total cash (including cash and cash ~ #HR & (BEFERE KRS EE
equivalents and restricted bank YA e 52 PR BRI T 7 70
deposits) (RMB’000) (AR#FT) 2,054,405 2,266,319 9.4%
Total assets (RMB’000) wEEANREFIT) 5,334,808 5,036,980 5.9%
Total liabilities (RMB000) BEBEANRETFT) 2,275,689 1,980,452 14.9%
Total equity (including non-controlling #E4£z5 (B IEIEIEMRERS)
interests) (RMB’000) (AR¥FoT) 3,059,119 3,056,528 0.1%
Equity attributable to shareholders of AN B IR ER G 425
the Company (RMB’000) (ARBTT) 2,942,564 2,954,233 -0.4%
Current ratio® BN F M 2.3timesf% 25tmesf% -0.2 timesfZ
Net asset value per share (RMB) FREEFEARET) 2.39 2.41 -0.8%
Note: Btat -

(1) Calculated based on the Group's total current assets divided by the (1) FAASEMNQRBEERAAEBNERE S &
Group's total current liabilities =RChy
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

Over the years, we have successfully expanded our business
from property management and value-added services to lifestyle
services and commercial property management and consultation
services. Our business now consists of three major segments. In
2022, the Group continuously optimised its income structure.
During 2022, the Group's revenue amounted to RMB3,148.1
million, representing a decrease of 12.5% from RMB3,598.9
million in 2021. Net profit was RMB571.2 million, representing a
decrease of 12.6% from RMB653.4 million in 2021.

Property management and value-added services. \We have
provided traditional property management services such as
security, cleaning and greening services since 1994, and over the
years, we have expanded our service offerings to include value-
added services aimed at elevating the living quality of the
residents in the properties we manage. To build modern
interactive and intelligent environments in communities, we
provide intelligent community solutions to property developers
as well as residents. Furthermore, utilising our strong network of
property buyers with purchasing power, we provide property
agency services to property developers found within buyers and
sellers. Further, as part of our value-added services, we also
provide personalised services and intelligent community
solutions to VIPs of the Central China Consumers Club, which is
an exclusive group of high-net-worth customers. As of 31
December 2022, our property management and value-added
services covered all 18 prefecture-level cities (and also 100 of the
102 county-level cities) in Henan as well as 7 other provinces,
including Shannxi, Shanxi, Hebei, Anhui, Hubei, Xinjiang and
Hainan, and we served more than 2.4 million property owners
and residents in 883 properties. We manage a diversified portfolio
of properties, including residential properties, shopping malls,
cultural tourism complexes, commercial apartments, office
buildings, schools, hospitals, city services, factories, parks and
properties of governmental agencies. As of 31 December 2022,
the GFA under management and contracted GFA reached 156.7
million sg.m. and 271.5 million sg.m., respectively, representing a
respective growth of 15.3% and 14.6% as compared with that as
at 31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Lifestyle services. Lifestyle services include products and
services we offer on our Jianye+ (2 +) platform, travel services,
and management services we provide in Cuisine Henan
Foodcourts (&2 AR ¥). The Jianye+ (% +) platform is an 020
one-stop service platform which integrates our internal and
external, online and offline resources in order to provide our
customers with more convenient and more affordable goods and
services. The Jianye+ (2 +) platform provides three main online
services: (i) membership benefits; (i) concierge services; and (i)
goods and services from One Family Community (—ZR2A4%). AS
of 31 December 2022, we were cooperating with over 1,100
suppliers, some of which were well-known brands that were
listed on NASDAQ or the Stock Exchange. We also offer a wide
range of benefits, including exclusive offers with hotels, malls
and restaurants in Henan. Our travel services offer four distinct
types of tours to customers, namely leisure tours, corporate
tours, sports and health tours and educational tours. The five
Cuisine Henan Foodcourts (3 AR =) we manage hosted over
259 vendors as of 31 December 2022, offering a wide variety of
food options to consumers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Commercial property management and consultation
services. Unlike property management services where we offer
a series of traditional property management services to property
developers, property owners and property occupants, our
commercial property management and consultation services
focus on enhancing the value of properties by streamlining
operations of a property to reduce costs and attracting business
to increase income. Our commercial property management and
consultation services comprise (i) hotel management, (ii)
commercial asset management and (ii) cultural tourism complex
management. For hotels, we manage a hotel’s overall operations,
supervise hotel operations performed by an existing operator
and provide consultancy services. For other commercial assets,
we provide pre-opening consultation and post-opening
management services. For commercial asset management, our
Company primarily manages shopping malls by providing two
main categories of services: (i) pre-opening consultation, which
includes services such as market research on vendor and
clientele demographics, financial analysis, vendor solicitation and
management and strategic planning; and (ii) post-opening
management services, which includes services such as vendor
management, sales and operation management, and training
management. As for cultural tourism complex management, our
Company’s services include the branding and overall operations
management, consultancy services, technical support on
technology research and promotion (including the selection and
assessment of seeds to be used), agricultural product sale,
agricultural product planting and project planning. For cultural
tourism complexes, our services include overall operations and
consultancy services. In each area, we strive to help our clients
achieve asset value appreciation and sustainable development.
As of 31 December 2022, our portfolio of commercial properties
under management consisted of five cultural tourism complexes
(with an aggregate site area of approximately 10.5 million sg.m.)
and ten hotels (with a total GFA of approximately 0.3 million
Sg.m.).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

As a new lifestyle services provider, the Group possesses a more
extensive service system and portfolio of products and services
as compared to traditional property management companies.
With the high-net-worth, high purchase frequency and high
stickiness of the Group’s customers, the consumption pattern of
the Group’s customers are characterised by increasing
consumption power and diversified needs. Therefore, the Group
is able to build an enriched and high-quality supply ecosystem to
provide its customers with a one-stop convenient and enriched
life by leveraging its strength in high quality, high density and rich
resources.

Property management services are the foundation and
cornerstone of the Group and also the primary driver for the
continuous development of the Group. The size of GFA under
management is one of the crucial factors in the valuation of a
property management company in the capital market. In order to
maintain our leading position in central China region, the Group
will continue to strengthen its efforts on property development.

Technology empowerment is the only way to reduce costs and
increase efficiency. We will focus on increasing investment in
intelligent properties, evaluating the achievement of technology
investment, and integrating organisational management to
achieve the goal of cost reduction and efficiency enhancement
as soon as possible.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE5YmIx oM

FINANCIAL REVIEW B 75 [E] B8

REVENUE N

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded #EHZE2022E 12831 B ILEE - REBEETR KA
revenue of RMB3,148.1 million (2021: RMB3,598.9 million), A R#3,1481 57 & 7T (20214 : AR¥3,5989H
representing a year-on-year decrease of 12.5%. The revenue of B 7T) « 820217 4> 12.5% o REBE R AR E =
the Group were generated from three main business segments: ()  EFX B : (VWS B MIRERKS ; () £/ER
property management and value-added services; (i) lifestyle % : N (i)EEEETIENZARE -

services; and (iii) commercial property management and

consultation services.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our revenue by  TREJNERFINFERNILZES DS ED AU AR
business segment during the year: “an

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A318LEE

2022 2021
2022 £ 2021 4
Revenue Revenue
WA A
(RMB’000) % (RMB'000) %
(AR¥F) % (AR®FiT) %
Property management and Y EIE RIS E R
value added services 2,881,238 91.5 3,040,791 84.5
Lifestyle services AR IR 182,018 5.8 406,990 113
Commercial property EEEEEEREH
management and Pk 7%
consultation services 84,885 2.7 151,137 4.2
Total revenue AL PN 3,148,141 100.0 3,598,918 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Property management and value-added services

During the year, revenue from property management and value-
added services amounted to RMB2,881.2 million (2021:
RMB3,040.8 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of
5.3%. The decrease was primarily attributable to impacts of
resurgence of the pandemic and downturn of the real estate
market in China on value-added services to hon-property owners.

The table below sets forth the details of our revenue from each
service in this business segment during the year:

MEEBERILERKE

FAN - MEEERIEERBRAZARE2:881.2
BEIL(2021F + ARKE30408EEL) » BEF
BA53% c B EBHRIRN : FEXELEEE
BZBARNREREMNEHETERETTERE

=71
SR

TRBEINFARFIREZEHD BEEREH
WAFHS -

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 £
(RMB’000) % (RMB’000) %
(AR¥Fr) % (ARMTFT) %
Property management services )3 %& 1 IR 7% 1,717,375 59.6 1,326,194 43.6
Value-added services: HER
Community value-added tRIRERE
services 652,055 22.6 864,453 28.4
Value-added services to FEHE T IBERS
non-property owners 511,808 17.8 850,144 28.0
Total ) 2,881,238 100.0 3,040,791 100.0

During the year, revenue from property management services
amounted to RMB1,717.4 million (2021: RMB1,326.2 million),
representing a year-on-year increase of 29.5%, which was mainly
attributable to the increase in the GFA of properties under
management of the Group from 135.9 million sg.m. as at 31
December 2021 to 156.7 million sg.m. as at 31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group's value-added services include community value-
added services and value-added services to non-property
owners. Community value-added services mainly include
decoration management and inspection, public area
management, turnkey and move-in furnishing services, intelligent
community solutions and the services of the Central China
Consumers Club. Value-added services to non-property owners
mainly include property agency, pre-launch intermediary
services, on-site management, property inspection income, pre-
delivery cleaning and other services.

During the year, revenue from community value-added services
amounted to RMB652.1 million (2021: RMB864.5 million),
representing a year-on-year decrease 24.6%. The decrease was
mainly attributable to: (1) a decrease of RMB86.4 million in the
revenue from the turnkey and move-in furnishing business in
2022 (2021: RMB122.1 million); and (2) a decrease of RMB163.9
million in the revenue from the intelligent community business in
2022 (2021: RMB483.9 million).

Revenue from value-added services to non-property owners
amounted to RMB511.8 million (2021: RMB850.1 million),
representing a year-on-year decrease of 39.8%. The decrease
was primarily attributable to the decline in revenue from pre-
launch intermediary services and on-site management from
RMB342.7 million in 2021 to RMB205.7 million in 2022 as a result
of the resurgence of the pandemic and downturn of the real
estate market in China.

As of 31 December 2022, the total GFA under management of
the Group was 156.7 million sg.m., representing an increase of
20.8 million sg.m. or 15.3% as compared with 135.9 million sg.m.
as of 31 December 2021. The increase was mainly attributable to
the increase in projects delivered by third party developers and
Central China Real Estate Limited (“CCRE") and its subsidiaries
(the “CCRE Group") and its associates or joint ventures. For the
year ended 31 December 2022, the average property
management fee rate charged by the Group was approximately
RMB1.72 per sg.m./month (for the year ended 31 December
2021: 1.73 per sg.m./month).

EEBmX DI
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The table below sets out the breakdown of our total GFA under
management for our property management services attributable
to the properties developed by the CCRE Group (and its
associates or joint ventures) and third-party property developers
as of the dates indicated:

TREJIEEARAHER PR EEEE (R ER
EBRAIRBELE) RE=ZTMEFREBMFHEY
EREFEHNMEXEERBARNEEBARERER
A

As of 31 December 2022 As of 31 December 2021

M2022%12H31H R2021F12 A31H
GFA GFA
WEEERE ARIEEETH AR
‘000 sq.m. % ‘000 sg.m. %
FFFHK % FFEHK %
The CCRE Group and its EEEENHEBEE
associates or joint ventures RNAEINAERE 68,469 43.7 62,766 462
Third-party property developers 25 =7 %535 88,247 56.3 73,117 53.8
Total &t 156,716 100.0 135,883 100.0
Lifestyle Services HSERTE

For lifestyle services, we offer a wide range of lifestyle services,
which include (i) products and services we offer on our Jianye+
(&% +) platform, (i) travel services, and (i) management services
we provide in Cuisine Henan Foodcourts (&2 A& ¥). During the
year, revenue from lifestyle services amounted to RMB182.0
million (2021: RMB407.0 million), representing a year-on-year
decrease of 55.3%. The number of registered users on our
Jianye+ (% +) platform grew from approximately 5.8 million as
of 31 December 2021 to approximately 8.1 million as of 31
December 2022, and the decrease in revenue was due to the
resurgence of the pandemic and weakening purchase intention.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The table below sets forth the details of our revenue from each
service in this business segment during the year:

EEEFmRX DI

TREINFARFIREZEHD B EREH
WAFHS -

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31BLFEE

2022 2021
2022 & 20214

(RMB’000) % (RMB’000) %
(AR TFT) % (AR®TT) %
Jianye+ EE4 170,900 93.9 335,666 82.5
Travel services IR AR T% 3,933 2.2 60,135 14.8
Cuisine Henan Foodcourts BERRE 7.185 3.9 11,189 2.7
Total a5t 182,018 100.0 406,990 100.0

Commercial Property Management and Consultation BEEETERBARE

Services

For commercial property management and consultation services,
we offer services in respect of (i) hotel management; (ii)
commercial asset management; and (iii) cultural tourism complex
management. During the year, revenue from commercial
property management and consultation services reached
RMB84.9 million (2021: RMB151.1 million), representing a year-
on-year decrease of 43.8%. Such decrease was mainly
attributable to the decrease of revenue from the cultural tourism
complex management to RMB55.4 million from RMB115.8 million
for 2021.

HEAXLEEEERBARBME - RMREUT
FEMRE : (VEEEE  (\HXEEERE  Ki)
MALHRBELREBEIR - TN BEEEETERE
ARBEWAAREIOAEBE T (2021F « AR
BINEET)  WEFTRKEL38%  ZTEEER
MR LIRS A REBRAREFN1158E5E
T RBEESSAEETT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The table below sets forth the details of our revenue from each
service in this business segment during the year:

TREIINFARFIREZXEHD BE BRI
WAFHE -

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 & 20214
(RMB’000) % (RMB’000) %
(AR¥TFT) % (ARMFT) %
Hotel management BEERE 9,547 11.3 9,619 6.4
Commercial property HMEEEER
management 19,980 23.5 25,744 17.0
Cultural tourism complex XAbIREEAR S B E 1B
management 55,358 65.2 115,774 76.6
Total =) 84,885 100.0 151,137 100.0
COST OF SALES SHE B A

Our cost of sales primarily consists of employee benefit
expenses, outsourcing labor costs, greening and cleaning
expenses, cost of goods sold, outsourcing costs of tourism
services, utilities, selling expenses, maintenance business costs,
construction costs, professional service fees, security charges,
depreciation and amortisation charges, travelling and
entertainment expenses, office expenses, taxes and other levies
and other costs.

During the year, cost of sales of the Group was RMB2,104.9
million (2021: RMB2,415.7 million), representing a year-on-year
decrease of 12.9%. This is mainly attributable to a decrease in
cost of sales in accordance with the decrease in revenue due to
the resurgence of the pandemic and downturn of the real estate
market in China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN
The following table sets forth our gross profit and gross profit
margin by business segment during the year:

EEBmX DI

EFRER=E
TRBSIBRMAFNREE D BEDOENRE

Rl -

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 £ 20214
Gross profit Gross profit
Gross profit margin  Gross profit margin
EX EFI=E EH ER=E
RMB‘000 % RMB'000 %
AR¥FT % AREFIT %
Property management and b ERLS I
value-added services: R 7%
Property management VB B RS
services 373,937 21.8 245,511 18.5
Community value-added @R E AR TS
services 286,252 43.9 310,122 35.9
Value-added services to FEHE FILERS
non-property owners 277,616 54.2 421,978 49.6
937,805 32.6 977,611 321
Lifestyle services AERTE 39,804 21.9 108,116 26.6
Commercial property EEEEEENEN
management and R 7%
consultation services 65,587 77.3 97,495 64.5
Total &a&t 1,043,196 33.1 1,183,222 32.9

During the year, the gross profit of the Group was RMB1,043.2
million (2021: RMB1,183.2 million), representing a decrease of
11.8% as compared with last year. The gross profit margin of the
Group increased from 32.9% as of 31 December 2021 t0 33.1% as
of 31 December 2022.

The gross profit margin of our property management and value-
added services increased from 32.1% for the year ended 31
December 2021 to 32.6% for the year ended 31 December 2022,
and the increase of 0.5 percentage points was mainly driven by
economies of scale as a result of the increase in the GFA under
management in 2022.

FR AEEEFAEARKE1,04325 &7t (2021
F:ARB11832H B L) ®2021F &
11.8% c REBEMEMNERYEZ2021F12A31H
IEFEMRI%IBAEEHZE202F12A31HIEF
JE#I133.1% °

BMI Y EE IR RIS E RS EF R EH ZE 2021
F128318 1 FE H32.1% 1 & & £2022F 12
A3BIFEEN32.6% TERHN202FEE
EEEN - RERESBMEEERENENEX
RAOSEE D -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The gross profit margin of our lifestyle services dropped to 21.9%
for the year ended 31 December 2022 from 26.6% for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The drop was mainly attributable to
the decline in gross profit margin of the Jianye+ platform due to
the impact of the pandemic.

The gross profit margin of our commercial property management
and consultation services increased from approximately 64.5%
for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately 77.3% for
the year ended 31 December 2022. The increase was mainly
attributable to the further enhancement of cost-saving and
control awareness, and cost reduction and efficiency
improvement conducted among hotel management business and
commercial management business.

SELLING AND MARKETING EXPENSES

During the year, the selling and marketing expenses of the Group
amounted to RMB32.1 million, representing a decrease of 43.8%
as compared with RMB57.1 million in 2021, and accounting for
approximately 1.0% of the revenue, which was a decrease of 0.6
percentage points from 2021. This was mainly attributable to
strict control of various expenses, cost reduction and efficiency
improvement.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

During the year, the administrative expenses of the Group
amounted to RMB238.8 million, representing an increase of 4.0%
as compared with RMB229.7 million in 2021, and accounting for
approximately 7.6% of the revenue, which was mainly attributable
to the impairment of goodwill of an acquired subsidiary.

OTHER INCOME

During the year, other income of the Group amounted to
RMB56.8 million (2021: RMB34.5 million), representing an year-
on-year increase of 64.7% from 2021. The increase was mainly
attributable to an increase in income from loans to external
parties.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INCOME TAX

During the year, income tax expense of the Group amounted to
RMB188.0 million (2021: RMB172.7 million), and the income tax
rate was 24.8% (2021: 20.9%).

PROFIT

During the year, the net profit of the Group amounted to
RMB571.2 million, representing decreased of 12.6% as compared
with RMB653.4 million in 2021. The net profit margin reached
18.1%, which is basically on par with the 2021 level of 18.2%,
which was mainly due to improvement of management efficiency
and reduction of management costs. During the year, the profit
attributable to shareholders of the Company amounted to
RMB562.3 million, representing a decrease of 9.2% as compared
with RMB619.6 million in 2021. Basic earnings per share
amounted to RMBO0.44 (2021: RMB0.49).

FINANCIAL RESOURCES MANAGEMENT
AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

We have adopted comprehensive treasury policies and internal
control measures to review and monitor our financial resources.
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately RMB2,049.1 million (31 December
2021: approximately RMB2,264.4 million). As at 31 December
2022, the Group's bank borrowings amounted to RMB74.0 million
(31 December 2021 : nil). Subsequent to the reporting period, the
Company has declared a final dividend of approximately
RMB218.0 million in total to the shareholders of the Company,
which will be paid out of the Company’s share premium account.

The gearing ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by total
equity, and the sum of long-term and short-term interest bearing
bank loans and other loans as of the corresponding date divided
by the total equity as of the same date. As of 31 December 2022,
the gearing ratio was 2.4% (31 December 2021: nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2022, trade and other receivables amounted
to RMB2,674.4 million, representing an increase of 24.2% as
compared with RMB2,153.7 million as at 31 December 2021,
which was primarily attributable to the fact that the Group was
affected by the impact of the greater environment of the real
estate industry and the economic situation, thereby slowing
down the receipt of receivables.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

As at 31 December 2022, trade and other payables amounted to
RMB1,073.2 million, representing an increase of 16.7% as
compared with RMB919.3 million as at 31 December 2021, which
was primarily attributable to the scale expansion of the Group
due to the increase in the GFA under management and
subcontracting of more services to independent third-party
service providers.

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2022, the borrowings were RMB74.0 million,
whereas the Group had no borrowings as at 31 December 2021,
mainly due to the bank borrowings of Henan Tianming Property
Management Co., Ltd. (“Henan Tianming") incurred prior to its
acquisition by the Group, of which the equity interests were
acquired by the Group during 2022 and the results of which have
been included in the consolidated statements of the Group.

PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

References are made to (i) the prospectus of the Company dated
5 May 2020 relating to the global offering; (i) the annual report of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020; and (iii) the
announcements dated 8 July 2021 and 16 March 2022 relating to
the update on expected timeline for use of proceeds. The
Company’s ordinary shares were listed on the main board of
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing”) on 15 May 2020. After
deducting the underwriting fees and relevant expenses, net
proceeds from the Listing amounted to approximately HK$2,280.8
million (equivalent to RMB2,088.7 million). As of 31 December
2022, the Group has used approximately RMB550.3 million of the
proceeds. As of 31 December 2022, the Company has not yet
utilised the net proceeds of approximately RMB1,538.3 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The table below sets forth the allocation and status of utilisation
of the proceeds and the time frame of the use of the unutilised

TREIN 2B EMGFKIER D ECMEE R A
KRB AR IREEMSRIBNRER

proceeds
Actual  Unused net
Respective  Respective expenditures proceeds
percentage  amount of Net proceeds asat 31 asat31
of total total used during  December  December
Major Categories Sub-categories proceeds proceeds 2022 2022 2022 Time frame
R2022%
R2022%F R2022F 12A8318H
SEFRBRE  SUEAER BAME 12A31A8H  KEAHRE
TEER TER BEAML  EAELE REFE EREX TERE REER
(RMB'000) (RMB'000) (RMB'000) (RMB'000)
(ARHTT) (AR®TT) (AEETT) (ARETT)
1. Strategic investments, 60% 1,253,216 30,315 132,723 1,120,493
cooperation and acquisition
1. BRI AR
Ui
1.1 Acquiring property 40% 835,478 30,315 114,531 720947  Between one year to three
management service and a half years after
providers Listing
11 WENEEERERER IR -E=FF
1.2 Acquiring companies that 10% 208,869 - - 208,869  Between one year to three
will expand our portfolio and a half years after
Listing
12 WEBEARMNEES T%-E=F¢
:9YNG|
1.3 Acquiring other companies 10% 208,869 - 18,192 190,677  Between one year to three
that can bring synergies to and a half years after
our business, in particular, Listing
our value-added services
13 WEEMTARMNEB(L % -E=FF
HRILERE) SRIGH
MIEM AR
2. Enhancement of our Jianye+ 15% 313,304 14,096 114,615 198,689
(% 4) platform to optimise
user experience
2. MERE+FalBLAPE
Eﬁ
2.1 Developing and optimizing 5% 104,435 12,681 51,875 50,560  Between one year to three
software and our cloud and a half years after
system Listing
21 REREBIIHRZRS ITg-E=F%
2.2 Improving and expanding 4% 83,548 3 1,969 81,579 Between one year to three

our facilities and and a half years after
equipment Listing

22 MERBRAMORRR rThg-E=F%
B

BEFETEERAR/ 2 _FFR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Actual  Unused net

Respective  Respective expenditures proceeds
percentage  amount of Net proceeds asat 31 asat 31
of total total used during  December  December
Major Categories Sub-categories proceeds proceeds 2022 2022 2022 Time frame
R2022%F

R2022%  H2022% 12B31B8
BEFBRE  BEHAER BAKE 12ANB0  REANE
TEER TEH SEASL  HAELE HEFE BB REFE HEER
(RMBOOD) ~ (RMBOOD) — (RMBOOD)  (RMB'00)
ARETT) (AREFT) (ARETE) (AREFT)

2.3 Expansion of scale and 4% 83,548 1,072 49,711 33,837  Between one year to three
diversity of membership and a half years after
resources Listing

23 BAEGBERMBELRS IThg-E=F¢
B

2.4 Expansion of our user Between one year to three
base and a half years after

Listing
24 BREFE Img-E=F¥
3. Investingin advanced
information technologies
system

3 RAREERRWEAR

4. General working capital

4. —KeEde

3.1 Building intelligence

Between one year to three

communities and and a half years after
upgrading facilities Listing
31 BREBHERABRRME FhE-E=EY

3.2 Developing our financial

Between one year to three

sharing system and a half years after
Listing
32 WRUMBHZZER IHE-—E=F¢

3.3 Developing a process

Between one year to three

control and KPI integration and a half years after
system Listing
33 FEREBERIRKPIER T -Z2=F¢

B2

34 Achieving digitalised

Between one year to three

documentation and a half years after
Listing
34 ERXHEFE Ig—E=F%

Working capital and other
general corporate purposes

BEEEREM—RDA
i3

100% 2,088,694 95,945 550,345 1,538,349

The unused proceeds are expected to be used for the above KBRS FBEENSESEHEEERNAR L
purposes within the specific timeframe, though it may be subject L B & + HE L il B AT RERE T B K B 2 8) -
to changes in accordance with changes in market conditions

from time to time.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As of 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any pledged
assets for its loan guarantee.

MAJOR ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS

In January 2022, the Group acquired 51% equity interests in
Henan Tianming at a cash consideration of RMB33,660,000.
Henan Timing is a property management company located in
Zhengzhou City, Henan Province, the PRC.

Please refer to note 29 of the consolidated financial statements
for more details.

Save for the above, the Group did not have any major acquisition
and disposals of subsidiaries and associated companies during
2022.

MAJOR INVESTMENT
As of 31 December 2022, the Group did not hold any significant
investment.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENT

As of 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities and capital commitment.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There are no significant events subsequent to 31 December 2022
which would materially affect the Group’s operating and financial
performance as of the date of this report.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The principal activities of the Group are conducted in the PRC,
and a majority of the Group’s income and expenses were
denominated in Renminbi. Therefore, the Group is not exposed
to material risk directly relating to foreign exchange rate
fluctuation except certain bank balances were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, which were held by the Company in its own
functional currency. Currently, the Group has not entered into
contracts to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk, but the
management will continue to monitor the foreign exchange
exposure, and take prudent measures to reduce the foreign
exchange risk.
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RAB A MNTmHEEEAR -

HER2HGREMBRRM T2 -

B Lt iFm s - A5 B 2022 F 3 A AU
BLAEWNBARRBEBAF -

BEXKRE
R2022F12A318 » AEEEFHTRENESE -

HABBEREARNRIE

R202F12A318  AEEB T ELMERNKA
B E N EARFEIE -

BEHEEE

BEAWE AL 0202291231 Ak - B
AEAFRGHFEBLERMBRBEREA
THEE -

S BE JeL B

AEBRPEETEIEER  MAKBERILSH
WARFXAAREFE - Bt - BRETARA
FFE S EBMRITERABTAHE - &
BN RAK BAHNEE X R B E R BENEAR
B o BRI - AEBIWRETILA L EHPIAZ S
R EEEEMERIMNERRKO - R
EREHEREINERR

BREFETARAT / B FER 61



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As of 31 December 2022, we had 6,086 full time employees,
substantially all of whom were located in Henan province.

In order to promote healthy competition among employees and
motivate them to deliver their best performance, the Company
has further optimised its existing remuneration and incentive
system and established a performance-oriented management
concept and remuneration and incentive system, according to
which the remuneration levels, remuneration adjustment and job
transfer of employees will be determined based on their
performance appraisal results. The overall remuneration system
of the Company will also be adjusted regularly with reference to
the prevailing market remuneration level to ensure the external
competitiveness and internal equity of the remunerations of our
employees and provide guarantees for retaining and attracting
talent.

The Company has also adopted certain share option schemes
and a share reward scheme to motivate and reward its
employees.

In addition, the Company has formulated and implemented
human resource policies which are conducive to the sustainable
development of the Company. Adhering to the talent concept of
“professional spirit and professional quality”, the Company takes
professional ethics and professional ability as important
standards for selecting and employing employees and
strengthens employee training and continuous education to
constantly improve their quality. Meanwhile, the Company also
places high emphasis on the career development of its
employees. It assists employees to plan out their career paths
according to their expertise and capabilities, provides them with
various career channels and development opportunities, and
cultivates and retains talent for key posts to promote the
continuous improvement of its organising ability.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has always valued the superiority, steadiness and
rationality of having a sound system of corporate governance
and is committed to continuously improving its corporate
governance and disclosure practices. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Company has complied with all code
provisions and mandatory disclosure requirements and, where
appropriate, adopted the recommended best practices set out in
the Corporate Governance Code in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) with the exception of code provision C.2.1 as
addressed below.

Code provision C.2.1 — Pursuant to this code provision, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. From 1 January
2022 to 14 February 2022, Mr. Wang Jun was the chairman of the
Board and the chief executive officer of the Company,
responsible for formulating and executing our business
strategies, annual operational and financial plans of the
Company.

The Board believed that vesting the roles of both chairman and
chief executive officer in Mr. Wang Jun had the benefit of
ensuring consistency and continuous leadership within the Group
and also maximised the effectiveness and efficiency of overall
planning and execution of its strategies. The Board considered
that the balance of power and authority, accountability and
independent decision-making under its present arrangement
would not be impaired in light of the diverse background and
experience of its three independent non- executive Directors.
Further, the Audit Committee of the Company comprised
exclusively of independent non-executive Directors and has free
and direct access to the Company's external auditors and
independent professional advisers when it considered necessary.
Therefore, our Directors considered that the deviation from Code
Provision C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code was
appropriate in such circumstance.

On 14 February 2022, Mr, Shi Shushan (“Mr. Shi”) was appointed
by the Board as the chief executive officer of the Group in place
of Mr. Wang Jun. Mr. Shi is responsible for implementing business
strategies and operational management formulated by the Board.

Following the appointment of Mr. Shi as the chief executive
officer, the Company has compiled with code provision C.2.1 of
the Corporate Government Code.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for the
Directors in their dealings in the Company's securities. Having
made specific enquires with each Director, the Company
confirmed that the Directors had complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board, which is chaired by Mr. Wang Jun, consists of two
executive Directors and five non-executive Directors, three of
whom are independent. The composition of the Board ensures a
balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements
of the business of Group and the exercising of independent
opinion.

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report include:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jun (Chairman)

Mr. Shi Shushan (@ppointed on 3 February 2023)
Mr. Wang Qian (resigned on 3 February 2023)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Wu Lam Li

Ms. Dai liling (appointed on 24 March 2023)
Ms. Min Huidong (resigned on 24 March 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Leong Chong

Ms. Luo Laura Ying

Ms. Xin Zhu
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

All executive Directors and non-executive Directors have entered
into service contracts or letters of appointment with the
Company for a specific term of 3 years. Under the articles of
association (the "Articles of Association”) of the Company, the
Board is empowered to appoint any person as a Director to fill
the casual vacancy on or as an additional Director.

In compliance with Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors (representing one-third of the Board), one of whom
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications in
accounting and financial management. Each of the three
independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his
independence of the Company and the Company considers each
of them to be independent in accordance with the guidelines of
assessing independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Each of the three independent non-executive Directors
has signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a
specific term of three years.

Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election. Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association,
at every annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. In accordance with Articles 83(3), 84(1) and
84(2) of the Articles of Association, Mr. Wang Jun, Mr. Shi
Shushan, Ms. Dai liling and Ms. Xin Zhu, therefore, will retire from
their offices at the 2023 annual general meeting of the Company
("2023 AGM"), and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.
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All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Group and in particular, the independent non-executive
Directors have provided the Board with their diversified expertise
and professional advices. The Board is of the view that there is a
balanced composition of executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive Directors in the Board and the
independent non-executive Directors are able to provide
sufficient checks and balances to safeguard the interests of the
Group and its Shareholders. The participation of the independent
non-executive Directors in the Board and committee meetings
also provides independent judgment on the issues relating to
strategy, policy, performance, accountability, conflict of interest
and standards of conduct.

The Board members have access to timely information relating to
the Group’s business and will be provided with further
documents and information upon request to enable them to
make informed decisions. Independent professional advice can
be sought to discharge their duties at the Group's expense upon
their request. No such advice was sought during 2022. The
Ccompany has subscribed appropriate and sufficient insurance
coverage on Directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions taken
against Directors arising out of corporate activities.

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD

The Board is in charge of leadership and control of the Group and
is responsible for maximising the Group’s financial performance
and making decisions in the best interests of the Group and its
Shareholders. Under the leadership of Mr. Wang Jun, the
chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”), the Board is also
responsible for formulating and overseeing the business
strategies and policies of the Group, approving and monitoring
annual budgets and business plans, reviewing operational and
financial performance, and reviewing and monitoring the Group’s
financial control and risk management systems. The Board has
delegated the daily operation and day-to-day management of the
Group as well as the implementation of the Board's policies and
strategies to the executive Directors and management of the
Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CHANGES OF INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the
changes in information required to be disclosed by Directors
pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules are set out below:

(1) Mr. Leong Chong has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Longfor Group Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 960)
since January 2023;

(2)  Ms. Luo Laura Ying has been appointed as an investment
director and responsible officer of GL China Equity HK
Management Limited since August 2022. She has also been
appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3382) since
March 2023; and

(3 Ms. Xin Zhu has been appointed an independent non-
executive director of Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. (&
HETEERERG BRAR]) (@ company listed on the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 2152) since April 2021.

BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETING
The Board holds meetings regularly and meets at other times as
and when required to review financial, internal and compliance
controls, risk management, company strategy and operating
performance of the Group. In addition, the Board holds general
meeting to maintain an on-going dialogue with the Shareholders.
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board held 6 regular
meetings, 2 audit committee meetings, 1 nomination committee
meeting, 1 remuneration committee meeting, 1 general meeting
and 1 extraordinary general meeting.
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The number of Board meetings, committee meetings and general

BREEN2022F1A1HE2022512 A 31 HEM

meeting attended by each Director from 1 January 2022 t0 31 HEZEeoEn ZEEZ5oezmNBREAEH
December 2022 is set out in the following table: IREEA TR
Audit Nomination Remuneration Extraordinary
Board Committee Committee Committee General General
Directors Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
= EZgER EVZESER REZEE8E FMZEEE88E REXE BRREHAE
Number of meetingsheld 6 2 1 1 1 1
BIGRRY
Mr. Wang Jun 6/6 N/A m”n 1/1 11 on
FREE i
Mr. Shi Shushan (appointed  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
on 3 February 2023)
FPENTE(R2023F N ek i ik NEf TER
2H3AEZ()
Mr. Wang Qian (resigned on  6/6 N/A N/A N/A ”n 17
3 February 2023)
FERE(R2023F NEH NEH N
2A3A78)
Ms. Wu Lam Li 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 0N on
Tt A A NEA
Ms. Dai ling (appointed on -~ N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
24 March 2023)
RERL LT (R2023F N A i ik NEA N
324 AEZ(T)
Ms. Min Huidong (resigned — 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 0/1 0/1
on 24 March 2023)
RERLT (R2023F TER i A
3A24H5E5)
Mr. Leong Chong 6/6 22 11 11 11 7
2AEE
Ms. Luo Laura Ying 6/6 2/2 N/A 7 il /1
#ent ik
Ms. Xin Zhu 6/6 2/2 " N/A 7 /1
Fhnt TEA

Sufficient notice for regular Board meetings and notice of
reasonable days for ad hoc Board meetings were given to all
Directors so as to ensure that each of them had an opportunity
to attend the meetings, and agenda and accompanying Board
papers were given to all Directors in a timely manner. As agreed
by the Board, the Directors may also seek independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense. No such advice
was sought during 2022. During the intervals between Board
meetings, the senior management of the Company provides the
Directors with information on a timely basis regarding all major

developments or changes in the Group's businesses.

68 Central China New Life Limited / 2022 Annual Report

ARFIEAEBEFTEHEREFTEEZNRD
BERGHESTSSENAERENRS - R
FEHEREHFEERICRNERES LIRS
HELBEHRNEREXt - KEZSRE EF
MAISRBIEXRER - MAAREE R B AR A%
& R2022%F REEFFHEMER - GHEF
ggRNHERIE  ARAFSRERERKME
ERHUMAERASEXBEARRABHNE

¥ o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Should a Director have a potential conflict of interest in a matter
being considered in the Board meeting, he or she will abstain
from voting in respect of the relevant resolution. Independent
non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest will be
present at meetings to deal with such issues.

Full Board or committee papers will be sent to all Directors at
least three days before the intended date of a Board meeting or
committee meeting.

Management has supplied the Board and its committees with
adequate information and explanations so as to enable them to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before the Board and its committees for
approval. Management is also invited to join the Board or
committee meetings where appropriate.

All the Directors are also entitled to have access to timely
information such as monthly updates in relation to our
businesses and have separate and independent access to senior
management.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Code provision C.1.4 of the Corporate Governance Code requires
all Directors to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

During the year, the Company Secretary regularly circulated
reading materials on the amendments to or updates on the
relevant laws, rules and regulations to all Directors as part of
their training materials in the continuous professional
development plan of the Company and the Company confirmed
that all Directors read the training materials and are in
compliance with Code C.1.4.

In addition, every newly appointed Director will receive an
induction on the first occasion of his or her appointment, so as to
ensure that he or she has a proper understanding of the
operations and business of the Company, and his or her
responsibilities under laws, regulations and especially the
governance policies of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The position of Chairman and the position of Chief Executive
Officer was held by Mr. Wang Jun until Mr. Shi Shushan was
appointed as the chief executive officer in place of Mr. Wang Jun
on 14 February 2022.

As the Chairman, Mr. Wang Jun is responsible for the
management and leadership of the Board to formulate overall
strategies and business development directions for the Group, to
ensure that adequate, complete and reliable information is
provided to all Directors in a timely manner, and to ensure that
the issues raised at the Board meetings are explained
appropriately.

As the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Shi Shushan is responsible for
the daily operations of the Group and the implementation of
business policies, objectives and plans as formulated and
adopted by the Board, and is accountable to the Board for the
overall operation of the Group.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance, position and prospects in the consolidated financial
statements of the annual and interim reports in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
Pursuant to Code Provision D.1.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, management should provide such explanation and
information to the Board as will enable the Board to make an
informed assessment of the financial and other information put
before the Board for approval. The Directors confirm that, to the
best of their knowledge, information and belief, having made all
reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022, the Directors have selected appropriate
accounting policies and applied them consistently, and have
made judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable.

The Group has announced its annual and interim results in a
timely manner within the limits of three months and two months
respectively after the end of the relevant financial periods, as laid
down in the Listing Rules.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
Group's assets and shareholders’ interests. The Group
acknowledges the responsibilities of the Board and the
management in the risk management and internal control
systems:

o The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and degree of risk it is willing to take in achieving
the Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the
issuer establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems; overseeing
the management in the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems.

o The management is responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems, and shall confirm to the Board on the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable rather than
absolute assurance that there will be no material misstatement
or loss.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established the risk management infrastructure,
defined the risk management process, adopted qualitative and
quantitative integrated risk management methods to identify,
evaluate and mitigate risks. It shall promote the sustainable and
healthy development of various businesses of the Group under
controllable risks.
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Based on the work done in previous years, the Group continued
to improve the risk management system structure through the
following efforts and has guided the implementation of risk
assessment and continuous risk monitoring activities:

Restatement and continued implementation of risk
management organisational structure: The Group has
reconfirmed the risk management organisational structure that
covers the decision-making level (the Board and the Audit
committee), the execution level (the headquarters of the Group
and its subsidiaries at all levels) and the supervision level (the audit
and supervision department of the Group). This has clearly defined
the responsibilities and authorities and major work scopes of each
level in written form, which helps to comprehensively identify and
manage risks. The Group has sorted out the major risk changes
regarding five risk categories, namely strategic risk, market risk,
operational risk, financial risk and legal risk, and updated the risk
database. Based on the changing internal and external
environment, and the strategic objectives of the Group and the risk
appetite of the management, the Group has updated the
applicable risk assessment dimensions and standards, as well as
risk assessment methods with qualitative and quantitative tools.

AEEAREETEBEFENTIEER L BB
TIERETERAREEBRARE E3ISERA
Rt TR RRA RS ENRRESIEE

ERTEREZASRBYRESE  FREE
RTEFRERARER(EEeNEXEZEBY
HTEE(REAME TESRAR MEEER
(REEAERS)RAREEEAMRE  LYEM@
RETSEENBRERER  T2TFRARSE
ERemEn hEERR  KHEERR - M5
Rk - B R - MRS RE R SOX 2R T E R R
B BREBEEENIZEMBEZER - BN
Rl BiEE  YERAILRENOED  ELEE
BRERLEEERRRSLE B TEAN
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Decision-making authority
REHAE

The Board and Audit Committee

EFERERRRE

Executive authority
HATHE

Headquarter of the Group
(including all functional department)
SE@E
(BIESBALE)

Subsidiaries of the Group
(including professional companies)
EETESRAT
(BEEXLQFE)

Supervision authority

o

Audit and supervision department
of the Group
EMEERD

(Diagram 1: Organisational structure of risk management)
(B—: ReEIRAmLERE)
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Clarifying and standardization of risk management
process: The Group established a closed-loop risk management
process including risk identification, risk assessment, risk
response, risk monitoring, reporting and improvement, defines
the specific steps and contents of risk management work, and
the management tools used to support the process
implementation. The major steps of our risk management
process are illustrated in the diagram below:

Risk Identification

Risk Assessment

Risk response

Risk Identification
LB R B

Reporting and
Improvement
E R

Risk monitoring
AR EE

the headquarter of the Group and
subsidiaries identify major risks that may
affect the achievement of strategies and
business objectives,

to evaluate and analyse the risks
identified from two dimensions, namely
the possibility of occurrence and the
degree of impact of risks, and to rank
the importance of risks by integrating
risk assessment questionnaires, data
analysis and industry benchmarking;

analyse the effectiveness of existing
risk management measures, identify
risk monitoring gaps and formulate
risk response plans to control risks
within an acceptable level,
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Risk monitoring — totrack and inspect the implementation
of the risk response plan, and monitor
the effectiveness of risk management
through the audit and supervision
department as the third line of defense;

Reporting and —  Discuss and communicate the work

Improvement results of risk management on a regular

basis, and continuously improve and
optimise risk management and control
capabilities.

The main features of the Group's risk management system are as
follows:

o Closed-loop risk management process: The risk
management process adopts a combination of top-down
and bottom-up approaches. Through a series of work
processes including risk identification, risk assessment, risk
response, risk monitoring, reporting and improvement, the
Group fully understands the major risks faced by the Group
and continuously monitors and manages the risks through
a closed-loop risk management process.

o Risk database with clear levels and prominent
focuses: Based on five risk categories, namely strategy,
market, operation, finance and law, and taking into account
the principles of comprehensiveness, importance, synergy
and standardisation, the Group has established a risk
database at different levels.

o Compliance with the Group’s risk assessment
criteria: We have established appropriate risk assessment
criteria based on the nature of the Company’s industry and
business objectives, and the management'’s risk appetite.

J Continuous improvement and optimisation mechanism:
The frequency of risk assessment (at least once a year) and
reporting and communication requirements are specified.
Through regular assessment, implementation and follow-up of
risk response measures, communication and reporting, the
Company continuously improves the risk management work
process and optimizes risk management measures.
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During the year, with the help of external consulting institutions,
the Group applied the assessment methods and assessment
criteria jointly confirmed by the management to evaluate, analyse
and prioritise the risks (including risks related to the environment,
society and governance) that would most likely affect the
realisation of corporate objectives, determine the key risks
exposed by the Group, and discuss the management measures
of such key risks. Meanwhile, for each major risk, the Company
sorted out and recorded the existing risk response measures,
proposed risk management improvement advices according to
the risk appetite of the management, and reported the
assessment results to the Audit Committee.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for establishing an appropriate internal
control system for the Group to safeguard the Group’s assets and
shareholders’ interests. The Audit Committee shall regularly
review the effectiveness of the internal control system to ensure
that the internal control system is adequate.

The Group has set up an audit and supervision department as the
third line of defense. Through internal audit and follow-up review
on the improvement of internal control deficiencies identified
during the audit process, the Group communicates with relevant
management, supervises the timely implementation of internal
control improvement measures, and provides the Board with
independent and objective opinions on the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems. At the
same time, the audit and supervision center have unrestricted
access to the documents and records, information systems and
staff necessary for the implementation of the audit procedures,
and reports the audit results to the Audit Committee.

The Group continues to improve the "CCNL Group Whistleblower
Management Regulations”, supports rational reporting and
establishes a dedicated channel to receive reports, supports
employees and other correspondents (such as customers or
suppliers) to raise their attention about any possible improper
matters concerning the Company through phone call, letters,
emails, visits, etc.. A whistleblower protection mechanism is also
established to keep whistleblowers’ information highly
confidential to prevent any illegal discrimination or retaliation.
Meanwhile, the Group attaches importance to employee integrity
management. We require all employees to sign and comply with
the Anti-Corruption Pledge. The internal integrity management is
enhaced through online and offline integrity trainings, which
cultivate a culture of integrity in our Group.
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As the first line of defense, the management at the Group's
headquarters and professional companies level and their
respective functional department managers have designed and
implemented a series of management policies and procedures to
ensure that their work is in compliance with laws, regulations
and the Company’s strategies and business objectives, and the
heads of relevant operating units and departments are
responsible for supervising the implementation and effectiveness
of such policies and procedures to ensure the effective operation
of the Company’s internal control system.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group is aware of its obligations under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules. With respect to the
procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company has formulated
the Guidelines on Management and Disclosure of Inside
Information, and announced the disclosure policy to the
Directors, senior management and relevant employees who may
have access to sensitive information, requiring them to comply
with the relevant procedures, handle confidential and/or inside
information according to the guidelines, monitor information
disclosure and respond to enquiries.

REVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

During the year under review, through the Audit Committee, the
Board has conducted a comprehensive review of the
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems, taking into account the changes in the nature
and severity of significant risks, and the Group’s ability to respond
to changes in its business and the external environment. The
work during the year included the commencement of 2022 risk
assessment and the commencement of internal control review
on key business areas, covering financial, operational and
compliance controls. The Board considers that the Group has
complied with the provisions on risk management and internal
control as stipulated in the Corporate Governance Code and
considered the risk management and internal control systems
effective and adequate.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience of the accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions, training programmes and
budget and considered that they are adequate.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to the
Shareholders to be its goal. In deciding whether to propose a
dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall
take into account, inter alia, the following factors:

the financial condition of the Group;

o the liquidity position and expected working capital
requirements of the Group;

o any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group's lenders;

o the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group; and

o any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and the Articles of Association of the Company.

Any final dividend declared by the Company must be approved
by an ordinary resolution of the Shareholders at an annual
general meeting of the Company and must not exceed the
amount recommended by the Board. The dividend policy will
continue to be reviewed from time to time and there can be no
assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any
specific period.

BOARD COMMITTEES AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the Nomination Committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) to oversee the relevant aspects of the Company’s
affairs. The three Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties.
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The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

c)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices in compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

e) to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Audit
Committee was established on 29 April 2020. The Audit
Committee comprises Ms. Xin Zhu (the Chairlady of the Audit
committee), Mr. Leong Chong and Ms. Luo Laura Ying during the
year ended 31 December 2022. None of them is a member of the
former or existing auditors of the Company. The Board is of the
view that the members of the Audit Committee have sufficient
accounting and financial management expertise and experience
to discharge their duties. However, the Audit Committee is also
authorised to obtain external legal or other independent
professional advice if it considers necessary.

The Audit Committee has written terms of reference in
accordance with the Code. The principal functions of the Audit
Committee include:

o To make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of external
independent auditors and to approve the remuneration and
terms of such appointments;

J To review and monitor the independence and objectivity of

the external independent auditors and effectiveness of the
audit process in accordance with applicable standards;
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To review the Company’s financial controls, risk
management and internal control systems and other major
financial matters;

To review the Group's financial and accounting policies and
practices, and to monitor the Company’s financial operation
and core business status;

To ensure that the management has fulfilled its duties and
the Group’s strategic objectives to maintain an effective
risk management and internal control system,

To ensure compliance with applicable statutory accounting
and reporting requirements, legal and regulatory
requirements, internal rules and procedures approved by
the Board from time to time; and

To review and monitor the integrity of the financial
statements, annual and interim reports and the auditor’s
report to ensure that the information presents a true and
balanced assessment of the Group’s financial position.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during 2022 and conducted
the following responsibilities:

1)

reviewed the Group’s annual results for the year ended 31
December 2021 and interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2022;

reviewed the audit plans and findings of the external
auditor; and

made recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
of the external auditor.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group as well as considered and
identified risks of the Group subsequent to 31 December 2022
and will continuously monitor the systems on a regular basis.

The Audit Committee also met with the external auditor annually
in the absence of management to discuss matters relating to any
issues arising from audit and any other matters the external
auditor may wish to raise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, the external independent
auditor’s remuneration to the Group’s auditor in respect of
annual audit and interim review services provided to the Group
amounted to approximately RMB3.1 million and RMB1.5 million.

The Company’s annual results announcement dated 24 March
2022 for the year ended 31 December 2022 has been reviewed
by the Audit Committee.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 29 April 2020
with written terms of reference as suggested under the code
provision in the Corporate Governance Code. The Nomination
committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Wang Jun (the
chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Leong Chong and
Ms. Xin Zhu, a majority of whom are independent non-executive
Directors.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include: (i)
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least once a year, and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes to the Board for conforming to the strategy of the
Company; (i) identifying and nominating qualified individuals to act
as Directors and making recommendations to the Board regarding
such matters; (jii) assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors; (iv) making recommendations to the
Board regarding the appointment or reappointment of Directors
and succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer; and (v) reviewing the Board
Diversity Policy (as defined below), and the implementation of the
progress targets set by such policy.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee shall attend the
annual general meeting of the Company to answer questions
raised by the Shareholders on Directors’ nomination and other
nomination policy matters.

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy with effect
on 29 April 2020 which sets out its approach to achieve and
maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board.
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The Company recognises the benefits of Board diversity and
endeavours to ensure that the Board has the appropriate and
balanced skill levels, experience and perspectives to support the
execution of its business strategies. The Company seeks to
achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a number of
factors, including professional qualifications and experience,
cultural and educational background, race and ethnicity, gender,
age and length of service. The Company will also take into
consideration factors based on its own business model and
specific needs from time to time in determining the optimum
composition of the Board.

As recommended by the Nomination Committee, the Board has
set measurable objectives (in terms of gender, skills and
experience) to implement the Board Diversity Policy and review
such objectives from time to time to ensure their appropriateness
and ascertain the progress made towards achieving those
objectives. The Nomination Committee will review the Board
Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its continued
effectiveness from time to time.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 29 April 2020
with written terms of reference as suggested under the code
provision in the Corporate Governance Code. The Remuneration
committee comprises three members, including two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Luo Laura Ying
(the Chairlady of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Leong
Chong, and Mr. Wang Jun (the Chairman and executive Director
of the Company), during the year ended 31 December 2022.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include (but
not limited to) (i) making recommendations to the Board on the
Ccompany's policies and structures for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration; (ii) determining the terms of the specific
remuneration package of individual executive Directors and
senior management, and (iii) reviewing and approving
remuneration proposal by reference to corporate objectives set
by the Directors from time to time.
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The amount of the executive Directors’ remuneration is
determined by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of the
relevant executive Directors’ experience, responsibility, workload
and the time devoted to the Group. The entire Directors’
remuneration is adjusted by the Remuneration Committee from
time to time.

The Remuneration Committee may also consult the Chairman on
proposals relating to the remuneration of other executive
Directors and has access to professional advice if necessary.

COMPANY SECRETARY

In compliance with Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules, the Company
Secretary is a full time employee and has the day-to-day
knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary is
responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters. For the year under review, the Company Secretary has
confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be held each year
at the place as may be determined by the Board. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be called
an extraordinary general meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting and Put Forward
Proposals Thereat

The following procedures for the Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting are prepared in accordance with
Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company:

1) One or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition.
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2)  The requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and
must be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by
one or more of those Shareholders.

3)  The requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary via mail to the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Room 7708B, 77th Floor,
International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

4)  The extraordinary general meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of the requisition.

5)  If the Directors fail to proceed to convene the extraordinary
general meeting within twenty-one (21) days of the deposit
of such requisition, the Shareholder(s) himself or
themselves may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by him/her/them as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
Shareholder(s) by the Company.

Proposals for Proposing a Person for Election as a
Director

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, including the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules and the
Articles of Association as amended from time to time, the
Company may from time to time in a general meeting by ordinary
resolution elect any person to be a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an additional Director.

A Shareholder may propose a person (the “Person”) for election
as a Director by lodging the following documents at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Room
7708B, 77th Floor, International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road
West, Kowloon, Hong Kong:

1) anotice in writing signed by the Shareholder concerned of
his/her/its intention to propose the Person as a Director
with full particulars of the Person including his/her full
name and biographical details as required under Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; and
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2) a notice in writing signed by the Person of his/her
willingness to be elected as a Director.

Such notices shall be lodged at least seven (7) days prior to the
date of the general meeting and the period for lodgment of such
notices shall commence no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and shall be at least seven (7) days in length.

Procedures for Raising Enquiries

To ensure effective communication between the Board and the
Shareholders, the Company has adopted a Shareholders’
communication policy:

1) Shareholders may direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company'’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited.

2)  Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary or the Chief Financial Officer whose contact
details are as follows:

Central China New Life Limited
Room 7708B,

77th Floor,

International Commerce Centre,
1 Austin Road West,

Kowloon, Hong Kong

3)  Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION AND
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The Company’'s Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association are available on both the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. There had been no changes in the
constitutional documents of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2022. Nevertheless, Shareholders should note that
the Company is proposing to amend its existing Articles of
Association. Please see the circular for the Company’s 2023 AGM
dated 4 April 2023.
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CORPORATE COMMUNICATION AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The major task and objective of the Group’s investor relations are
to clearly introduce the Group, including the business positioning,
existing operations and future development of the Group, to the
media, Shareholders, investors, analysts and investment banks
through different communication channels. In future, the Group
shall further enhance communication with the media,
Shareholders, investors, analysts and investment banks on
various aspects such as development strategies, operation and
management, financial prospects and business operation
through meetings, senior management'’s participation in investor
forums, conferences and roadshows. The Group is confident in
establishing and maintaining a good relationship with the
international capital institutions through the continued
enhancement of information transparency.

The Group emphasises the importance of maintaining good
communication with the Shareholders, so as to increase the
Company’s transparency and understanding by the Shareholders.
To enable that the Shareholders are effectively informed of the
Group's status and developments, the Group issues
announcements, circulars, notices, interim and annual reports in
a timely manner. To enhance the Company’s transparency, other
information about the Company is published on the Company'’s
website.

The Company’s annual general meetings allow the Directors to
meet and communicate with the Shareholders and to answer any
queries that the Shareholders may have. An external
independent auditor is also present at the annual general
meetings. The Chairman will propose separate resolutions for
each issue to be considered at the annual general meetings. A
notice of annual general meeting is delivered to all Shareholders
at least 20 clear business days prior to the date of the meeting,
setting out details of each proposed resolution and other
information. Voting results are posted on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange.

During the Year, the Board has reviewed the shareholders
communication policy.
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SSREHEERBER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Jun, aged 42, was appointed as our Director on 16
October 2018, appointed as our chairman of our Board and chief
executive officer and redesignated as our executive Director of
the Group on 28 October 2019. On 14 February 2022, Mr. Wang
ceased to be the Company'’s chief executive officer in order to
separate the roles of chairman and chief executive with a view to
further optimise the corporate governance structure of the
Company and enable a greater delineation of responsibilities. Mr.
Wang is mainly responsible for formulating our business
strategies, annual operational and financial plans.

Mr. Wang joined our Group in June 2018. Since June 2018, Mr.
Wang has been a director of Central China New Life and is mainly
responsible for formulating and executing business strategies,
annual operational and financial plans.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Wang had more than 16 years of
experience in the accounting and corporate finance fields. From
August 2003 to June 2007, Mr. Wang served as an auditor and a
senior auditor successively at PricewaterhouseCoopers. From
June 2007 to April 2011, he served as the head of the investor
relations department and senior manager of the finance
department of Country Garden Holdings Company Limited (284
EEAE B BR 22 7)) (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 2007) successively. From May 2011 to June 2018, he
worked in the investment banking division (real estate team) of
Morgan Stanley Asia International Limited, with the last position
held as an executive director.

Mr. Wang also holds directorship positions in two other listed
companies. Mr. Wang was appointed as the executive director of
CCRE on 21 August 2018 and was resigned on 1 August 2022. Mr.
Wang was also appointed as a non-executive director of DIT
Group Limited GERE ERHREEBPR A F]) (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 726) on 17 September 2019.

Mr. Wang obtained his bachelor’'s degree in English from
Guangdong University of Foreign Studies (B IMEINE KE) in
the PRC in June 2002 and his master’s degree in business
administration from Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in November 2011.
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Mr. Wang has an interest in the shares of the Company, details of
which are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares or debentures” under Directors’ report in this annual
report.

Mr. Shi Shushan

Mr. Shi, aged 50, was appointed as our chief executive officer on
14 February 2022 and appointed as an executive Director of the
Group on 3 February 2023.

Mr. Shi has over 25 years of experience in sales and marketing,
customer relations, property development, property
management and business operations. Since Mr.Shi joined CCRE
in February 2004, he has served various managerial positions in
the CCRE Group. Between February 2004 and November 2004,
Mr. Shi served as a manager of demand survey department of
the customer relations centre of the CCRE Group. Between
December 2004 and May 2005, Mr. Shi served as a manager of
the management department of East and South Henan region.
Between June 2005 and February 2009, Mr. Shi served as the
general manager of Zhumadian regional office. Between March
2009 and January 2010, Mr. Shi served as the executive vice
president of the CCRE Group and the general manager of product
management centre. Since February 2010, Mr. Shi served as the
vice president of the CCRE Group and the general manager of
various regional head offices such as Luoyang region and
western region. Through these positions, Mr. Shi acquired
substantial experience and expertise in the real estate industry
and demonstrated strong leadership skill, which will be highly
relevant to his tenure as chief executive officer of the Group.
Prior to this, Mr. Shi spent nearly a decade serving as an engineer
in a hydraulic equipment company in Zhengzhou.

Mr. Shi obtained his bachelor’s degree in welding technology and
equipment from Zhengzhou University of Technology in June
1996 and his master’s degree in business administration from
Zhengzhou University in June 2004.

SSEXEHEEBER

FTRERARBBR D HHEBEER  FHEHARAEF
EHRETEEERENEETRTIETBRAER
Betn ~ BRI B FT R SORE | & -

sEELEE

LS 505%  M2022F 2 AABRRERER
HITE  YR202B8F2A3RBEZERAEEH
TES-

E%ifiﬁﬁﬁiﬂ%imﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ BPBE -
MEFRE MEEBREBEELR - LEER
2004 F2AMAREMECRESBRETZET
IRBEAT - 2004 F2 A2 2004F 11 B » LR EET
EESERFPHET LT RKFAEHLE - 2004 F
12AZE2005F58  REEEFTERREREARERE
R4 IR o 2005¢6ﬁ FE2009F 28 LEEEMS
BF B JE 30 2 Bl 44K T2 » 20094E 3 A = 20104 1
A Ef‘ai%&k%%l%ﬂﬁgu,ﬁ@ﬁ%%ma
EPN@?&EO B2010F2 A8+ LR EREEE

ERlBHREn Al ARSEZ AR B8
Z«%% SRERBEEBRUESKERMETE
ARG  EEKARNEERE  HHE
EEAEEEERNTEMs 2@EE - NI ZAT -
S 5 A AR — SR K T HE L A T HE E TIZHD 5
A o

SEREMI96F6 AEBMNITEARBERFREET
HWE BB T 2R 2004 F 6 A EF BN K
TREEBETEM -

BREFETARAT / B FER 87



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESSEREHEEEBER

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wu Lam Li, (former name: Li Lin), aged 66, was appointed
as our non-executive Director of our Group on 28 October 2019.
Since she joined our Group as a director in September 2016, Ms.
Wu has been mainly responsible for reviewing and supporting
our overall corporate and business development and strategic
planning of our Group. Ms. Wu is the spouse of Mr. Wu, one of
our Controlling Shareholders. Ms. Wu is also a director of various
subsidiaries of our Group.

Ms. Wu has also been serving in various positions in the CCRE
Group, including (i) legal representative and general manager of
Henan Central China Zhizun Hotel Investment Company Limited
(X8 B/EEE AR AR, a subsidiary of CCRE China (a
subsidiary of CCRE), since June 2010; (i) the vice president of
CCRE China since April 2017; and (iii) a director of Kaifeng Central
China Dahong Xibeihu Hotel Management Co., Ltd. (F¥fEE X
ZREOALEEEE AR A 7)), a subsidiary of CCRE China.

Ms. Wu obtained her bachelor’s degree in radio autocontrol from
Zhengzhou University (&8N X&) in the PRC in November 1979.

Ms. Wu has an interest in the shares of the Company, details of
which are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares or debentures” under Directors’ report in this annual
report.

Ms. Dai Jiling, aged 49, was appointed as our non-executive
Director on 24 March 2023. Ms. Dai is mainly responsible for
reviewing and supporting our overall corporate and business
development and strategic planning of our Group.
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Ms. Dai has over 29 years of experience in journalism and KLz +TRFERELLSE S EEG B 29FLEH o
business operations. Between August 1993 and February 2001, 199348 8 E200142 8 + RL IS ERAEIRLE
she served as a reporter at Anyang TV Station. Between February 2001428 E200943H WA B P R ER &
2001 and March 2009, she served as a reporter at China Central  ([FRRERE ) FTE R ORGEBEEEE + 2009
Television ("CCTV") News Center Interview Department. Between 43 A £201945 F - A R TR &0 /g 28 & b
March 2009 and May 2019, she served successively as the chief L EFEELERILE - B2019F5 %8 - %
reporter and manager of CCTV Henan Reporter Station. Since #EFREMERMER AT NEWB AT (B
May 2019, she has served as the vice president of the CCRE  H£E aIEE - W EBETEZEEEELZZIEZR
Group, and has also served successively as the deputy secretary LEZEZRUREEZESG  BEER Tt LEE .
of the CCP Committee, the secretary of the Discipline Inspection  @RiEITiE  ARXE% ZTERELBXEERE
Committee and the secretary of the CCP Committee of the CCRE ~ &E3I2 T {F -

Group, where she overseas the party building, audit and

supervision, brand building, public welfare, customer service and

general management of the CCRE Group.

Ms. Dai obtained her bachelor’s degree in journalism from RZ+MR2002F7 AESHMNAELHEEE L2
Zhengzhou University in July 2002. i o

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS B I EHITESE

Mr. Leong Chong, aged 57, was appointed as our independent R ELE  575% © N 202054 B29 BEZE AR
non-executive Director of our Group on 29 April 2020. Mr. Leong EEBYIFRITEE - BEATEZEA SRR MD
is primarily responsible for providing independent judgment on B ~ Bk~ R - HEH - BB BEEZER
our strategies, policy, performance, accountability, resources,  1T/&iR & IR B HIHT -

key appointments and standard of conduct.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Leong had over 20 years of fEMAREER] 0 2EAN S RILEE A B 20F
experience in the finance field. From July 1997 to June 2000, he 48 & - B 199747 A E 2000 6 A » HEFER
worked as an analyst in the equity research division of Morgan  +HFREAREF T IO TED - B2000F6 A &
Stanley Dean Witter. From June 2000 to October 2001, he wasa 2001410 A - £ #& £ Credit Suisse First Boston
director of the equity research department of Credit Suisse First  (Hong Kong) Limited BEERF 7S5 F © B 20024 6
Boston (Hong Kong) Limited. From June 2002 to September 2015, A Z 201549 B - E BB R+ 5 525 0GR
he worked in Morgan Stanley Asia Limited with the last position A& » SEIEENB AR ERITHESELIE
held as the managing director of the investment banking division. B 2016512 AZ2019E3 A - HIE(T)B L %%
From December 2016 to March 2019, he was the deputy general BB A Al (—RNFEINFEEFZ S ETH AR
manager of S.F. Holding Co., Ltd. (B2 H AR AR]), a BFHMATE : 002352)FI424 18 - 2019411 AL -
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: ZRE4EEZFARELTERERERAT(—XK
002352). Mr. Leong has been appointed as an independent non- — AEEZ AT ETEYAF] - BRIDAEE - 2231) B JEH
executive director of JY Grandmark Holdings Limited (¥ & & 178 = - 244N R 2023F 1 BESE AL
BN AR A R) (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock &£ EZRRAER AT (BT EmAF - RO
code: 2231) since November 2019. Mr. Leong has also been  960) &7 JEHITESE o

appointed as an independent non-executive director of Longfor

Group Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange,

stock code: 960) since January 2023.
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Mr. Leong was a director of Gateway Capital Group Limited (E2[&
AE£EARAR]), a company incorporated in Hong Kong and
was dissolved on 9 August 2002. Mr. Leong confirmed that the
above company was solvent prior to its deregistration and was
deregistered as it had not commenced business since
establishment or had ceased to conduct business. He further
confirmed that, as of the Latest Practicable Date, no claims have
been made against him and he was not aware of any threatened
or potential claims made against him and there are no
outstanding claims and/or liabilities as a result of the
deregistration of the above company.

Mr. Leong obtained his bachelor’'s degree in computer science
from the University of California, Berkeley in the U.S. in December
1990.

Ms. Luo Laura Ying, aged 58, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director of our Group on 29 April
2020. Ms. Luo is primarily responsible for providing independent
judgment on our strategies, policy, performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and standard of conduct.

Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Luo had over 20 years of
experience in the investment field. From 1995 to 1999, Ms. Luo
worked in various well-known investment banks including
Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. and Morgan Stanley Dean Witter.
From November 1999 to July 2001, she was the head of China
research of the research department of SG Securities (HK)
Limited. From July 2001 to July 2013, Ms. Luo worked in Schroders
Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited, with the last
position held as an equity fund manager. From September 2013
to September 2019, she worked in Barings Asset Management
(Asia) Limited, with the last position held as the managing
director. Ms. Luo has been a consultant of GL Capital
Management Limited since December 2019 and subsequently
transferred to GL China Equity HK Management Limited in May
2020. Ms. Luo Laura Ying has been appointed as an investment
director and responsible officer of GL China Equity HK
Management Limited since August 2022. She has been an
independent non-executive director of China Medical System
Holdings Limited (EZ#5 22 4E AR B R A 7]) (@ company listed on
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 867) since March 2020. She has
also been appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3382) since March 2023.
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Ms. Luo was a director of eShine Technology Limited (faZ R A
FR /A &), a company established in Hong Kong and was dissolved
on 17 August 2018. Ms. Luo confirmed that the above company
was solvent prior to its deregistration and was deregistered as it
had not commenced business since establishment or had ceased
to conduct business. She further confirmed that, as of the Latest
Practicable Date, no claims have been made against her and she
was not aware of any threatened or potential claims made
against her and there are no outstanding claims and/or liabilities
as a result of the deregistration of the above company.

Ms. Luo obtained her bachelor’'s degree in international
economics from Peking University (3t 52 A22) in the PRC in July
1987 and her master’s degree in business administration from
the University of Toronto in Canada in June 1991. Ms. Luo has
been as a chartered financial analyst by the Chartered Financial
Analyst Institute since September 1999 and a chartered
professional accountant by the Chartered Professional
Accountants of British Columbia since June 1995.

Ms. Xin Zhu, aged 54, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director of our Group on 29 April 2020. Ms. Xin is
primarily responsible for providing independent judgment on our
strategies, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standard of conduct.
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Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Xin had over 25 years of
experience in the accounting industry as well as executive
management in public companies. From 1990 to 2008, Ms. Xin
worked in various accounting firms and finance corporations,
including Shenzhen Shekou Chinese Accountancy where she
served as an accountant, and Shenzhen Brewery Limited where
she served as the chief financial officer. Since February 2006 and
up to present, Ms. Xin has been serving in various companies
listed on the Stock Exchange, including listed companies
engaging in the business of property development in the PRC.
From February 2006 to June 2008, she worked in Hopson
Development Holdings Limited (A £ AIREB AR AR (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 00754), with
the last position held as the vice president. From July 2008 to
June 2014, she worked in China Aoyuan Group Limited (R Bl &2 &
E£BRM AR AR (a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 3883), with the last concurrent positions held as the
executive director and executive vice president. From July 2014
to September 2016, she served successively as (i) the chief
financial officer of Logan Property Holdings Company Limited (&
FeHEFERR AR A ) (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 3380) and (ii) the executive vice president of
Guangzhou Yihe Real Estate Group Limited (& /M8 R 2 &= ).
Since June 2018, she has also been an independent non-
executive director of CanSino Biologics Inc. (B 757 £ ¥R {72 )
(a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 6185), a
company engaging in the development, manufacturing and sales
of vaccines. Since November 2020, she has also been an
independent non-executive director of Datang Group Limited (X
EEEBEIER AR A R]) (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 2117), a company engaging in the business of
property development in the PRC. Since April 2021, she has been
an independent non-executive director of Suxin Joyful Life
Services Co., Ltd. E#FELAEREHD AR A F]) (@ company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2152).

Ms. Xin obtained her bachelor’s degree in accounting from
Renmin University of China (B A ERXZ8) in the PRC in July 1990
and her master’s degree in business administration from
Auckland Institute of Studies in New Zealand in December 1999.
Ms. Xin has been a certified public accountant of the PRC since
February 1996 and a member of the CPA Australia since January
2010.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Shi Shushan

For the details, please refer to the above paragraph headed
"Executive Directors”.
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The Board presents the annual report with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of property
management and value-added services, lifestyle services and
commercial property management and consultation services. An
analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December
2022 by principal activities is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Discussion and analysis of the business review required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group and an indication of likely future development in the
Group'’s business, can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement”
set out on pages 34 to 43 and the "Management Discussion and
Analysis” set out on pages from 45 to 62 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. The Group
operates its business in compliance with applicable
environmental protection laws and regulations and has
implemented relevant environmental protection measures in
compliance with the required standards under applicable PRC
laws and regulations. Further details of the Group's
environmental policies and performance will be disclosed in the
environmental, social and governance report of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2022 to be published in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has
complied in all material aspects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group. During the year ended 31 December
2022, there was no material breach of, or non-compliance, with
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

The Group fully understands that employees, customers and
suppliers are the key to our sustainable and stable development.
We are committed to establishing a close relationship with our
employees, enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and
providing high-quality products and services to our customers so
as to ensure the Group's sustainable development.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Management considers there to be three operating segments
under the requirements of HKFRS 8.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
state of the Group's affairs as at the date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 143 to 149 of this annual report.

RESULT AND DIVIDENDS

Profit attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of
RMB562,260,000 (2021: RMB619,559,000) have been transferred
to reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The Board resolved to recommend a final dividend of HK$19.1
cents (equivalent to RMB17.0 cents) per share for the year ended
31 December 2022 (for the year ended 31 December 2021:
HK$33.7 cents) to be paid out of the Company’s share premium
account.

HK$21.1 cents per share (for the six months ended 30 June 2021:
HK$14.5 cents) was distributed as interim dividend for the six
months ended 30 June 2022.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS
For the purposes of determining shareholders’ eligibility to attend
and vote at the 2023 AGM, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Monday, 8 May 2023 to Thursday,
11 May 2023 (both days inclusive), during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. All properly completed share
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wan chai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 5 May 2023, for registration.
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For the purposes of determining the entitlement of the
shareholders to the proposed final Dividend, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 17
May 2023 to Friday, 19 May 2023 (both days inclusive), which no
transfer of shares will be registered. All properly completed share
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s
Road East, Wan chai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 16 May 2023 for registration.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated
assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 284 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option schemes and share award scheme as
set out below, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by
the Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December 2022.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 20 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out
in note 31 to the financial statements and in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity, respectively.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s distributable reserves
were RMB1,018.4 million.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 20.1%
of the Group’s total purchases and purchases from the largest
supplier amounted to approximately 10.8% of the Group'’s total
purchases. Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted
for approximately 30.6% of the Group'’s total turnover and sales
to the largest customer amounted to approximately 28.6% of the
Group's total turnover.

Save as disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements, to the
best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates or any Shareholder owning more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital, had any interest in the
Group's five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The Directors in office during the year ended 31 December 2022
and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jun (Chairman)

Mr. Shi Shushan (appointed on 3 February 2023)
Mr. Wang Qian (resigned on 3 February 2023)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Wu Lam Li

Ms. Dai liling (appointed on 24 March 2023)
Ms. Min Huidong (resigned on 24 March 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Leong Chong

Ms. Luo Laura Ying

Ms. Xin Zhu
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Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election. Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association,
at every annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. In accordance with Article 83(3), 84(1) and
84(2) of the Articles of Association, Mr. Wang Jun, Mr. Shi
Shushan, Ms. Dai liling and Ms. Xin Zhu, therefore, will retire from
their offices at the AGM, and being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based
on such information, the Company still considers the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 86 to 92
of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date or their date of appointment,
which may be terminated by not less than three months' notice
in writing served by either party on the other.

Each of our non-executive Directors and our independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from the
Listing Date, which may be terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.
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None of our Directors has any existing or proposed service
contracts with any member of our Group (excluding contracts
expiring or determinable by the employer within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation)).

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save for the relevant transactions as disclosed in note 33 to the
financial statements or the connected transactions described in
this report, none of the Directors or an entity connected with the
Director had a material beneficial interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party, nor any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance has been entered into
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2022 or as at 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the Directors
or any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) was considered to be interested in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

All Directors are entitled to a fee as approved by the Board with
reference to the prevailing market conditions. Executive Directors
are entitled to fees, salaries, housing allowances, other
allowances, benefits in kind (including contribution to the pension
scheme on behalf of our Directors) or discretionary bonuses,
which are determined by the Board having regard to the Group’s
performance and the prevailing market conditions and approved
by the remuneration committee of the Company. Details of
Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of five highest paid
individuals of the Company are set out in notes 33 and 10 to the
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
directors (the "Directors”) and chief executives of the Company
in the shares (the “Shares”), underlying Shares and debentures
(the “Debentures”) of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or
pursuant to the Model Code in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules,
were as follows or as disclosed under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” below:

(@) Long positions in the Shares and underlying
Shares of the Company
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EERITERITHRASRIRG - HEAR
REESFPRESRIXE

2022612310 - ARAEH(EE) L+
ZITBABRARRREBEEE (EERESFM
HIE GO RBEMRG DFEXVE) 2B (TR
@) BB RES(TEE]) P HEEREES
MEEIGPIFEI2GERELNARARREFE
E’Jﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁlﬂq‘ﬂﬁ%}% S5 LG RPIEXVERET K

8D BB ARIE AR RIBT 8%+ 2 R ~F AIZA
%D”SK T&Eﬁ*“ﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂf’cﬂ%‘ KoRB T (3R
TX [FERERT 8] —fRE) ¢

(@) REQXAROREBROPHERE

Approximate
percentage of the
interest in the

Name of Director or Capacity and Number of share Number of Company'’s issued
chief executive nature of interest options held" Shares held share capital?
BREARDRSHIT
EEYIETHRABHSR BORERNE s RERE FREROBE REANENBEIL?
Mr. Wang Jun Interest in a controlled - 45,398,000 3.55%
corporation

TRESE XEEERER

Ms. Min Huidong (resigned on Beneficial owner - 5,246,484 0.41%
24 March 2023)

MERLL (R2023F3H24H EnBEAA
Akt

Ms. Wu Lam Li Interest of a spouse - 848,092,944 66.32%

E37 Fi {8 2 s

Mr. Wang Qian (resigned on Beneficial owner 9,338,000 - 0.73%
3 February 2023

FHAE(R2023F2H3HFE) BmnBEA

Notes: et -

1. Such interest in the Shares is held pursuant to the share options 1. BRER MR IREE X AR S A ERERT

granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme or the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme (both as defined below), the details of
which are disclosed on pages 101 to 107 of this annual report.

2. The approximate percentage of the interest in the Company’s
issued share capital is based on a total of 1,278,726,000 Shares
of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2022.

3. Such share options lapsed following Mr. Wang Qian’s
resignation.

EERARBERBRETE(ERHEL T
RERBERENRE - FEERAFERSEE
101£107 8 °

2. A RBREHITRANMOE D RN
202F12A3NBARAE ZHITRHEH
1,278,726,000 (3t E -

3. EHEBEENIEEEREREIM -
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(b) Long position in the shares of our associated
corporation

(b) REEEEROTHNEE

Percentage of

interests in the

associated

Class and corporation as at

Name of associated = Nature of number of 31 December

Name of Director corporation interest securities held 2020

72020 F

12A31H

Fits 585 REBEE R

EEME A EE AR ERtE 53 - §C| Emnaak

Ms. Wu Lam Li Enjoy Start Limited Interest of a spouse 1 ordinary share 100%
ES St Bl BRAE A (8 2 A 1R E AR

Save as disclosed above or under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” below, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors, chief executives of the Company or their associates
had any interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which the Directors and
chief executives were deemed or taken to have under the
provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be and are
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

100
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(a)

Pre-IPO share option scheme

The pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”) was conditionally adopted by the
Shareholders on 29 April 2020.

Purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentive or reward eligible participants for their
past and continuing contribution to the Group.

Participants of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
Eligible participants include any director, employee,
customer, supplier, agent, partner, consultant, shareholder
or contractor (or trustees or companies beneficially owned
by any of the above), in each case of the Group or an
associate company in which the Group is a shareholder.

Maximum number of Shares

The Company granted two batches of share options to
subscribe for 45,000,000 shares pursuant to the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Options”) on 3
January 2019 and 10 January 2019. No further Pre-IPO
Share Options will be granted. As at 31 December 2022, the
Pre-IPO Share Options to subscribe for 540,000 Shares
(representing approximately 0.04% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this report)
remained outstanding.

Limit for each participant

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to any individual
grantee shall not exceed 1.0% of the total issued Shares
immediately upon its listing (without taking into account
any Shares which may be allotted and issued upon the
exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Options and the Post-IPO
Share Options), unless approved by the shareholders of the
Company.
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BERAHRENIBRET BB HEE
EERZ2EERRFIMNES  BE TP
HeEm - RE a8 A  BR - BRRIEE
B(HXFEATH ERENAESEENR
) EE-—RBEIAT #HBREEXEH
RERMEZE QT -

RERGEE

RAFF201941 A3 8 % 20191510 H
RAR B XA S BT BB AR 5 8195 R BERE
BE(ERLABREABRE] AE
45,000,000 3% f& 15 « BIBBZEEZHRXAFH
B PIEEANAE o 1 20224E12 A 318 - A
R85 540,000 BBz 9 (1 AR A BRI AR5 B A7
BEBITRAL004%) E X AREERE
BRAE R RATE o

EBHEENRE
BRIFSBIARRRBRAME - TREITER
FAEAEA AR AR BRER - ERITME
BITHERERNEE MEEBERE EWiR
BRBITRD B 88 1.0% CRETABETE EIX
NFAEITRIB AN B R AR BITIR AR
i R BEAC B M BT RO EAATA D) ©
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Option period and vesting

The Pre-IPO Share Options may be exercised according to
the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme in whole or
in part by the grantee after vesting but before the expiry of
five years after the vesting date. Any option which remains
unexercised shall lapse upon the expiry of such option
period.

The Pre-IPO Share Options will be vested in 3 tranches as
follows, provided that the annual performance appraisal
target set by the Group for the relevant financial year is
satisfied:

° 30% of the total number of the options will be vested
six months immediately following the Listing Date;

. 30% of the total number of the options will be vested
12 months immediately following the Listing Date;
and

. 40% of the total number of the options will be vested
24 months immediately following the Listing Date.

Payment on acceptance of offer and exercise price
Each grantee was required to pay HK$1 as consideration
for the acceptance of the grant of the Pre-IPO Share
Options. The exercise price is HK$0.62 per Share, which
was determined by the Board.

Remaining life of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme took effect upon the
listing of the Company and shall remain in full force and
effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise
of any options granted prior thereto.

For details, please see the prospectus of the Company
dated 5 May 2020.
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Movement of the Pre-IPO Share Options for the year ended

31 December 2022 was as follows:
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NEE202F12A3MBIEFEE  §XAH
BERBREZZFHNOT

Exercise Asat  Granted Exercised Forfeited As at
Name or category price 1 January during during during 31 December
of participants Date of grant  per share 2022  theyear theyear  the year 2022
R2022 % #2022 F
SEERARER REBHE SRTEE 118 SRBYE FRTE  FARk 12A318
Directors
=
Min Huidong 3 January 2019 HK$0.62 1,800,000 - (1,800,000) - -
(resigned on 24 March 2023)
HER 2019 1H3H 0.6257T
(R2023€3A24 A##)
10 January 2019 HK$0.62 720,000 - (720,000) - -
2019F1A10H 06287
CaiBin 3 January 2019 HK$0.62 1,980,000 - (1,980,000) - -
(resigned on 26 March 2021)
B (R202143 526 H##) 201951838 0628
Others
Hith
Senior management and other 3 January 2019 HK$0.62 7,335,000 - (7,335,000) - -
employees of the Group ?
TEERREEEREMES? 201961838 0628
10 January 2019 HKS$0.62 4,046,000 - (3,506,000) - 540,000
201918108 06237
15,881,000 - (15,341,000 - 540,000
Notes: Hfat -
1. None of the options granted to any participant would result in 1. MER2EERHNBRESTSERNEE

the Shares issued and to be issued in respect of all options
granted to such person (excluding any options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the scheme) in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant to represent in

aggregate over 1% of the Shares in issue.

2. All such employees are employees of the Group and fall within
the meaning of “employee participants” under Chapter 17 of

Listing Rules.

BRXLAH(BEZA) L1218 A HE5tE
ZALEHNAA BRE (T REREBIG
RERBEEMBERE) 2 BT REETHR
& HBBEEHITIRMHE 1% -

2 FARZEELAREEIES LKA LTE
I 17 EET [EESEE ]| 0B -
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3. The fair value of options granted on 3 January 2019 and 10
January 2019 under Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme determined
using the binomial option-pricing model was approximately
RMB20.8 million. Due to the subjective nature of and uncertainty
related to a number of assumptions of the expected future
performance input to the binomial model as well as certain
inherent limitations of the model itself, the calculation is subject
to certain fundamental limitations. The value of share options
varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions,
and any change to the variables used may materially affect the
estimation of the fair value of the share options. Please refer to
note 2.18 headed "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
— Share-based payments” and note 22 headed “Share-based
Payments” to the consolidated financial statements for details
(including the accounting policy).

4. No share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were
cancelled or lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2022.

5. The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately
before the date on which the options were exercised was
HK$3.46.

Post-IPO share option scheme

The post-IPO share option scheme (the “Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme”) was conditionally adopted by the
Shareholders in compliance with Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules on 29 April 2020.

Purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
motivate eligible persons to optimise their future
contributions to the Group and/or to reward them for their
past contributions, to attract and retain or otherwise
maintain on- going relationships with the eligible persons
who are significant to and/or whose contributions are or
will be beneficial to the performance, growth or success of
the Group, and additionally in the case of Executives, to
enable the Group to attract and retain individuals with
experience and ability and/or to reward them for their past
contributions.
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Participants of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
Eligible participants include any of the following persons
that are invited at the Board's sole discretion: any director
or proposed director (including an independent non-
executive director) of any member of the Group, any
executive director of, manager of, or other employee
holding an executive, managerial, supervisory or similar
position in, any member of the Group (an “Employee”),
any proposed Employee, any full-time or part-time
Employee, or a person for the time being seconded to work
full-time or part-time for any member of the Group, a
consultant, business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
contractor, agent or representative of any member of the
Group, a person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support or any
advisory, consultancy, professional or other services to any
member of the Group, or an associate (as defined under
the Listing Rules) of any of the foregoing persons.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the total number of Shares in issue as of the Listing
Date, being 120,000,000 Shares (the “Scheme Mandate
Limit"). Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit. The
Scheme Mandate Limit may be refreshed with the approval
of the Shareholders in general meeting. At any time, the
maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and not yet
exercised under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of our Company to the
eligible persons must not exceed 30% of the total number
of Shares in issue from time to time.

Limit for each participant

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to any one eligible
participant (including exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in
issue from time to time.
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Each grant of options to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Group or any of their
respective close associates under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme shall be approved by the independent non-
executive Directors of the Company (excluding the
independent non-executive Director who is the proposed
grantee of the option). Where any grant of options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Group or any of their respective close
associates would result in the securities issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options already granted and
which may be granted (including options exercised,
canceled and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant: (a)
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue;,
and (b) having an aggregate value, based on the closing
price of the Shares at the date of each grant, in excess of
HK$5 million, such further grant of options must be
approved by the Shareholders.

Option period

The option period shall be determined by the Board. Any
option which remains unexercised shall lapse upon the
expiry of the option period. An option shall be subject to
such terms and conditions (if any) as may be determined
by the Board and specified in the offer of the option,
including any vesting schedule and/or conditions, any
minimum period for which any option must be held before
it can be exercised and/or any performance target which
need to be achieved by an option-holder before the option
can be exercised.

Payment on acceptance of offer and exercise price
The subscription price in respect of any particular option
shall be such price as our Board may in its absolute
discretion determine at the time of grant of the relevant
option (and shall be stated in the letter containing the offer
of the grant of the option) but the subscription price shall
not be less than whichever is the highest of:

()  the nominal value of Share;

(i) the closing price of Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date;
and

(i) the average of the closing prices of Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the
five business days immediately preceding the offer
date.
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Remaining life of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing on the
Listing Date, after which period no further options will be
granted but the provisions of the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme shall remain in full force and effect to the extent
necessary to give effect to the exercise of any options
granted prior thereto which are at that time or become
thereafter capable of exercise under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme, or otherwise to the extent as may be
required in accordance with the provisions of the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme

For details, please see the prospectus of the Company
dated 5 May 2020.

On 12 July 2021, the Company granted Post-IPO Share
Options to eligible participants to subscribe for an
aggregate of up to 11,738,000 Shares. As at 31 December
2022, the Post-IPO Share Options to subscribe for
92,381,000 Shares (representing approximately 7.22% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
this report) remained outstanding. The closing price of the
share immediately before the date of the grant was
HK$6.92.

Movement of the Post-IPO Share Options for the year
ended 31 December 2022 was as follows:
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Exercise Asat  Granted Exercised Forfeited As at
Name or category price 1 January during during during 31 December
of participants Date of grant  per share 2022 theyear  theyear  the year 2022
#2022 % #2022 F
SRELZIER RitAH BRTEE 1818  ERRE FATE  FRRK 12A31H
Directors
=
Wang Qian 12 July 2021 HK$7.18 9,338,000 - - - 9,338,000
(resigned on 3 February 2023) ©
FR(R2023F2H3057EE)0 2021F7A128 7188
Others
Hits
Senior management and other 12 July 2021 HK$7.18 2,400,000 - - - 2,400,000
employees of the Group ?)
TEESREREREMESY 202157128 718
11,738,000 - - - 11,738,000
Remaining scheme mandate limit 63,262,000 63,262,000
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Note:

1. None of the options granted to any participant would result in
the Shares issued and to be issued in respect of all options
granted to such person (excluding any options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the scheme) in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant to represent in
aggregate over 1% of the Shares in issue.

2. All such employees are employees of the Group and fall within
the meaning of “employee participants” under Chapter 17 of
Listing Rules.

3. The options granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
would not have a dilutive effect on the earnings per Share for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

4. The vesting period of such Post-IPO Share Options is 5 years.
Vesting is conditional upon achievement of certain performance
targets by the Company as set out in the respective offer letters.
The Post-IPO share options have been granted pending
acceptance by the participants.

5. Such share options lapsed following Mr. Wang Qian’s
resignation. Save for the above, no share options under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme were canceled or lapsed during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted its share award scheme on 12 July 2021.
The Share Award Scheme does not constitute a share option
scheme under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and is a
discretionary scheme of the Company. No shareholders’ approval
was required to adopt the Share Award Scheme. No award
shares have been issued yet. Please see the announcement of
the Company dated 12 July 2021 for details.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY
So far as is known to any Directors or chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 December 2022, other than the interests and
short positions of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares or Debentures” and “Share Option Scheme”
above, the following persons had interests or short positions in
the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
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Long positions in the Shares RERGBHPHTE
Approximate
percentage of
the interest in
the Company’s
Number of issued share
Name of Shareholder Capacity and nature of interest Shares held capital’
EHEERAT
2RITRAH
BRR A SHORERMEE RO EE BABEDL
Mr. Wu Po Sum Interest in a controlled corporation 848,092,9442 66.32%
AR LS R EE R
Enjoy Start Limited Beneficial owner 848,092,9442 66.32%
BB ER AR Emia A
Ms. Wu Lam Li Interest of a spouse 848,092,9443 66.32%
P+ [y
Gaoling Fund, L.P. Beneficial owner 84,857,000 6.64%
Ema A
Hillhouse Capital Advisors, Ltd. Interest in a controlled corporation 84,867,000 6.64%

Notes:

XYL E s

1. The approximate percentage of the interest in the Company’s issued 1.
share capital is based on a total of 1,278,726,000 Shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2022.

2. Mr. Wu Po Sum holds 100% of the issued share capital of Enjoy Start 2.
Limited and is deemed to be interested in the 848,092,944 Shares held
by Enjoy Start Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

3. Ms. Wu Lam Li is the spouse of Mr. Wu Po Sum and is therefore 3.
deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares that Mr. Wu Po

Sum is interested in under the SFO.

4. Hillhouse Capital Advisors, Ltd. (“Hillhouse Capital”) is the sole 4.
investment manager and general partner of Gaoling Fund, L.P. Hillhouse
Capital is deemed to be interested in the 84,857,000 Shares held by

Gaoling Fund, L.P.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, there was no
other person (other than the Directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be

kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

B EXXRrt &SN
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RESEARREEITRANBEL T » LiRRK 2022 F
12 A31 B AR R B 1T #801,278,726,000 B 51

sty
= o
Ead

HEREERBRAIRERIRZHEFTHRA - A
REBE(EFRBEEIDHRSEBRIGERA BN
#5848,092,944 J i i RO #E i o

TR+ RARREENRE - Bt - REBEGEFR
HEGD)  FHLELREARBREREEEFES
HAE(R 2k B A h BB R

Hillhouse Capital Advisers, Ltd. ([Hillhouse
Capital ) & Gaoling Fund, LP. BV BRI EALE & —

%4 # A ° Hillnouse Capital # 13 /& 7 Gaoling Fund,
L.P. $54 #) 84,857,000 R B 17 o 5 #E 25 -

20224612 4318 - WA
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Company'’s Articles of Association, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office
or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has subscribed
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance coverage
for the Directors and officers of the Group.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has entered
into the following continuing connected transactions:

Provision of the real estate agency services by the
Group to CCRE

On 24 June 2019, the Company entered into the 2019 real estate
agency services framework agreement with CCRE, pursuant to
which the Company shall provide real estate agency services in
respect of the first-hand property sales as well as preparation
services (including but not limited to consultation services and
event organisation services) to CCRE. Due to the adjustment of
the annual cap under the 2019 real estate agency services
framework agreement, on 30 October 2020, the Company
entered into the 2020 real estate agency services framework
agreement with CCRE in place of the 2019 real estate agency
services framework agreement. As the 2020 real estate agency
services framework agreement was due to expire on 31
December 2022, the Company entered into the 2022 real estate
agency services framework agreement with CCRE on 9
December 2022 to extend the term to 31 December 2025. The
service fees were charged as commission based on contracted
sales amount of the CCRE's properties, depending on the overall
property market environment, project location, difficulties of
marketing and other factors.

The service fees to be charged for the real estate agency services
are determined after arm'’s length negotiations with reference to
the (i) the agency fees charged as commission and incentives
based on contracted sales amount of CCRE Group's properties,
depending on the overall property market environment, project
location, difficulties of marketing, scope of services and other
factors; and (ii) the rate generally offered by the Group to
independent third parties in respect of comparable agency
services. With respect to each project, the relevant members and
associates of CCRE and the Group will further enter into individual
separate agreement that prescribes the specific terms and
conditions of each project.
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The annual caps for the real estate agency services framework
agreement for the years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and
2025 are RMB350 million, RMB350 million and RMB350 million
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the real estate agency services
framework agreement amounted to approximately RMB257.5
million.

For details, please see the circular of the Company dated 19
January 2023.

Provision of the tourism services by the Group to CCRE
On 30 January 2019, the Company entered into the tourism
services framework agreement with CCRE to renew the 2018
tourism services framework agreement, pursuant to which the
Company shall provide the tourism services to CCRE for the
promotion of the CCRE’s business. As the tourism services
framework agreement was due to expire on 31 December 2021,
the Company entered into the renewed tourism services
framework agreement with CCRE on 29 October 2021 to extend
the term to 31 December 2024.

The fees payable by the CCRE Group and its associates to the
Group in respect of the tourism services shall be determined with
reference to (i) the degree of customisation of the tourism
services; (i) the actual cost involved (including but not limited to
costs of transportation, accommodation, catering, entrance
tickets and other travel-related expenditures); and (iii) prevailing
market prices for comparable projects and comparable services.
A cost-plus pricing is used with a mark-up percentage from 8% to
30% after taking into account taxes.

The annual cap of the tourism services framework agreement for
the years ending 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024 are RMB50
million, RMB70 million, and RMB100 million, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the tourism services framework
agreement amounted to approximately RMB1.0 million.

For details, please see the announcements of the Company
dated 29 October 2021 and 9 November 2021.
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Provision of the commercial property management
services by the Group to CCRE

On 26 June 2019, the Company entered into the commercial
property management service framework agreement with CCRE,
pursuant to which the Company will provide operation
management and consulting services to the CCRE's commercial
assets, including but not limited to hotel, office building, cultural
tourism complex, cultural tourism and other commercial projects.
Due to the expansion of scope of management services, the
original annual cap will be insufficient for 2021. On 13 May 2021,
the Company and CCRE entered into the supplemental
commercial property management services framework
agreement to include and amend certain terms of the
commercial property management services framework
agreement. As the commercial property management services
framework agreement was due to expire on 31 December 2021,
the Company has entered into the renewed commercial property
management services framework agreement with CCRE on 29
October 2021 to extend the term to 31 December 2024.

Fees payable by the CCRE Group and its associates to the Group
in respect of hotels shall comprise of (i) basic fee; (i) service fee;
(i) booking fee; (iv) incentive payment; and (v) consultation fee,
calculated in the following manner:

()  Basic fee: depending on the nature of the hotel projects
(self-run hotel projects/entrusted hotel projects), basic fee
shall be determined with reference to the total operation
income in respect of self-run hotel projects or charged at a
fixed rate per each hotel room in respect of entrusted hotel
projects. The standard charge for self-run hotel projects is
2% of the total operation income of such self-run hotel,
while the charge for entrusted hotel projects is RMB5,000
per hotel room per year.

(i)  Service fee: 1% of the total operation income for self-run
hotel projects.

(i) Booking fee: 1% of total revenue per available room for
self-run hotel projects.

(iv)  Incentive payment: (a) as a percentage (50%—60%) of profit
increase/loss reduction with reference to the excess over
the targeted net operating profit for hotel operations or (b)
as a percentage (4%-6%) of monthly revenue for spa
operation.
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(v)  Consultation fee: determined with reference to the nature
and scope of the consultation services and at
approximately RMB2,500,000 per project.

Fees payable by the CCRE Group and its associates to the Group
in respect of cultural tourism complexes shall comprise of (i)
opening preparation fee, (i) basic management service fee, (iii)
incentive management service fee, and (iv) advisory consultation
service fee, calculated in the following manner:

() Opening preparation fee: at a fixed rate of RMB20,000,000
per project;

(i) Basic management service fee: at 9% of the revenue of a
project;

(i) Incentive management service fee: at 50% of net operating
profit in excess of the budget; and

(iv) Consultation service fee: depending on the project
progress, the consultation service fee will be determined
with reference to the nature and scope of the consultation
services and at a fixed rate of RMB1,000,000 to
RMB1,500,000 per project.

Fees payable by the CCRE Group and its associates to the Group
in respect of other commercial properties (excluding hotels and
cultural tourism complexes) shall comprise of (i) basic
management service fee, (i) business solicitation commission, (iii)
incentive management service fee and (iv) opening incentive,
calculated in the following manner:

() Basic management service fee: the service fee will be
determined with reference to the project location, expected
operation and management cost, market price and other
factors. It will be based on the operational commercial
building area and charged monthly at a fixed basic
management service fee. Depending on the project
progress (preparation stage or operation period), the price
ranges from RMB90,000 to RMB500,000 per month.

(i) Business solicitation commission: 1.5 times of the monthly
standard rent applicable to the associated brand.

(i) Incentive management service fee: during the operation
period, the fee will be 40% of net operating profit over the
budget; or 5% to 10% of operation income plus 10% of
profit.
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(iv)  Opening incentive: approximately RMB13.1 per square
meter in prefecture (county)-level cities, and approximately
RMB19.65 per square meter in provincial capitals.

The annual caps for the commercial property management
services framework agreement for the years ending 31
December 2022, 2023 and 2024 are RMB105 million, RMB115
million, and RMB120 million, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the commercial property
management service framework agreement amounted to
approximately RMB42.5 million.

For details, please see the announcements of the Company
dated 29 October 2021 and 9 November 2021.

Provision of the property consultation and
management services by the Group to CCRE

On 31 January 2019, the Company entered into a property
consulting and management services framework agreement with
CCRE. On 28 October 2019, due to the adjustment of the annual
cap, the Company and CCRE renewed the property consulting
and management services framework agreement to replace and
terminate the previously concluded property consulting and
management services framework agreement. As the property
consultation and management services framework agreement
was due to expire on 31 December 2021, the Company entered
into the renewed agreement on 11 November 2021 to extend the
term to 31 December 2024. Pursuant to these agreements, the
Company will provide property consulting and management
services to CCRE in accordance with the needs of the CCRE's
residential and commercial property projects in Henan Province,
PRC. The services and fees to be charged by the Group include:

(@) Consultation services (including pre-delivery
consultancy services and early stage initiation
services): determined with reference to the nature and
size of the property and the scope of the consultation
services. The price ranges between RMB1 to RMBS8 per
sg.m..

(b) Marketing centre management services: charged
based on the operating costs (including staff salaries, staff
benefits, administration and management costs), the
applicable tax of approximately 6.72% related to the
marketing centre management services, plus a mark-up of
10% to 20% depending on factors including the nature, type
and location of the property projects, the location and size
of the marketing centre and the nature, schedule and
complexity of the marketing activities.
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(c) Vacant properties management services: charged in
accordance with the management fee standard for
residential property or parking lot in the district where the
vacant property is located. The price ranges between
RMBO.6 to RMB20 per month per sg.m..

(d) Self-owned properties management services:
determined with reference to the expected costs and
prevailing market prices for comparable services. The price
ranges between RMBO0.6 to RMB20 per month per sg.m..

(e) Properties pre-delivery inspection services:
determined with reference to the size of the property,
expected costs and prevailing market prices for comparable
services. The price ranges between RMB6 to RMBS8 per
sg.m..

The fees to be charged by the Group for provision of such
services are determined on arm'’s length basis with reference to
the (i) nature, category and location of the properties; (ii) gross
floor area of the properties; (iii) anticipated operation costs,
including primarily staff costs and administration costs; and (iv)
prevailing market prices for comparable services. With respect to
each project, the relevant members and associates of CCRE and
the Group will further enter into individual separate agreement
that prescribes the specific terms and conditions of each project.

The annual caps for the consulting and management services
framework agreement for the years ending 31 December 2022,
2023 and 2024 are RMB300 million, RMB375 million and RMB480
million, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the consulting and management
services framework agreement amounted to approximately
RMB124.3 million.

For details, please see the circular of the Company dated 9
December 2021.
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Provision of the membership maintenance and
management services by the Group to CCRE

On 29 March 2019, the Company entered into a membership
maintenance and management services framework agreement
with CCRE. On 30 October 2020, due to the adjustment of the
annual cap, the Company and CCRE renewed the membership
maintenance and management services framework agreement
to replace and terminate the previously concluded membership
maintenance and management services framework agreement.
As the membership maintenance and management services
framework agreement was due to expire on 31 December 2022,
the Company entered into the 2022 membership maintenance
and management services framework agreement with CCRE on 9
December 2022 to extend the term to 31 December 2025.
Pursuant to these agreements, the Company will provide
membership maintenance and management services to CCRE.
Membership maintenance and management services are
provided to residents of residential property projects developed
and to be developed by CCRE, who are or will become members
of the community. Membership maintenance and management
services include member normal services and large-scale event
planning and organisation services.

As under the membership maintenance and management
services framework agreement, the fees to be charged for the
membership maintenance and management services shall be
determined based on arm’s length negotiations and taking into
account the anticipated operational costs including labour costs
with reference to the fees for similar services and similar type of
projects in the market. In terms of the daily operation and
management services for members, the service fee is RMB4,500
per person per year. In terms of the events organisation and
planning for the members of the Central China Consumers Club,
the service fee ranges from approximately RMB1 million to RMB4
million per event. With respect to each event, the relevant
members and associates of CCRE and members of the Group will
further enter into individual separate agreement that prescribes
the specific terms and conditions of each event, including the
service scope and service fee applicable to the particular event.

The annual caps for the membership maintenance and
management services framework agreement for the years ending
31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025 are RMB100 million, RMB100
million and RMB100 million, respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the membership maintenance and
management services framework agreement amounted to
approximately RMB165.1 million.

For details, please see the announcement of the Company dated
9 December 2022.

Provision of the green house management services by
the Group to CCRE

On 29 March 2019, the Company entered into the green house
management services framework agreement with CCRE. On 28
October 2019, due to the adjustment of service scope and annual
cap, the Company and CCRE renewed the green house
management services framework agreement to replace and
terminate the previous green house management services
framework agreement. Given the additional green house
management services required by CCRE, the original annual caps
under the framework agreement would be insufficient for 2021.
Further, the greenhouse management services framework
agreement was due to expire on 31 December 2021. On 9
November 2021, the Company and CCRE entered into the
supplemental green house management services framework
agreement to increase the relevant annual cap, add additional
services, and extend the term to 31 December 2023. Pursuant to
these agreements, the Company will provide the following
services:

(@ Project promotion, brand promotion and operation
management services: provision of operation
management services such as business solicitation, brand
promotion, event planning for the agricultural projects.

(b) Technical support services to agricultural facility
projects: provision of technical management services
throughout the whole process of research and
development, introduction and promotion of agricultural
facility projects (such as intelligent linkage greenhouses,
plant factories) under the agricultural projects.

(c)  Agricultural product sales management: management
and sales of agricultural products including flowers,
seedling and vegetables.

(d)  Agricultural product planting service: daily operation
and planting of agricultural products and relevant
consultation services.
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(e) Foodcourt operation and management services:
Provision of operation and management services for
Cuisine Henan Foodcourts (& % KX & &), including the
business solicitation, daily operation, marketing planning
and other services for some stores operated by Cuisine
Henan Foodcourts ((Z¥ AR ).

()  Planning and consultation services: charged at
RMB1,500 per mu

(8 Green house preparation services: depending on the
total construction investment, charged at (i) 10% of the
total construction investment if it is less than or equals to
RMB20 million; (i) 7% of the total construction investment if
it is greater than RMB20 million but less than or equals to
RMB50 million; or (iii) 4% of the total construction
investment if it is greater than RMB50 million.

(h)  Foodcourt preparation services: charged at RMB500
per sqg.m..

The above service fees were determined on arm’s length basis
and with reference to (i) project management scale and size of
plantation area; (ii) floor area of Cuisine Henan Foodcourts (77 &
KR E); (i) service scope including types of planting services; (iv)
anticipated operation and management costs; (v) estimated sales
amount of the agricultural products; and (vi) operation revenue
per month for Cuisine Henan Foodcourts (i B K & & ). With
respect to each project, the relevant members and associates of
CCRE and our Group will further enter into individual separate
agreement that prescribes the specific terms and conditions of
each project.

In addition, the above service fees were determined by the
parties after arm’s length negotiations and on normal commercial
terms with reference to the prevailing market rates for the
relevant services and in line with market practice. Such rates are
no less favorable than those charged by the Group for
comparable services provided to independent third parties.

The revised annual caps for the greenhouse management
services framework agreement for the years ending 31
December 2021, 2022 and 2023 are RMB75.0 million, RMB90.0
million and RMB95.0 million, respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the green house management
service framework agreement amounted to approximately
RMB38.8 million.

For details, please see the announcement of the Company dated
9 November 2021.

Provision of the intelligent technology services by the
Group to CCRE

On 29 March 2019, the Company entered into the intelligent
technology service framework agreement with CCRE. On 30
October 2020, due to the adjustment of the annual cap, the
Company and CCRE renewed the intelligent technology service
framework agreement to replace and terminate the previously
concluded intelligent technology service framework agreement.
Further, in view of the growth in demand for the Group's services
under the intelligent technology services framework agreement
as a result of the growth in business of the CCRE Group and its
associates, the Company and CCRE entered into the
supplemental intelligent technology services framework
agreement to increase the annual caps and extend the term to
31 December 2023. Pursuant to these agreements, the Company
will provide intelligent technology products and related services
to CCRE. The services and fees to be changed by the Group
include:

(@) Engineering installation services for intelligent
products and sales service for products: determined
with reference to the equipment materials, installation
costs, enterprise management fees, profit and tax.
Depending on the configuration standard of the specific
project, the integrated average unit price ranges between
RMB30 to RMB100 per sg.m..

(b) Software development services: depending on the
project content and the development content (such as with
reference to the difficulty and complexity of the relevant
software development, technical specifics of a project and
items developed, the implementation schedule/timetable,
the number of developer staff required, etc.), the price
ranges between RMB20,000 to RMB4,000,000 per project.
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(c) Consultation services: depending on the GFA and nature
of the project, the unit price for residential consultation
services ranges between RMB2 to RMB3 per sg.m., and the
unit price for office consultation services ranges between
RMB2.5 to RMB3.5 per sg.m..

The fees to be charged by the Group for provision of the
intelligent technology services shall be determined on arm’s
length basis with reference to (i) prices of the intelligent
technology products; (i) anticipated operation costs taking into
account factors including, among others, equipment materials,
installation costs, enterprise management fees; (iii) specific
software requirement; (iv) GFA and nature of the property
projects; and (v) prevailing market prices for comparable services.
The fees are charged at fixed lump-sum fees taking into account
the above factors, which are payable by instalments with
reference to stage of completion of the works specified under
each agreement. With respect to each project, the relevant
members and associates of CCRE and members of the Group will
further enter into individual separate agreement that prescribes
the specific terms and conditions of each project, including the
service scope and service fee applicable to the particular
property project.

The annual caps for the intelligent technology service framework
agreement for the years ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and
2023 are RMB500 million, RMB700 million and RMB1,000 million,
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the intelligent technology services
framework agreement amounted to approximately RMB274.7
million.

For details, please see the circular of the Company dated 9
December 2021.
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Provision of the marketing and service platform
construction services by the Group to CCRE

On 29 June 2020, the Company entered into the marketing and
service platform construction services framework agreement
with CCRE, pursuant to which the Company agreed to provide,
and CCRE agreed to procure the marketing and service platform
construction services relating to sales and marketing activities
such as online customer services, customer engagement, house
viewing, and house purchase through the “Jianye+" platform of
the Group. As the term of the 2020 marketing and service
platform construction services framework agreement has
expired, the Company entered into the 2021 marketing and
service platform construction services framework agreement
with CCRE to renew the 2020 marketing and service platform
construction services framework agreement on 30 June 2021
with a term up to 31 December 2021. As the 2021 marketing and
service platform construction services framework agreement has
expired, the Company entered into the 2022 marketing and
service platform construction services framework agreement
with CCRE on 30 June 2022 to extend the term to 31 December
2022.

The development fee of the software system template of each
platform is based on the construction workload, development
period, platform requirements, features, development personnel
required, and the prevailing market price of similar services. The
development fee of each platform ranges between RMB1,000,000
and RMB2,500,000. Such price range is determined with
reference to a reasonable cost plus a reasonable profit margin
and agreed by the parties on arm length’s negotiation in order to
ensure that such price range is fair and reasonable and no less
favourable than those charged by the Company to independent
third parties.

The annual caps for the marketing and service platform
construction services for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
RMB50 million.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the marketing and service
platform construction services framework agreement amounted
to approximately RMB47.3 million.

For details, please see the announcement of the Company dated
30 June 2022.
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Provision of the procurement services by the Group to
CCRE

On 30 October 2020, the Company entered into the procurement
services framework agreement with CCRE, pursuant to which the
Company agreed to provide procurement services to CCRE in
respect of gift packs for the property purchasers of the CCRE as
part of their marketing. Such gift packs comprise goods and/or
services offered by the Independent Third Parties, such as
electrical appliances and household commodities as well as
services offered by the CCRE Group and its associates, such as
cash vouchers for hotels, shopping malls, cultural tourism
complexes and Cuisine Henan Foodcourts (2 ¥ A& &) owned
by the CCRE Group and its associates. As a result of the growth
in business of the Company, the original annual cap under the
framework agreement would be insufficient for 2021. On 9
November 2021, the Company and CCRE entered into the
supplemental procurement services framework agreement to
amend such annual cap. As the procurement services framework
agreement was due to expire on 31 December 2022, the
Company entered into the 2022 procurement services framework
agreement with CCRE on 9 December 2022 to extend the term to
31 December 2025.

Procurement by the CCRE Group and its associates

The Group will continue to provide to the CCRE Group and its
associates the Procurement Services to the CCRE Group and its
associates, being procurement services in respect of gift packs for
their property purchasers as part of their marketing strategy. In order
to improve customer satisfaction, promote the brand recognition of
“Central China (E%)" and increase customer repurchase rate, the
CCRE Group and its associates typically offer gift packs to their
property purchasers. The gift packs are tailored for each property
project of the CCRE Group and its associates based on its marketing
strategy themes with the own characteristics of each property
project.

Such gift packs comprise goods and/or services offered by the
Independent Third Parties, such as electrical appliances and
household commodities as well as services offered by the CCRE
Group and its associates, such as cash vouchers for hotels, shopping
malls, cultural tourism complexes and Cuisine Henan Foodcourts
(% KR ) owned by the CCRE Group and its associates.
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In order for us to prepare the gift packs for the target property
purchasers, the CCRE Group and its associates shall enter into an
individual agreement with the Group for each property project,
which sets out (i) the market value per gift pack in RMB; and (ii)
the specific categories of goods and services to be included in
the gift packs in order to tailor to the consumption preferences
and needs of the target property purchasers for the particular
property project.

Prior to entering into any individual service agreement for
Procurement by the CCRE Group and its associates for a specific
property project, the CCRE Group and its associates would
determine the service fee for the Procurement Services with the
Group on arm’s length basis with reference to the following
factors:

o the marketing positioning and brand planning of the
property projects and the market conditions at the time of
sales launch of the property projects, including the
promotion offers of the competitors of the CCRE Group and
the CCRE Group's expected marketing budget (which, to
the Director’s knowledge and belief, has been impacted by
the continuing downturn of the real estate industry and
ongoing impact of COVID-19), which would in turn affect
the total market value in RMB of the gift packs;

o the expected prevailing market prices of the goods and/or
services offered under the gift packs at the time of
procurement; and

o a reasonable mark-up rate, ranging from 10% to 30%, to be
charged by the Group for the provision of Procurement
Services, which amounts to similar price level in case the
CCRE Group and its associates acquire similar merchandise
from the relevant suppliers in the market without the
benefits of the Group’s sourcing networks and bulk
purchase discount offered by the Group's suppliers.
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Procurement by the CCNL Group

Where the Group has a need to acquire services of the CCRE
Group to be offered under the relevant gift packages prepared by
the Group (such as cash coupon for hotels, shopping malls,
integrated cultural tourism projects and Cuisine Henan
Foodcourts (2 % X & ¥) owned by the CCRE Group), whether
for the CCRE Group or otherwise, the Group may purchase such
services from the CCRE Group.

Prior to entering into any individual service agreement for
Procurement by the CCNL Group, the CCRE Group and the Group
would determine the service fee for the Procurement Services on
arm'’s length basis with reference to:

o the cost of the CCRE Group of providing such services
required by the Group;

o the expected prevailing market prices of the goods and/or
services offered under the gift packs at the time of
procurement, with reference to quotations from at least
two Independent Third Party service providers for
comparable services (to the extent possible); and

o a reasonable bulk discount for purchases of cash coupons
at appropriate discounts.

The annual caps for the procurement by the CCRE Group and its
associates for the years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and
2025 are RMB25 million, RMB25 million and RMB25 million,
respectively.

The annual caps for Procurement by the CCNL Group for the
years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025 are RMB25
million, RMB25 million and RMB25 million, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the service fees
receivable by the Group for the Procurement by the CCRE Group
and its associates amounted to approximately RMB6.3 million,
while the service fees payable by the Group for the Procurement
by the CCNL Group amounted to approximately RMB7.1 million.

For details, please see the announcement of the Company dated
9 December 2022.
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Provision of the property management services by the
Group to CCMGT

On 13 May 2021, the Company and CCMGT entered into the
Property Management Services Framework Agreement pursuant
to which, among other things, the Group shall provide property
management services to the CCMGT Group, namely at CCMGT's
place of business and headquarter in Zhengzhou, PRC and other
branch offices of the CCMGT Group for the period from the
CCMGT Listing until 31 December 2023.

The Property Management Services Framework Agreement was
agreed upon on normal commercial terms after arm’s length
negotiations, and the property management fees were
determined based on the (i) number, nature, category and
location of the properties; (i) GFA of the properties; (iii) rate
generally offered by the Group to independent third parties in
respect of comparable services; and (iv) anticipated staff costs of
the Group. To the Directors’ best knowledge and belief, the fees
for such property management services are no less favorable to
the Group than those available from independent third parties for
comparable services. With respect to each property, the relevant
members of the Group and the CCMGT Group will further enter
into an individual separate agreement that prescribes the specific
terms and conditions of each property.

The annual caps for the property management services
framework agreement for each of the three years ending 31
December 2023 are RMB3.0 million, RMB3.5 million and RMB4.0
million, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the property management
services framework agreement amounted to approximately
RMBO0.8 million.

For details, please see the announcement of the Company dated
13 May 2021.
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As at the dates of these agreements and up to the date of this
report, Mr. Wu Po Sum is the controlling shareholder of the
Company, and indirectly owned more than 30% equity interests
in CCRE and CCMGT. Therefore, the abovementioned
transactions also constitute the continuing connected
transactions of the Company. Details of these agreements are
set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 5 May 2020 and
announcements of the Company dated 29 June 2020, 30 October
2020, 18 November 2020, 13 May 2021, 30 June 2021, 27 October
2021, 29 October 2021, 9 November 2021, 11 November 2021, 30
June 2022, 9 December 2022 and the circulars of the Company
dated 23 November 2020, 9 December 2021 and 19 January
2023.

The Board confirmed that there is no material change in the
contractual arrangements and/or the circumstances under which
they were adopted, and its impact on the Group. The Board also
confirmed that there is no unwinding of the structured contracts
or failure to unwind when the restrictions that led to the adoption
of the structured contracts are removed.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed the
relevant framework agreements and confirmed that the
framework agreements have been entered into:

a)  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

b)  either on normal commercial terms or, if there were not
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
were on normal commercial terms, on terms no less
favorable to the Group than terms available to or from (as
appropriate) independent third parties; and

C) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company’s shareholders as a whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2022 in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its
unqualified letter containing its conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions of the Group
undertaken in the normal course of business are set out in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements. Save for the
connected transaction and continuing connected transactions as
disclosed above, none of these related party transactions is
required to be disclosed under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There are no significant events subsequent to 31 December 2022
which would materially affect the Group’s operating and financial
performance as of the date of this Reporting.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board recognised
that the repurchase of Shares could increase the net asset value
and/or earnings per share, so the Company repurchased a total
of 4,657,000 shares on the Stock Exchange during the year ended
31 December 2022, with a total consideration of approximately
HK$16,485,000. The Company cancelled 1,605,000 shares,
1,818,000 shares and 2,158,000 shares in May, July and
December 2022, respectively. Details of the shares repurchased
are as follows:

BE - HESBEAQT LHES

HE202F12A3NHIEFE  EECRAEHED
BRDAIEMEEFERKFRAF - WARAR
REE2022F 12 A31 8 L FEAEH AT
& $£4,657,000 % f& 17 - 421X (B 49 /416,485,000 7%
T ARARR2022F58 7AR12A 5 BIEHE
1,605,000 B A% {7 ~ 1,818,000 A A% 15 K2 2,158,000 A%
&5 o BEROFBEHINET

Price Consideration

per share
Number SREKRKE Aggregate
of shares Highest Lowest consideration
Month of purchase in 2022 2022 FEE A purchased price paid price paid paid
BERDHE BEEf[E BESHE SRERE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
March 3H 681,000 4.32 4.05 2,933,818
April 4 A 1,818,000 4.09 3.76 7,233,588
September 9H 2,158,000 3.35 2.51 6,317,130
4,657,000 16,484,536

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS
OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policy is designed to attract, retain and
motivate talented individuals to contribute to the success of the
business. The emolument policy of the employees of the Group
is formulated and reviewed by the Remuneration Committee on
the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regards to the Group's
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) pursuant to the MPF Schemes Ordinance for all its
employees in Hong Kong. All the employees of the Group in Hong
Kong are required to join the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to consolidated income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme. No forfeited contribution
is available to reduce the contribution payable in the future years
as of 31 December 2022.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, in compliance with the
applicable regulations of the PRC, participated in a state managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the local government.
The subsidiaries are required to contribute a specific percentage
of their payroll costs to the retirement benefits schemes. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits scheme is to make the specified contributions. During
the reporting period, the total amounts contributed by the Group
to the schemes and costs charged to the consolidated income
statement represent contribution payable to the schemes by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

The Company has also adopted certain share option schemes
and a share award scheme as described in this report.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed level of public float
during the year and up to the date of this report as required
under the Listing Rules.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations and other donations made by the Group
during the year amounted to RMB20,500 (2021: RMB129,360).

MATERIAL LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company was not
involved in any litigation, arbitration or claims of material
importance and there was no litigation or claim of material
importance which was known to the Directors to be pending or
threatened by or against the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report at pages 63 to 85
of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed the Annual
Results, including the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, and discussed auditing, risk management
and internal control systems and financial reporting matters with
the management as well as the reviewed the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for reappointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the 2023 AGM.

By order of the board
Wang Jun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

&
pwec

To the Shareholders of Central China New Life Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Central China New Life
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “"Group”),
which are set out on pages 143 to 283, comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2022;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

¥ X7 % 25 B ¥ =5
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
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T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“"HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as

RRER
BAERBEBBSFMASHRMAKE LT LR
EITES  RAEZXFEATARNEEDEAR
WS (XA BT AR B MR ATEORT] 2B
PR — R -

BFIEE - RAAESHETREELRE E
AT AAIRE R AR -

i3

By
REEESHMASEMAKEXSAER TR
(AT ZABLIRNERE YO &
TTAIPMEMERBEET -

BAEEEH

BgEH FELRERMOELAN  BAHA
BEAMBRROBHRABENFIE  BLE
ERERMBHERESNBRRRLATRE
EITRIEN - RMTEHELFEEHEBNE
H o

B ER BRI e R ES FEMANT

follows:

o Assessment of expected credit losses of trade receivables o

o Assessment of goodwill impairment

B HRWGREREE BRI G

o EERERE

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BAENESTNAEEBRETEE

Assessment of expected credit losses of trade
receivables
B S EWFENEREEB BTN

Refer to Note 3.1.2 “credit risk”, Note 4 “critical accounting
estimates and judgments”, and Note 18 “trade and other
receivables and prepayments” to the consolidated
financial statements.
FR2HREUEHRERMEII2[EERE] -« HE4lEX
SEHlET R AE ] K181 B 5 R E A U IA R TR
FRIA] o
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We have performed the following procedures in respect
of the assessment of ECL of trade receivables:
BMERE HEKFIABREEBENTEEL U TRE
% :

(@) Obtained an understanding of the Group's internal
control and assessment process of ECL of trade
receivables, and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and other inherent risk of factors, such as
complexity and subjectivity, changes and susceptibility
to management bias or fraud;
THRESEHEFHRWFIBTRREEBENREES
RFEEF  WERGFTTIEEENEEREMES
EREAE(INEEEERFHE ZHRHEETEER
Mk SR e BRI ) - DAL B R SR SR PR it 1) (& 7
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
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FARETEE @

Key Audit Matter
BRETSHE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANES AR ERRENSE

As at 31 December 2022, the gross carrying amount of
trade receivables amounted to RMB2,628,379,000, which
represented approximately 49.3% of the total assets of
the Group. Management has assessed the expected
credit losses (“ECL") of trade receivables with a loss
allowance of RMB201,707,000 made against the gross
trade receivables.

M2022% 12310 ESRKFERTHAERARE
2,628,379,0007C " thESKBEREEL49.3% - BEEED T
HESRERENEREEER(BHEESE] I
B H W I ERERT R BB RS AR 1201,707,0007T ©

Management applied the simplified approach under
HKFRS 9 to measure the lifetime ECL of trade receivables.
EREECRBEBUBHREEREIFE THE(LIT AT
EEFRUGNRFTBIEERIE -

For trade receivables with remarkably different credit risk
characteristics with the collection of repayments
stagnated or occurrence of credit impairment, the Group
evaluated the distribution of expected cash flows under
multiple scenarios based on experience of historical credit
loss, current situations and forecasts of future conditions
of contract counterparties under different scenarios, and
made corresponding provision for ECL according to ECL
rate and the related probability weight under different
scenarios. ECL was recognised on an individual basis.

HREAEFBEEZETRGERBREAABNRERLEEER
BENEZRNGIE  EXEREELEEEENLR
ERAIMERAARETRIER T & R F 5 RRACLEITEA -
AT ZRBRETHEBARERSM - WREBLRBERT
WEMEEBEEREENXES - WHRAEEERE
ITIRERHE - HAME BB B AT EIET AN ER LR -

(b) Evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment of
ECL of trade receivables to assess the effectiveness of
management’s estimation process;

MBS ERFIBRBEEEENATHTMER - U
A B E BN AR

(c) Evaluated and validated, on a sample basis, the key
internal controls over management’s assessment of
the ECL of trade receivables;
HERMEREEEEYE SRKFATAREEEE
1 0 AT Ak R A1) PR B R SR A )

(d) For trade receivable assessed individually, we (i)
evaluated the criteria and rationality of management’s
judgement that trade receivable are featured with
remarkably different credit risk characteristics; (ii)
evaluated the rationality of management'’s
assumptions of expected cash flow distribution, and
ECL rate and related probability weight under different
scenarios according to historical credit loss
experience of contract counterparties, statistics from
third parties, public information, evidences of the
latest developments in negotiations, etc.; (iii) evaluated
the results of management'’s sensitivity analysis using
reasonably possible changes of the relevant key
parameters;
HREBIENENE ZEYGRIE - HMOTETERE
HETE S EWHIEABREENREERBEHENEE
REBEM  (VREBEERAEFAINELERERER
FE=ZFHRTEIE - RFRGEE  RARMERNEFRE
E FMEEEEBHARBR NTEBRERSMm - B
EEERXNERMEEENMRRINEEMN (i)
HERENAEEAR28N SRR LAEL R
BRRED TR R
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FARETEE @

Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ES AR ERRENSE

For the trade receivable without occurrence of credit
impairment or the expected credit loss cannot be
estimated for an individual financial asset at a reasonable
cost, the management grouped trade receivables based
on shared credit risk characteristics and measured the
ECL based on groups. For the trade receivable in groups,
the management made reference to the historical
experience of credit losses, combining with the current
situation and forecast of economic situation in the future,
and prepared the model which refers to the ageing
profile, external credit rates (if available) and rate of ECL
during lifetime in order to measure the ECL.
HRARBECRABESEEANGERNAGFEEeHE
ENEHEEBENEZRKGIE  BEEREXRAN
FEERREBYESEWRIBETSA  WRESHE
TBEEEBBETHE - SR 2HARNNE 5 EUFIE -
ERELETEEBENELER  SEEERNE
RIRGELANTER - WHERT ZERREN - INBE
BRAR(AER)ARKEBHEEBERNOER - E
EEEEEE -

The assessment of ECL of trade receivables is considered
a key audit matter given the significance of the trade
receivables balance. In addition, the judgements and
estimations in relation to assessment of ECL are subject
to a relatively higher degree of uncertainty and
subjectivity. The Group’s measurement of expected credit
loss based on individual assessment involved significant
managerial judgements and assumptions, and the Group's
measurement of ECL based on groups involved both
complex models and significant managerial judgements
and assumptions.

BREZERFENEAN BZEBFIBEEREEES
BHT AR RERERTEIE - Lo STEBEREERE
BREEMABRATEERSNTEEEREEHE -
EEEURBIEIGNEREEEENGEIRERE
BE FE RBRE - HRAES T ENTEREEBEENGE -
BLP RAGFRA - iy RERNEEE FIE RERR -

Central China New Life Limited / 2022 Annual Report

(e) For the trade receivables assessed in groups, we

evaluated the appropriateness of the methodology
and the reasonableness of key assumptions adopted:
(i) assessed the appropriateness of customer grouping
based on our understanding on the Group's business
process, the credit control process and the credit risk
characteristics of trade receivables; (ii) assessed the
reasonableness of significant assumptions used in
estimating the loss rate by comparing the ultimate
loss rate used in calculating the historical loss rate
with the historical settlement performance; (iii)
challenged and evaluated management’s assessment
on the financial positions of the customers, existing
markets conditions and forward-looking factors with
reference to our understanding of Group’s business,
industry and external macroeconomic data; (iv) tested,
on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing of trade
receivables prepared by management to supporting
documents;
HRAETENE ZEWFIE - BMFHE T AERAR
EREEERERBRENGENE 0 EREMEES
BXEBTRE - ERESIRENE 5 ERUGHIEEERR
REREE  TEEPEMNBEENE () BrEEL
BAEANSEIMBAREESNEERRIED
LB - AHEEEHR AR A ERRENE IR | (i)
2BREAMEBEEES - TERINIERBLBEEIERRN
B SAEEEEHREPMBAN « AT SRR
AT IE 14 B 2= A AT Al 0 4R B R ¢ (iv) SRR A 3B S 4 Tl
EAHBTEERENE S R GKIBRE DT MR
{3

(f) Checked the mathematical accuracy of the calculation
of the provision for loss allowance; and
BREFTEBEERENSEERTE &

(8) Assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to
ECL of trade receivables.
FHHEE P EWGIRTRHEEEBE EHENT M o

Based on the above, we considered that the
management'’s judgements and assumptions applied in
the assessment of ECL of trade receivables were
supportable by the evidence obtained.

AR EXFri - ZMREEERNERERERITHRER
AN RFERENHE SRR IBETEREEBERE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSHE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANES AR ERRENSE

Assessment of goodwill impairment
B R E R

Refer to Note 4(c) “Estimation of goodwill impairment”
and Note 15 “Intangible assets” to the consolidated
financial statements.
FLRGEMBHRERM A BB REMET] RMFE15
[ EE] -

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had goodwill of
RMB137,085,000 primarily in relation to the Group’s
acquisition of several property management services
companies and technology companies (the “Acquirees”).
A provision of RMB22,496,000 was made against goodwill
arising from certain Acquiree as at 31 December 2022.
2022612 A31H - EXE®EE R A KK 137,085,000
T FESREFBUEE TYEEERE DA RER
~al([#HREA ) - R2022F 12 A318 @ 3t THIEE
FHEFHNEED IR AR 22,496,000 TR ©

We have performed the following procedures in respect
of the assessment of goodwill impairment:
BMEREBREN T EELIATERF

(@) Obtained an understanding of the Group’s internal
control over the impairment assessment of goodwill,
and assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and
other inherent risk of factors, such as complexity and
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to management
bias or fraud;
THRESEHNERENRBIES RFHESF - E
RAFT T EEMANRRE R EME SRR E = (e
BERFHMNE  ZFFHREEIEE R EENHRE
M) LAFTh E RS R R E A R

(b) Evaluated the competency, capabilities and objectivity
of the External Valuer,
FHEINBAERMNEE « BN RFEIL

(c) Evaluated the appropriateness of the methodology
and the reasonableness of key assumptions adopted
with the involvement of our internal valuation experts;
EREBEEZERNZET - SHEFTRARENVEE T
MEARBRRNEEN
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FARETEE @

Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ES AR ERRENSE

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually, or when there
are events or changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired. For the purpose of impairment
assessment, goodwill was allocated to each group of
cash-generated units of the Acquirees. Management
assessed the impairment of goodwill related to major
Acquirees with the assistance of an independent external
valuer (the “External Valuer”) and determined the
recoverable amounts based on a value-in-use (“VIU")
calculation using cash flow projections. The VIU
calculation was based on financial budgets approved by
management. The key assumptions considered primarily
include (i) expected growth rate of revenue, (i) terminal
growth rate after 5 years, and (iii) pre-tax discount rate.
HEGFETRENR  SWMEEHRIRBEECETR
ER R ERETAR - WRENENS - BEEHE
EEEWWB IR ELSEN -  BEERBEINGE
Bl ([ 7h BBk {ELET ) B9 175 B T 2V 4 B2 &8 K4 U s 5 AE R Y
RERE TRECHAEE(EREEDFERE K
RRERBABEAKEEE FREENENEERE
HAENTBREMEL - BREIHRF/EEBRE()K
AWTEEERE  ( AF A REPERE - K (i) AT
B o
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(d) Challenged and assessed the historical estimation
accuracy of the cash flow forecast by comparing the
forecast used in the prior year to the actual performance
of the business in the current year;
iR E—FEERNERERNFEENEREBHLRR
HEITHE - BRE KRR LB RS TR A5 ER
{3

Evaluated the reasonableness of the key assumptions
used in the cash flow forecast, mainly including: (i)
expected growth rate of revenue during the forecast
period, we compared them with historical financial
data and approved budgets; (i) for the terminal growth
rate after 5 years, we assessed it with reference to the
long-term expected inflation rate based on our
independent research; (iii) assessed the pre-tax
discount rate with reference to comparable listed
companies based on our industry knowledge and
independent research done by us;

MR eREEAMERNBREBRNEGEN =8
BIE  ()VFERBRERANTEEERE - MG EEE
SRS EUR RASHETRE TR (D AFRR
HgRX  EREMNBIMETLE2ERARERBR
AR SR HETT RIS ¢ (i) ER BB 1T E R K P ey 18
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

¥ X7 % 25 B ¥ =5

FARETEE @

Key Audit Matter
BRETSHE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANES AR ERRENSE

We focused on auditing the impairment of goodwill
because the estimation of recoverable amount is subject
to a relatively higher degree of estimation uncertainty.
The inherent risk in relation to the impairment assessment
of goodwill is considered relatively higher due to the
subjectivity of significant assumptions used and change of
industrial environment.

BMBINETHERE  BAFKRESENEAFE
BHRENTHEEN - ARFTAERREN EE M RIT
EFRENE  EERETHERNESRRERS
HERS -

(f) Tested source data to supporting evidence on a
sample basis, such as approved budgets and available
market data and considered the reasonableness of
these budgets;

HMHEORFAEIRR - SEEAESCHFER - flansg
HEEERTRNMSEE  TERZSHEENASRE
r|¢i|— ;

Evaluated the reasonableness of the sensitivity
analysis performed by management on the key
assumptions to understand the impact of the
reasonable changes in assumptions on the
recoverable amount;
AHEREERTHMEBRNSEZHH AWML SEN T
LimEAREETHRRED TSI

)

(h) Assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to
impairment assessment of goodwill; and
A EEREN AN ERREEE D &

(i) Considered whether the judgements made in selecting
the methodology and the key assumptions would give
rise to indicators of possible management bias.
ERMEEED AN ARBRREMENAE S g5/
ARENREEERANER -

Based on the above, we found that the significant
management'’s judgements and the key assumptions
adopted in the goodwill impairment assessment were
supported by available evidence.

AR EXFriat - ZMRABEERANBRE A ER
BERHMHFTER AN B A E IR 2T R B AR -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
SRR GTIESRES

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group'’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

¥ X7 % 25 B ¥ =5
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
SRR GG RES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE BB E G M HRALEN
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL  E{E @)
STATEMENTS (continued)
e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of ¢  FFfE#RE
the consolidated financial statements, including the AES
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial E&%x%ﬂ%lﬁ o
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

E?W‘ﬂii%ﬂ’]% §IJ$&?‘5‘Q : ﬁi%%ﬂ

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the ¢  BLESE E%I%FEEUE’]EMN SEE

financial information of the entities or business activities T EENERE  UEYHEEVBER
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated REXRER -RMBEESETHANIMR -
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, BEEEMHTIT - BMATTERAESHES -

supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among FREMEBIESIN - RPIERBFZZE BB T 2N
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and ~F&FT#E - KE%H -  EXFFHBRE - BER
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in  FI7EZ &1 A1 1 A 2B 1% Hil A9 (2 A1 R ERPA o
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we HMERBZZESRIER  SRBEHRMEFTE
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding BB MHNEBZEXEBEE R WEMPIER
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships A RIS BMER RS ERMBE LA #H
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our R EALEIE - A REBEABIBERT - BLABK
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate  ¥138 7 14 & 4 B & 11T B sk ERER A 7 45 16 o
threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Pang Ho Yin.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

JuTJ_\D]H_E\EUK

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k23 ARETFT AREFT
Revenue L ON 3,148,141 3,598,918
Cost of sales SHE RN 9 (2,104,945) (2,415,696)
Gross profit EF R 1,043,196 1,183,222
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHEAXT (32,088) (57,091)
Administrative expenses THRAX (238,832) (229,667)
Net impairment losses on financial and CRRENEERERBE
contract assets FEE 312 (77,949) (101,499)
Other income HAb A 6 56,842 34,519
Other gains/(losses) — net Hiblas (B1R) 55 7 8,242 (15,162)
Operating profit KERE 759,411 814,322
Finance (costs)/income — net BE (BA), WA FE 8 (468) 12,159
Share of net profit/(loss) of associates AR E AR EN
accounted for using the equity method Bt A RIFIE(B18)
FRE 11 237 (427)
Profit before income tax RetFrBBiATFIE 759,180 826,054
Income tax expenses FriSFiRIR 12 (188,016) (172,666)
Profit for the year FRRHE 571,164 653,388
Profit for the year attributable to: UTFEFEEFARRE :
— Shareholders of the Company — AR AR 562,260 619,559
— Non-controlling interests — JEiEAx R 8,904 33,829
571,164 653,388
other comprehensive income for FREMEE K (R
the year, net of tax Bi1E)
ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss  RJREE¥T D FEE Bz A IA B
— Currency translation differences — EBmE 34,765 (22,183)
Total comprehensive income for the year R 2 UL B4
605,929 631,205
REFEEARAR/ B FFH 143



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

uuT\DJa_E\EUK

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 & 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
et AREFT ARETFIT
Total comprehensive income for the year AT &5 EEERZE KRGS
attributable to: W
— Shareholders of the Company — AR AEIRRE 597,025 597,376
— Non-controlling interests i g 8,904 33,829
605,929 631,205
Earnings per share for profit attributable 72 BREREEFEHER
to the shareholders of the Company BN (UBRARYE T
(expressed in RMB per share) EX 1))
— Basic earnings per share — SRELRAF 13 0.44 0.49
— Diluted earnings per share — BREEAT 13 0.44 0.48

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income  BA_F44 2 EUL S 7= FE B RE BT b —

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mOBERER

As at 31 December

R12H31H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
btaF AR¥FT ARKFT
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in associates REEE QN RHIRE 11 6,078 5,841
Property, plant and equipment E S 14 51,022 95,058
Intangible assets EmAE 15 271,081 274,033
Financial assets at fair value through AR BEGTELFABR
profit or l0ss e RIEE 17 44,078 =
Other receivables and prepayments o e Wk I8 K FA A BUIR 18 75,746 33,439
Deferred income tax assets BLEFSRMEE 26 58,201 43,438
506,206 451,809
Current assets REEE
Inventories wE 14,454 17,562
Contract assets BHEE 5 23,887 23,889
Trade and other receivables and B 5 N Eo A FE IR IE DA K
prepayments TERTRIE 18 2,708,691 2,221,945
Financial assets at fair value through AR BEGFTELFTABR
profit or 10ss e mEE 17 27,165 55,456
Restricted cash ZREIIRE 5,326 1,907
Cash and cash equivalents ReERIFSEEY 19 2,049,079 2,264,412
4,828,602 4,585,171
Total assets EEHE 5,334,808 5,036,980
Equity R
Equity attributable to shareholders &2 TR RE/GER
of the Company
Share capital A% A 20 11,337 11,247
Other reserves HAith 21 1,238,079 1,754,380
Retained earnings REAF 1,693,148 1,188,606
2,942,564 2,954,233
Non-controlling interests IR S 116,555 102,295
Total equity fERAAEE 3,059,119 3,056,528
BEFEEERAT/ CB-ZFFH 145



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mOBEERERR

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2022 2021
2022 & 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
et AR¥TFiT AREFIT
Liabilities =L
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Borrowings (BN 25 52,000 -
Lease liabilities HeEaE 23 4,722 21,810
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFTSRARE 26 38,045 26,639
Other payables H M FUB 24 1,457 20,486
Contract liabilities AHEE 5 56,048 86,574
152,272 155,509
current liabilities REBEE
Borrowings B 25 22,000 -
Lease liabilities HEaE 23 7,077 28,373
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMERNFIA 24 1,245,189 1,052,871
Contract liabilities BHEE 5 588,236 544,352
Current income tax liabilities BNERFTIS T B E 260,915 199,347
2,123,417 1,824,943
Total liabilities BEHAEE 2,275,689 1,980,452
Total equity and liabilities ERRkABERE 5,334,808 5,036,980

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in A L4448 A & &K &R 3T — IR0 -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

1432 283 HEMGE MR E R 202343
A20ABEARRESTSHE  YHERREE -

The consolidated financial statements on pages 143 to 283 were
approved by the board of directors of the Company on 24 March
2023 and were signed on its behalf.

Wang Jun Shi Shushan
& BEIL
Director Director
e Ead
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Y S

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

FATRRES
Non-
Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital reserves earnings Total interests equity
BA Hitfits REEBA A FERER ERAE
Note RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
izt AREFT  ARETT  ARETT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETR
(Note 20) (Note 21)
(Hi20) (Hi21)
Balance at 1 January 2021 120215181 ARLES 11,057 2,051,382 628,905 2,691,344 26,006 2,717,350
Total comprehensive income for FR2ENRAR
the year
Profit for the year ENFE - - 619,559 619,559 33829 653,388
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ FARM2ENE - (22,183) - (22,183) - (22,183)
- (22183) 619,559 597,376 33829 631,205
Transactions with shareholders HRRNRS
Repurchase of shares of the Company BEARARR 2000) = (8,143) = (8,143) - (8,143)
Cancellation of shares Ripat i 20(5) ® 8 - - - -
Share option scheme-value of employee  FERRiE: 2l — (BB TREER
Services 2 - 2220 - 2220 - 2220
Share option scheme-isstied shares RlRiE 2 — B RIRG 200) 198 12071 = 12,269 = 12,269
Acquisition of subsidiaries KERBAR - - - - 43056 43,056
Capital contribution from non-controlling ~ FEEMR R T A
interests - - - - 1,740 1,740
Dividend distribution to non-controlling RFEERER DR S
interests - - - - (2,336) (2,336)
Dividend distribution to shareholders ARERRS 27 - (340,833) - (340,833) - (340,833)
Appropriation of statutory reserves EERERE 21 = 59,858 (59,858) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2021 12021512 A31 BHES 11,247 1,754,380 1,188,606 2,954,233 102,295 3,056,528
Balance at 1 January 2022 R2022 %15 1RMEE 11,247 1,754,380 1,188,606 2,954,233 102,295 3,056,528
Total comprehensive income forthe ~ S£R2ERHAE
year
Profit for the year FRFE - - 562,260 562,260 8,904 571,164
Other comprehensive income for theyear R EM2 AN - 34,765 - 34,765 - 34,765
- 34,765 562,260 597,025 8,904 605,929
Transactions with shareholders BRENRS
Repurchase of shares of the Company BOARTRS 20(0) (14,054) (14,054) - (14,054)
Cancellation of shares Rrinatsh 2000) 48 = - -
Share option scheme-value of employee BBk E:HEl — BERFERE
services 2 829 829 - 829
Share option scheme-issuied shares g8 — BBk 20@) 8,610 8,748 = 8,748
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEENE ET 29 - - 11,514 11,514
Capital contribution from non-controling ~ FHERERTE
interests = = = = 1,243 1,243
Dividend declared to non-controling RFERER DERE
interests - - - - (6,226) (6,226)
Disposal of a subsidiary HEHBAR - - - - (1,175) (1,175)
Dividend distribution to shareholders AREFRRS 27 = (604,217) - (604,217) - (604,217)
Appropriation of statutory reserves EERERE 2 - 57,718 (57,718) - - -
Balance at 31 Decermber 2022 R2022512831 BHEH 1337 1238079 1693148 2,942,564 11655 3,059,119
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should — BA 454 #E 25 8 8h 38 & B2 BEFT BT s — GBI -

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

uuT\ Iﬁ@ﬂll%%

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEFE

2022 2021
2022 £ 2021 4
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Hfa ARMTFT ARMBTFT
Cash flows from operating activities K& TEFESRERE
Cash generated from operations KEMBEE 28 443,918 283,439
Income tax paid BAPTSH (135,254) (105,000)
Net cash generated from operating && ZEFFESREFHE
activities 308,664 178,439
Cash flows from investing activities REZTEFESRERE
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE  BEMEE
equipment (15,629) (28,621)
Purchase of intangible assets BERVAE (2,112) (4,364)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - HENEKEN
plant and equipment Fri8sk18 984 347
Proceeds from disposal of intangible HEBEFEEMSHUA
assets - 839
Loans to a third party RE=ZFER (381,000) =
Repayments of loans from third parties ~ BEBF=HExK 411,000 -
Interest received on loan to third parties M2 =75 B FZERI FI B 6 28,896 =
Payments for deposits for a potential RARRNEZ N HES
acquisition - (100,000)
Refunds of deposits for a potential WEEWNBERERLS
acquisition 100,000 -
Payments for acquisitions of subsidiaries, UgB&FT B A & AT A
net of cash acquired HBRFTBH & 29 (24,715) (8,165)
Payments for financial assets at fair value FtA R EBEFEL T A
through profit or l0ss B2 mEEK
15 - (877,361)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets &N AR BET ST
at fair value through profit or loss ABZNEMEEMS
P 33 5,077 1,262,008
Interest received on senior notes BEAZBFFHE 7 6,179 6,251
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHBA A (1,842) =
Investments in associates REEE A RIAIRE 11 = (5,298)
Net cash generated from investing REZEFESHRESFHE
activities 126,838 245,636
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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Year ended 31 December
BE12H31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Hfa AR¥TFT ARMBTFT
Cash flows from financing activities BMEEZEFESRERE
Proceeds from exercise of share options 771 B8 A Fr 15 7018 20 (a) 8,748 12,269
Repurchase of shares of the Company BEARQRRGD 20 (b) (14,054) (8,143)
Capital injection by non-controlling R ERTE
interests 1,243 1,740
Repayments to related parties M) BB 75 K (4,800) (4,684)
Interest paid ERFLE 8 (7,888) (1,744)
Principal elements of lease payments HENRNEE IS (18,439) (16,782)
Repayments of bank borrowing EBRITENK (30,000)
Dividends paid to shareholders BEATARER AR E 27 (604,217) (340,833)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests = 1~ FE#% J&%ﬁnﬁ’]l& S\ (6,226) (2,336)
Net cash used in financing activities B&EZEFFARSFEHE (675,633) (360,513)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and iﬂ%&ﬁ%%ﬁ%
cash equivalents W), AR (240,131) 63,562
Cash and cash equivalents at the Eﬁiﬁﬁ)}fﬁ% B
beginning of year 2,264,412 2,217,784
Effects of exchange rate changes on Re KA eEEYMRIER
cash and cash equivalents FEHNTE 24,798 (16,934)
cash and cash equivalents at the FREERESEEY
end of the year 2,049,079 2,264,412

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i O I FE ER R U5

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (FkSBAAI »

150

GENERAL INFORMATION

Central China New Life Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16 October 2018 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law CAP.22 of the Cayman Islands. The address
of the Company's registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands.

The Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 15 May 2020.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in (i) provision of property management
and value-added services (i) provision of lifestyle services
and (iii) provision of commercial property management and
consultation services in the People's Republic of China (the
“PRC"). The controlling shareholders of the Company are
Enjoy Start Limited (“Enjoy Start”), a company
incorporated under the laws of British Virgin Islands (“BVI")
and Mr. Wu Po Sum (collectively “Mr. Wu" or the
“Controlling Shareholder”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the board of directors of the Company on 24
March 2023.

The outbreak of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus (the
“COVID-19") had brought unprecedented challenges and
added uncertainties to the economy. COVID-19 may affect
the financial performance and position of the industry of
property management. Since the outbreak of COVID-19, the
Group kept continuous attention on the situation of the
COVID-19 and reacted actively to its impact on the financial
position and operating results of the Group. As at the date
that the consolidated financial information is authorised for
issue, COVID-19 doesn't have any material adverse impact
on the financial position and operating result of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fm 5 B FS e R BU 5

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B S EHBIN - FTESBUARE FIT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
The consolidated financial statements are for the Group
consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation
() Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRS) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (HKCO) Cap.
622.

(i)  Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared
on a historical cost basis, except for certain
financial assets measured at fair value.

(iii) New and amended standards adopted by
the Group
The Group has applied the following standards
and amendments for the first time for their
annual reporting year commencing 1 January
2022 and there is no material impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statement:

° Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use — Amendments to
HKAS 16

° Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract — Amendments to HKAS 37
° Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards

2018-2020

o Reference to the Conceptual Framework
— Amendments to HKFRS 3

° Amendments to AG 5 Merger Accounting
for Common Control Combinations
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

FBERBEAARE T )

2 EEEITHEERBE@

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEXE(F)
(iv) New standards and interpretations not (iv) [ R HTETER R 22 FE
yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are
not mandatory for 31 December 2022 reporting
period and have not been early adopted by the
Group. These standards are not expected to
have a material impact on the entity in the
current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions:

TR Rt LR R RED KB
fio - MR FER KRR 2022 4F
12 A 31 B $R&E BARAL IR BIE -
BY EBEAEERFRA - B
FZELEATERBERIARKRRE
HRHERBMAIBRARZSHE
EERTE

Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after
RUTEHR 2%
HmNETTHEER

152

HKFRS 17
BAMBHEERET7 5

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

BB ERIE 15 (BETA)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

B GFTERFE 1T BT HRE

ERIEBREE 25 (BFTA)

Amendments to HKAS 8
BB ERIE 8% (BEFTA)

Insurance Contracts
RERE K

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current

MENSIERBI A ES

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

R HER

Definition of Accounting Estimates
GEHAFTHES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B S EHBIN - FTESBUARE FIT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEITHERBE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 mBIE%E(F)

(iv) New standards and interpretations not (iv) [ERFEMBIFETER R ZFE (#E)

yet adopted (Continued)

Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after
RUTHEHR 2%
MR EHEER
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and 1 January 2023
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction
BB ERIE 129 (IBFTAR) HE - ZEFNEEMNAGEREAN 20231 H1H
EERIA
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and 1 January 2024
Leaseback
BB BHREERE 1658 BRI A) EEMARMEEAE 20241 H1H
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised)  Presentation of Financial Statements 1 January 2024

— Classification by the Borrower of
a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause
BEEREELST (K1EBET) MEmK 25— BRAMERE 2024F1H1H
BREXHEHERND

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendment)  Sale or contribution of assets To be determined
between an investor and its
associate or joint venture

BERUBREEMNE10HRRELR REFEHABEMES R ELE LA BREE
SEPERFE 285K (BRI A) MEEHERHE

BEFETARAT / —B-—FER 153
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

154

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including a
structured entities) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the
Group (refer to Note 2.3).

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and
balance sheet respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Fk S A=A -

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)
(b) Associates

(c)

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the
Group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of
accounting (see Note 2.2(c) below), after initially
being recognised at cost.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of
the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s
share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive
income. Dividends received or receivable from
associates are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its
interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the other entity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

156

(c)

(d)

Equity method (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity-accounted investees have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in Note
2.9.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control
The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a loss
of control as equity transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership
interest results in an adjustment between the
carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount of the adjustment to non-
controlling interests and any consideration paid
or received is recognised in a separate reserve
within equity attributable to owners of the
Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Business combinations

2 EEETHERBE@

2.3 EBEH

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless of
whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

o equity interests issued by the Group

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in
the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’'s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:

° consideration transferred,

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

158

2.3

24

Business combinations (Continued)

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker (“CODM"). The
CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive
directors that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group'’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The Company is
expecting to transact its future operating and
financing activities primarily in HK dollar
("HK$"), which is the Company’s functional
currency. As the major operations of the Group
are within the PRC, the Group determined to
present its consolidated financial statements in
RMB.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at
year-end exchange rates are generally
recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income within
finance (costs)/income — net. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on a net basis within other (losses)/
gains-net.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

160

(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)

Translation difference on assets and liabilities
carried at fair value are reported as part of the

fair value gain or loss.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance

sheet;

° income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the rate on the dates of the transactions);

and

° all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold or any borrowings forming
part of the net investment are repaid, the
associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain

or loss on sale.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Vehicles 5 years
—  Equipment and furniture 3-5years
—  Machinery 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount.
These are included in profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets

162

2.8

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.3.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not
amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and
losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The
units or groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes, being the
operating segments.

Platform and know-how

Platform and know-how acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The contractual technology
has a finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of 10 years for the technology.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8
(c)

(d)

(e)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Order-Backlog and customer relationship
Order-Backlog and customer relationship
acquired in a business combination is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
The order backlog and customer relationship
have a finite useful life and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of 3 to 10 years.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets mainly include
computer software. They are initially recognised
and measured at costs incurred to acquire and
bring them to use. Other intangible assets are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 3
to 5 years, using the straight-line method which
reflects the pattern in which the intangible
asset’s future economic benefits are expected
to be consumed.

Research and development

Research expenditures and development
expenditures that do not meet the criteria are
recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an asset in a
subsequent period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

164

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill that has an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

2.10 Investments and other financial assets

(a) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at
fair value (either through other
comprehensive income, or through profit
or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial

assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. For investments
in debt instruments, this will depend on the
business model in which the investment is held.
For investments in equity instruments, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit of loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or
loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)
(c) Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses)-net
together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

. FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented
net within other gains/(losses)-net in the
period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group'’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group's right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in other gains/(losses)-net
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as applicable.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the consolidated
balance sheet where the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts, and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.11 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of purchased inventory are
determined after deducting rebates and discounts.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.12 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. They are generally due
for settlement within 12 months (or within the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer) and
therefore all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the
trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. See Note 18 for further information
about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables
and Note 3.1.2 for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.

2.13 cash and cash equivalents

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand and deposits held
at call with financial institutions.

2.14 Share capital

168

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
ordinary shares (treasury shares), the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental
costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from equity
attributable to the Company’s shareholders until the
shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such shares
are subsequently reissued, any consideration
received, net of any directly attributable incremental
transaction costs and the related income tax effects,
is included in equity attributable to the Company’s
shareholders.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.15 Trade and other payables

2 EEETHERBE@

2.15 E5 R H RN IR

Trade payables represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

2.16 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

170

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and
when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.17 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating annual
leave that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service
are recognised in respect of employees’
services up to the end of the reporting period
and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Pension obligations

The Group only operate defined contribution
pension plans. In accordance with the rules and
regulations in the PRC, the PRC based
employees of the Group participate in various
defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by the relevant municipal and
provincial governments in the PRC under which
the Group and the PRC based employees are
required to make monthly contributions to
these plans calculated as a percentage of the
employees’ salaries. The municipal and
provincial governments undertake to assume
the retirement benefit obligations of all existing
and future retired PRC based employees’
payable under the plans described above. Other
than the monthly contributions, the Group has
no further obligation for the payment of
retirement and other post-retirement benefits
of its employees. The assets of these plans are
held separately from those of the Group in
independently administrated funds managed by
the governments.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Pension obligations (Continued)

172

(c)

The Group also participates in a retirement
benefit scheme under the rules and regulations
of the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance (“MPF Scheme”) for all employees
in Hong Kong. The contributions to the MPF
Scheme are based on minimum statutory
contribution requirement of the lower of 5% of
eligible employees’ relevant aggregate income
and HK$1,500. The assets of this MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.

The Group's contributions to the defined
contribution retirement scheme are expensed
as incurred.

Housing funds, medical insurances and
other social insurances

Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled
to participate in various government-supervised
housing funds, medical insurances and other
social insurance plan. The Group contributes on
a monthly basis to these funds based on certain
percentages of the salaries of the employees,
subject to certain ceiling. The Group'’s liability in
respect of these funds is limited to the
contributions payable in each year.
Contributions to the housing funds, medical
insurances and other social insurances are
expensed as incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier of
the following dates: (a) when the Group can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and
(b) when the entity recognises costs for a
restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS
37 and involves the payment of termination
benefits. In the case of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period
are discounted to their present value.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.18 Share-based payments

174

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to
employees via the Pre-IPO Employee Share Option
Plan in 2019. Information relating to the schemes is
set out in Note 22.

Employee options

The fair value of options granted under the Pre-IPO
Employee Share Option Plan is recognised as an
employee benefits expense with a corresponding
increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted:

— including any market performance conditions
(e.g. the entity’s share price)

— excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (e.g.
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining
an employee of the entity over a specified time
period), and

— including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (e.g. the requirement for employees
to save or holdings shares for a specific period
of time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the
end of each period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to vest
based on the non-market vesting and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.19 Provisions 2.19 #1&

2 EEETHERBE@

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and
make good obligations are recognised when the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as interest expense.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition
Revenues are recognised when or as the control of
the goods or services is transferred to the customer.
Depending the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods and
services may be transferred over time or at a point in

176

time.

(€:))

Property management services and value-
added services

The Group mainly provides property
management services, onsite sales assistance
service, consultancy services, installation and
decoration services, property inspection
services, property agency service and
membership service.

For property management services, the Group
bills a fixed amount for services provided on a
monthly basis and recognises as revenue in the
amount to which the Group has a right to
invoice and that corresponds directly with the
value of performance completed.

For onsite sale assistance services, the Group
bills a fixed amount for services provided on a
monthly basis and recognises as revenue in the
amount to which the Group has a right to
invoice and that corresponds directly with the
value of performance completed.

Consultancy services mainly include
consultancy services to property developers,
providing designing, cleaning, greening,
construction supervision, repair and
maintenance services to property developers at
the pre-delivery stage. The Group agrees the
price for each service with the customers
upfront and issues the monthly bill to the
customers which varies based on the actual
level of service completed in that month.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Fk S A=A -

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

Property management services and value-
added services (Continued)

For installation and decoration services, the
Group provides installation services for the
security system and other establishment of
intelligence communities and provides
decoration services to property owners. The
Group recognises revenue over the period of
the contract by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. The progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation, in an amount that reflects the
consideration expected to be entitled and,
depending on the nature of the contract, is
measured mainly by reference to (a) the
proportion of contract costs incurred for work
performed to date to estimated total contract
costs for each contract; or (b) completion of
physical proportion of the contract work.

For property inspection service, the Group
provides property quality inspection to property
developer and the revenue is recognised upon
the completion of service.

For property agency service, the Group acts as
a sales agent for property developer, landlord
and tenant and provides property agency
services, which charge such property
developer, landlord and tenant a commission
calculated based on the contract purchase
price. Revenue from agency services is
recognised at a point in time when the service
is rendered and the sales and purchase
agreement or leasing agreement are executed
and become effective.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

178

(a)

(b)

Property management services and value-
added services (Continued)

For the membership service, the Group
provides exclusive customer services to VIP
members selected by Central China Real Estate
Limited (“CCRE") and its subsidiaries (the
“CCRE Group”). The Group bills CCRE a
management fee based on the number of
members and additional fees for organising
special events.

Lifestyle services

Lifestyle services mainly includes travel
services, sales of goods and provision of
catering services.

For travel services, the Group provides short-
term self-operated tour service. Revenue from
tours is recognised over time in accounting
period in which the control of services is
transferred to the customer because the
customer simultaneously receives and
consumes benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as it performs. Payment is usually
made to the Group before the customers
receive the tour services.

The Group determines the presentation of its
revenue by assessing whether it acts as the
principal of the services that are rendered. The
Group presents its revenue on a gross basis
(that is, the amount billed to the users) as the
Group acts as a principal by pre-purchasing the
travel related products from the travel service
suppliers. The purchase payments to the travel
suppliers are recorded as “cost of revenue” in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Fk S A=A -

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Lifestyle services (Continued)

(c)

The Group procures merchandise from
suppliers and sells goods directly to the
property owners online and in community.
Sales of goods are recognised when the Group
delivers the goods to the customers. The Group
presents the revenue on a net basis when the
Group acts as an agent with no control over the
goods and does not assume inventory risk.

The Group operates the food court to provide
catering services. Revenue from provision of
catering services are recognised at a point in
time when the food and beverage are delivered
to the customers.

Commercial property management and
consultation services

Commercial property management and
consultation services includes hotel
management and operation services and
management for agricultural and cultural
tourism projects and commercial real estate
operation.

The Group recognises the fee received or
receivable as its revenue over time in the period
in which the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the
services performed by the Group and all the
related management costs as its cost of
services.

If contracts involve the sale of multiple services,
the transaction price allocated to each
performance obligation based on their relative
stand-alone selling prices. If the stand-alone
selling prices are not directly observable, they
are estimated based on expected cost plus a
margin or adjusted market assessment
approach, depending on the availability of
observable information.

2 EET

=/\H
=

By} Y5 ¥ 2R BfU 5

A BEAARE T T

FTBURBIE (@)

2.20 W AR (4)

(b)

(c)

BEMEERRLT /=

EE R ()

7 5= B 1) 444 8 7 PR R e R AR

J:&EZil?jWE&ﬁ%Itlj%i‘f
c EmHERERNARERE

uuxﬁ%i)f'ﬁﬂ'ﬁ o fHANKEYE

ERE - HHERE I 8T 5

Ay EAEEERR - RIZFE

HEZFIWA -

AEERERRERHERR
% o IR ERRGEOBAEER
RSB P ey KA FRRER -

BIREEEE R & AR

BEAEEE R ARG BEE
RERBRREELRYE - AREER
XALHHE A R R AR A
-

EXFREBKENEEAEEE
1T R 75 %5 SR B 7 22 LA K% P B R
%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ#ﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁ%ﬁi$ﬁ’\],ﬁﬂ?§
AR EREREEESEC K
iﬁﬂ&;ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁu REUA e

WE Y RIHEZERE X5
ERREBEEAEBYEESEE
BEREAOEME - HEZEREERER
HE EE - REIZTRIAA I
BARHRAERHED IS AR
it RFELAERENME -

To_FER 179



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9=
wh 43

87} 55 R 2R B 5

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Bx S A& AN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

180

(c)

Commercial property management and
consultation services (Continued)

When either party to a contract has performed,
the Group presents the contract in the balance
sheet as a contract asset or a contract liability,
depending on the relationship between the
Group’s performance and the customer’s
payment.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the
Group has transferred to a customer.

If @ customer pays consideration or the Group
has a right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional, before the Group transfers
services to the customer, the Group presents
the contract as a contract liability when the
payment is received or a receivable is recorded
(whichever is earlier). A contract liability is the
Group's obligation to transfer services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has
an unconditional right to consideration. A right
to consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of
that consideration is due.

2.21 Interest income
Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is
included in the net fair value gains/(losses) on these
assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
calculated using the effective interest method, except
for those are held for cash management purposes, is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as “other income”.

Interest income is presented as finance income
where it is earned from financial assets that are held
for cash management purposes.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Leases 2.22 #HE

2 EEETHERBE@

The Group as a lessee

The Group leases various properties. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased
assets may not be used as security of borrowing
purpose.

Lease is recognised as a right-of-use asset (Note 23)
and corresponding liability at the date of which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the lease term on a straight-line
basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

(@ fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that are based on an
index or a rate;

(c) amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

(d) the exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Leases (Continued)

2 EEEITHEERBE@

2.22 HE (#)

182

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(e) payment of penalties for terminating of the
lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

(@ where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as a
starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing
was received

(b)  uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group, which does not have
recent third party financing, and

(©)  makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Leases (Continued) 2.22 HE (&)

2 EEETHERBE@

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

(@ the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received,

(c) anyinitial direct cost; and

(d) restoration costs

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over
the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying
asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all
leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less. Low-value assets comprise staff
dormitories and small items of office furniture.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Leases (Continued)

The Group as a sublease lessor

Sub-lease is a transaction for which an underlying
asset is re-leased by a lessee (“sublease lessor”) to
a third party, and the lease (“head lease”) between
the head lessor and lessee remains in effect. In
classifying a sublease, a sublease lessor shall classify
the sublease as a finance lease or an operating lease
as follows:

(@ If the head lease is a short-term lease that the
entity, as a lessee, has accounted for the lease
payments associated with those leases as an
expense on either a straight-line basis over the
lease term or another systematic basis, the
sublease shall be classified as an operating
lease.

(b)  Otherwise, the sublease shall be classified by
referenced to the right-of-use asset arising from
the head lease as finance lease or operating
lease.

2.23 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no
longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the
end of the reporting period but not distributed at the
end of the reporting period.

2.24 Government grants

184

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.25 Earnings per share

(i)

(ii)

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing:

. the profit attributable to shareholders of
the Company, excluding any costs of
servicing equity other than ordinary
shares

° by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during
the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:

° the after-income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

o the weighted average number of
additional ordinary shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

2 EEETHERBE@

2.25 BREF
FREX BT
BREXRENIZ

(i)

(ii)

AR R EEFIE (8
R EE L BABUAIN 2 e
AR AR)

RARMRFEEEHTE
i R B N S BET B
Y REBEFABTHE AR
WA AR BETBRERE
TFRAD ©

SREERTF
BREERNARBEERER
BN B AT B

HEEHEEARBRN
) SN CE fth B B X AN O BT
BHREFE K

BRABEEHBLT AR
WEBRLEIICDETER
Py AN 9 8 o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance.

3.1 Financial risk factors
3.1.1 Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

Currency risk as defined by HKFRS 7
arises on financial assets and financial
liabilities being denominated in a currency
that is not the functional currency and
being of a monetary nature. Therefore
non-monetary financial assets and
financial liabilities, monetary financial
assets and financial liabilities
denominated in the entity’'s functional
currency and differences resulting from
the translation of financial statements of
overseas entities into the Group's
presentation currency are not taken into
consideration for the purpose of the
sensitivity analysis for currency risk.

The Group has not entered into any
forward exchange contract to hedge its
exposure to foreign exchange risk. The
Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
for certain monetary financial assets and
financial liabilities being denominated in a
currency that is not the functional
currency as follows:

FBERBEAARE T )

Bt %55 [ Bx T 38
AEBKLERHEBSEVBRR : m5E
Eﬁ 1:\%’_“3»/\ //\L@J‘Eﬂﬁﬁ/\ Z'KEIE)]IEFLL

HEﬁEEEEJrilJEEPE’\%mH&m%H’JTT%E A
- TR A KBRS RIRAEE T

TE %:Et?ffﬁ s

3.1 BEREBEZR
3.1.1 75 AR
()  SMER
BV ELERIE 7R
E%m%ﬁﬂﬁxau#
MeEEEIRITBEE M
EmemEERERAE
FrEZ - Bt FEES
MEEHSHAE  N&
BB 2NEES ﬁ@mf
KeMEENRSRAED

&X@%@%Emm%%
BERELSAEENZ7
EBRELENEZ TSR
ASNE R R BRE A ITA o

7 52 B R AT S (AT 3= A 40

BE & 49 LA S SIMEE 2L Bt

AEBRB AL FEEE R

MEBFENEESRE

EkeRBEARNINE
BRI -

Exposure to foreign currencies

NS TR B
As at 31 December
®12H31H
2022 2021
2022 £ 2021 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TFr ARSFT
Monetary assets denominated in =~ "R GHEHHIUARE
RMB held by the Company FHMEMEREE
— Cash and cash equivalents —ReRBEeEEY 580 33,799
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(i)

A BEAARE T T

3 BRERER®

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BERMEEHE)
3.1.1 Market risk (Continued) 3.1.1 5B ()
) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) ()  SMEEPE (4&)
The following table shows the sensitivity TRIR AR Z BB
analysis of a 5% change in the respective EEB 5% BB o
functional currency against the relevant FRE DT ERTEIAINE
foreign currencies. The sensitivity analysis SHEMERIRR - WO
includes only foreign currency MERE B % FHEHFR
denominated monetary items and adjusts BE - MEEE LA
their translation at the year-end for a 5% E¥AE(ZE)5%  F
change in foreign currency rates. If there N R BT PRAS B AT AR IE
is a 5% increase/(decrease) in the /G Mg EmT
functional currency against the relevant
currencies, the effect of increase/
(decrease) in the profit before income tax
for the year is as follows:
As at 31 December
M®12831H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®Fr ARBFT
5% increase in HK$ against RMB &7t A R EFHE 5% (29) (1,690)
5% decrease in HK$ against RMB B 7T A R EEEZE 5% 29 1,690

(ii)

As at 31 December 2022, the financial
assets denominated in US$ were mainly
held by the oversea group entities, whose
functional currency is HK$. The
management considers that foreign
exchange risk of US$ against HK$ was
insignificant (31 December 2021: same).

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises
from cash and cash equivalents with
variable rates and senior notes with fixed
rate, which expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk and fair value interest
rate risk, respectively. The directors of the
Company do not anticipate there is any
significant impact to the Group’s
performance resulted from the changes
in interest rates, because the interest
rates of bank balances are not expected
to change significantly and the discount
impact on the fair value of the senior
notes is quite limited.

M2022%12 A318 » I3
TR ENEMEETER
BONEBERSE HY
REEMABETL - EERER
B TC B TR INE B B
I A &E K (20214F12 A 31
B :4ER) -

(i) HERBRRAAEBEFE

BEFREEAR

203

ZN QU ESE: R
BY¥BNERERREE
BEOLEENEEBAER
% 2B S BN R E E
RenMERRMNALE
EMEER - BRIRITAE
BAKRFEH LG KNIEE
B FAREAHEERE
ARBEENFERR
NS S S0 R
REHEHAEEREE
RAEMERFE -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

188

3.1.2 Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to
its trade receivables, contract assets, note
receivables, other receivables, financial assets
at FVPL, restricted cash and cash deposits at
banks. The carrying amounts of trade
receivables, contract assets, note receivables,
other receivables, financial assets at FVPL,
restricted cash and cash deposits at banks
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to financial assets.

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. To assess whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It
considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

— internal credit rating
— external credit rating

— actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant change to the debitor’s
ability to meet its obligations

— actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of the debitor

— significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the
debitor, including changes in the payment
status of debitors in the Group and
changes in the operating results of the
debitor.

Central China New Life Limited / 2022 Annual Report
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2Credit risk (Continued)
The Group accounts for its credit risk by
appropriately providing for expected credit
losses on a timely basis. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers
historical loss rates for each category of
receivables and adjusts for forward looking
macroeconomic data.

(i)

(ii)

Cash deposits at banks (including
restricted cash)

The Group expects that there is no
significant credit risk associated with cash
deposits at banks (including restricted
cash) since they are substantially
deposited at state-owned banks and
other medium or large-sized listed banks.
Management does not expect that there
will be any significant losses from non-
performance by these counterparties.

Trade receivables, note receivables and
contract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit
losses (“ECL") which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables, note receivables and contract
assets.

The contract assets relate to unbilled
work in progress and have substantially
the same risk characteristics as the trade
receivables for the same types of
contracts. The Group has therefore
concluded that the expected loss rates for
trade receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for the
contract assets.

B S E B B IR ()

B 7 B B R & (48)
31.2ERpkE (&)

AEBBEBERUBREEEE
EHEERE  UEEESERR
AR B ERHBEREFEEX
B AEEEEESEWKIASR
AEBEEBEE  WHAEER
B ESBFHRE -

() RITREFH (BEZRH
BE)
AEBEBHRITREFER
(BRIRHIRE) W ESE
REERRE  BAHE A
DEBRBEARTREA
KRB EMRIT BB
BEHRZFHFHTEOS
NEEREMEREE -

(i) EBZEWKNE  BREE
REHWEE
AEBERBEEVHRS
ERIE IRAB LT ARTE
BEREEER(EHREE
BRI BAAEEZREK
RE BERBERENE
EFEAEHEREEER -

BHEEERFAENER
TREMR TERBEED
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

190

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Trade receivables, note receivables and
contract assets (Continued)

For trade receivable, note receivables and
contract assets with significantly different
credit risk characteristics (i.e. occurrence
of credit impairment or with the collection
of repayments stagnated), the Group
evaluated the distribution of expected cash
flows under multiple scenarios based on
historical experience of credit losses,
current situations and forecasts of future
conditions of contract counterparties
under different situations, and made
corresponding provision for expected
credit losses according to expected credit
rate and the related probability weight
under different scenarios.

Receivables without occurrence of credit
impairment and the collection of
repayments stagnated, or the expected
credit losses cannot be estimated for an
individual financial asset at a reasonable
cost, the Group groups the receivables
based on its judgement whether there are
significant differences in customers’
credit risk characteristics and measures
the expected credit losses based on
groups. Basis for determining groupings is
as follows:

Group 1: Receivables due from third
parties — property owners

Group 2: Receivables and contract assets
due from third parties — property
developers

Group 3: Receivables due from third
parties — non-property developers

Group 4: Receivables and contract assets
due from related parties

Central China New Life Limited / 2022 Annual Report
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Trade receivables, note receivables and
contract assets (Continued)

For the trade receivable and contract
assets in groups, the Group makes
reference to the historical experience of
credit losses, combining with the current
situation and forecast of economic
situation in the future, and prepares the
model which refers to the aging profiles,
external credit rating (if available) and the
rate of the expected credit losses during
lifetime in order to measure the ECL.

The expected credit losses also incorporate
forward looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.
The Group has identified the most relevant
factors for customers in different industries
(e.g. money supply, Consumer Price Index
and year-on-year increase in RVB loans),
and accordingly adjusts the historical loss
rates based on expected changes in these
factors.

A BEAARE T T

3 HEERER @)

3.1 MBERREZE )
3.1.2 5 EEE (4)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

192

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Trade receivables, note receivables and
contract assets (Continued)

@)

Since the second half year of 2022, the
Group has identified that the
receivables from a non-controlling
interest amounting to RMB78,665,000
were with the collection of repayments
stagnated, and management assessed
the ECL of the receivables on the
individual basis by considering
experience of historical credit loss,
current situations and forecasts of
future conditions of the non-controlling
interest.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group
recognised the ECL by calculating
the probability-weighted present
value of the difference between the
contractual cash flows from trade
receivable and cash flows expected
to be received under different
scenarios, taking into account the
latest developments, the preliminary
repayment plan commitment of the
non-controlling interest, and the
legal advice from internal lawyers.

As at 31 December 2022, the loss
allowance provision accumulated to
RMB32,666,000 was recognised, of
which RMB30,692,000 was accrued
in the current year.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

fm 5 B FS e R BU 5

A BEAARE T T

3 HHEEMER @)

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BBEREE &)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 3.1.21=ERE (&)
(i) Trade receivables, note receivables and (i) BEZENKZE  ERZE

contract assets (Continued) REHWEE (48)

(b) As at 31December 2022, trade (b) M2022%12H318 -
receivables and contract assets with B EETIRTEHA
allowance for expected credit l0ss EEEERENES
made on the grouping basis were JEUGRIBEREHNEE
analysed as follows: ST :

Upto180 180days 1to2  2to3  3to4  Overd
days to 1year years years years years Total
ENidcl 180 %
180 % Z1E 156225 265Z3%F 3ER4FE  AENL @t
Group 1: EERIN
Trade receivables 5 EKFE
Gross carrying amount  BEE4A(E

(RMB'000) (ARKFI) 191,022 122,665 76856 34,600 14,667 14,378 454,188
Expected loss rate BHERE 3.89% 3.89% 9.55%  13.14%  25.37%  63.26% 8.12%
Loss allowance BEEE

provision RMB'000) (AR Fr) (7,423)  (4767)  (7,342)  (4,548)  (3,721)  (9,095) (36,896)
Group 2: A2
Trade receivables  EZEWHE
Gross carrying amount  FEEIAE

(RMB'000) (ARMFIT) 116872 40,742 25314 12,040 1,827 259 197,054
Expected loss rate BHERE 4.17% 417%  20.68%  43.97% 100.00% 100.00% 9.74%
Loss allowance BREEE

provision (RMB'000)  (AR#Fir) (4,881)  (1,700)  (5236)  (5294)  (1,827) (259)  (19,197)
Contract assets BNEE
Gross carryingamount  BEEI A&

(RMB'000) (ARKFT) 2,827
Expected loss rate THEER 2.05%
Loss allowance BEEE

provision RMB'000)  (AR#Fr) (58)
Group 3 @R3:

Trade receivables  EZEWFE
Gross carrying amount Sk E42(E

(RMB'000) (ARETFT) 120772 45297 36,308 3,775 169 - 206,321
Expected lossrate  FBEGER 513%  5.35%  2571% 100.00% 100.00% 100%  10.61%
Loss allowance EERE

provision RMB'000)  (AREFr) (6,195)  (2,422)  (9,336)  (3,775) (169) - (21,897)
Contract assets EHEE
Gross carryingamount  BREIA1E

(RMB'000) (AREFT) 577
Expected loss rate BHEEE 1.71%
Loss allowance BEEE

provision RMB000)  (AREFT) (10)

pyyeTERAR/ —g=—55% 193
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

194

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables, note receivables and

(ii)

)

3 HHEERER @)

3.1 BERERREZE#E)
31.2ERpE (&)
(i) EBEZEWE  EREE

contract assets (Continued) REWEE (&)

As at 31December 2022, trade (b)y 2022912H318 -

receivables and contract assets with oy A E AR TR B

allowance for expected credit loss EEEBEREENES

made on the grouping basis were UGB REHEE

analysed as follows: (Continued) DT : (&)
Total

et

Group 4: %44

Trade receivables B 2 RNFIR

Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) EEBE(AREFT) 1,692,151

Expected loss rate TEHEIE X 5.38%

Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) &1 (A & FT) (91,051)

Contract assets EREE

Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) FEBEARETT) 21,576

Expected loss rate TEHAEIE % 4.75%

Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) &% s (A B FT) (1,025)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

©

= =
tro Bl SR FEhUsE
(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B BAHAIN - FFIAESEUARE T TH)
3 H¥EMERE @
3.1 BERBEZE)
3.1.21E =Bz (&)
Trade receivables, note receivables and (i) EBZEWEIE. EREE
contract assets (Continued) REWEE (&)
As at 31 December 2021, the loss (€ M2021%F12H318 -
allowance provision for the trade T S EW AL S
receivables determined on the AEEETF R EER
grouping basis was analysed as ESNOT :
follows:
Upto 180 180 days 1102 2103 3t04 Over4
days  to1year years years years years Total
TiEh 180K
180K 215 15226 26%3F 3FER4F  4FME @t
Group 1 EERR
Trade receivables &3 EWHKE
Gross carrying amount  EEEIA(E
(RMB'000) (AR¥Fr) 116,363 75,847 63,023 27,233 10,228 9,917 302,611
Expected loss rate EHEEX 413% 4.13% 862%  1260%  24.68%  62.60%
Loss allowance FiERE
provision (RMB'000) (AR¥Fr) (4,801) (3,129 (5,435) (3,443 (2,524) (6,212) (25,544)
Group 2 #52
Trade receivables ~ EZEKFE
Gross carrying amount  EEEIAE
(RMB'000) (AREFT) 148629 35,181 24,106 6,441 482 34 214873
Expected loss rate BHBEX 3.53% 3.75% 20.04% 43.46% 100% 100%
Loss allowance BRRE
provision (RMB'000) (ARETT) (5,245) (1,320 (4,830) (2,800) (482) (34) (14,711)
Contract assets BHEE
Gross carryingamount  EEEI4A1E
(RMB'000) (AREFT) 2,573
Expected loss rate BHEER 1.65%
Loss allowance BiBERE
provision (RMB'000) (AR Fr) @3)
Group 3 @53
Trade receivables  EZEKFE
Gross carryingamount  BEEI42(E
(RMB'000) (AE¥Fi) 78,394 33,146 26,160 2,647 - - 140347
Expected loss rate BHERE 4.93% 514%  25.51% 100% 100% 100%
Loss allowance BEEE
provision (RMB'000) (AR¥Fr) (3,862) (1,704) (6,673) (2,647) - - (14,886)
Contract assets aNEE
Gross carryingamount  BREIAE
(RMB000) (AREFT) 601
Expected loss rate BHEER 1.66%
Loss allowance EERE
provision RMB000)  (AR#Fr) (10
REFEEARAR/ B FFH 195
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

196

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Trade receivables, note receivables and

contract assets (Continued)

©

As at 31 December 2021, the loss
allowance provision for the trade
receivables determined on the
grouping basis was analysed as
follows: (Continued)

3 HHEERER @)

3.1

MBERERE)

31.21=ERE ()
(i) EBEZEWE  EREE
REWEE (&)

©

R2021F12 8318 -
B 5 EWFIALR D
AEEETF R EIEE
HomWT ()

Total
MBET
Group 4: $44 -
Trade receivables B 2 RWFEIER
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) REAE(AREFT) 1,137,223
Expected loss rate TEHAE 1B % 2.58%
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) &% s (A B FT) (29,327)
Contract assets EHNEE
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) FEBEARETFIT) 21,312
Expected loss rate TEHAES IR X 2.55%
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000)  [Ei8#E (A RE&F L) (544)
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, d) 720225 % 20214 12

the management considered the
credit risk associated with note
receivables was insignificant.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HEERER @)
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BRERREZE#E)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

31.2ERpkE (&)

(iii)  Other receivables

A summary of the assumptions
underpinning the Group's expected credit

(iii) HAEWRE
AR ER B H R W SRR TR A
EEBEBRENMRENMR

loss model for other receivables is as T
follows:
Basis for recognition of expected
Category Group definition of category credit loss provision
il AEEHEEINES BRENEEFERABRENEE

Performing (“Stage 1)

EF(E1ER])

Underperforming (“Stage 2”)

RE (58 2B&ER 1)

Non-performing (“Stage 3”)

TR(TEIRR))

Customers have a low risk of default
and a strong capacity to meet
contractual cash flows

EFEORKRIE - BARE
MEAKNRERE

Receivables for which there is a
significant increase in credit risk; as
significant increase in credit risk is
presumed if interest and/or principal
repayments are 30 days past due

EE R e BRI hnH) FE U FRIE
WFE R, AE BT E
0K AEEEERREE
2

Interest and/or principal repayments
are 90 days past due
FER/ A EREEAOKX

12 months expected losses. Where the
expected lifetime of an asset is less than
12 months, expected losses are
measured at its expected lifetime (“12
months ECL method")

1218 A K TR EAE 18 - ERATEHR
FEBE12EAZANEE -
TEET BT IR E N A TR A A A7
FrE(12EATAREEEE
7]

Lifetime expected losses

2 HIFERHE R

Lifetime expected losses

EHIEHER

On that basis, as at 31 December 2022
and 2021, the loss allowance provision for
the other receivables was determined as
follows. The expected credit losses below
also incorporated forward looking

information.

BEFEEERAR/ B _FF3R

UM E - R202F &
202112 A318 » HbfE
WHIERBEREE TN
T ATHBHEESSE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HBEREE@®
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B¥RKBEEE)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 3.1.21=ERE (&)
(iii)  Other receivables (Continued) (i) EAmbpEKIE ()
Non-
Performing performing Total
EE TR Foby
As at 31 December 2022 20225128 31H
Gross carrying amount RHEeE
(RMB'000) (ARBFT) 254,010 - 254,010
Expected loss rate TEHISE X 2.49% -
Loss allowance provision E1BREE
(RMB’000) (AR®Fr) (6,315) - (6,315)
As at 31 December 2021 #42021%12831H
Gross carrying amount REAE
(RMB’'000) (AR%FT) 388,642 100,000 488,642
Expected loss rate TEHBEX 1.94% 38.60%
Loss allowance provision ity
(RMB’000) (AR®FT) (7,525) (38,600) (46,125)
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the BE 2022 K 2021412 A
loss allowance provision for trade and 31H B REMEUWR
other receivables reconciles to the IF ) B 18 B4 B E W) 4
opening loss allowance for that provision e T . a
as follows: BRI -
Trade
receivables
and contract Other
assets receivables Total
E5REFER
ENEE HthEWFE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AR®TFT AR®TT
As at 1 January 2021 R2021%1818 28,775 956 29,731
Net impairment losses on ERMEENEERE
financial and contract assets 518 %8 56,330 45,169 101,499
Receivables written off during 4 84 Al i [l
the year as uncollectible ) FE R IR (40) = (40)
As at 31 December 2021  #2021%£12 8318 85,065 46,125 131,190
As at 1 January 2022 R2022F181H 85,065 46,125 131,190
Net impairment losses on ERMEENEERE
financial and contractassets 518 % %8 117,759 (39,810) 77,949
Receivables written off during 4 i8S AT I [l
the year as uncollectible ) FE YR IR (24) = (24)
As at 31 December 2022 ®2022%12A31H 202,800 6,315 209,115
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Other receivables (Continued)

Trade and other receivables and contract
assets are written off where there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst
others, the failure of a debtor to engage in
a repayment plan with the Group, and a
failure to make contractual payments.

Impairment losses on trade and other
receivables and contract assets are
presented as net impairment losses
within operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the same line
item.

Debt investments

The Group is also exposed to credit risk in
relation to debt investments that are
measured at FVPL. The maximum
exposure at the end of the reporting
period is the carrying amount of these
investments amounting to RMB27,165,000
(31 December 2021: RMB50,413,000).

A BEAARE T T

3 HEERER @)

3.1 BRERREZE#E)
31.2ERpkE (&)

(i)

(iv)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HXERBER @
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BERERREZE#E)
3.1.3 Liquidity risk 3.1.3 B A B

To manage the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The table below analyses the Group's financial
liabilities into relevant maturity grouping based
on the remaining period at the end of each
reporting period to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

EERRE IR - NEEE
EREREEERSBR TR
S RBESEEBWKTE  UWEAXK
SEMEERTES - WEER
ERENBELNTE

TEBRESHREHRGTHEE
EHEHBNDHN - BAREEH
TRAES REEZHBAER -
TERABE 2B RBHRIR
BERE -

Between Between

Less than 1 and 2 and
1 year 2 years 5 years Total
THE1F 182%F 225%F @st

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETRE ARETR AR¥Tr ARETRT

As at 31 December 2022 420224128 31H

Financial liabilities cRBE

Trade and other payables &5 & H A e 208
(excluding accrued payroll  (TBIEEFFE R

and other taxes payables)  E AT ) 1,075,643 184 1,273 1,077,100
Borrowings B0 27,069 28,139 29,044 84,252
Lease liabilities HERE 7,409 2,146 2,948 12,503

1,110,121 30,469 33,265 1,173,855
As at 31 December 2021 #2021512A31H
Financial liabilities SREE
Trade and other payables & 5 & E 4t & (4 ZUE

(excluding accrued payroll  (TREEF#HL K

and other taxes payables) — E b EAF ) 898,798 20,877 1,457 921,132
Lease liabilities HEBE 30,037 14,406 9,021 53,464

928,835 35,283 10,478 974,596

Central China New Life Limited / 2022 Annual Report
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Fk S A=A -

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.2 Capital management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the asset-
liability ratio. This ratio is calculated as total liabilities
divided by total assets.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021 asset-liability ratio
of the Group is as follows:

fm 5 B FS e R BU 5

A BEAARE T T

3 HEERER @)

3.2 BEAXEE
AEBEZERNEREE EREAEE R
BICERREN WM ARREH-EIR -

REMFHESTRMNE - WHERIER
B E RIS AP AR B AN A ©

REFRFBREANRE - NEER G
EHBERNTHRRZBESHE - BT
A L EEE AR E -

AEEZEERBLREREEITER
AR R BRBRIABERERE

#H E2022F R2021F 12 A31H » &~
EEMNEEABHLERNT ¢

As at 31 December

M®12H831H
2022 2021
2022 & 2021 F
Asset-liability ratio BEBELE 43% 39%
peyrEaRaAn/ 25 201



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation
(@) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and
estimates made in determining the fair values
of the financial instruments that are recognised
and measured at fair value in the financial
statements. To provide an indication about the
reliability of the inputs used in determining fair
value, the Group has classified its financial
instruments into the three levels prescribed
under the accounting standards. An explanation
of each level follows underneath the table.

B A% E B B IR ()

3.3 DABEME
(@) 2REEER
REPR A EE R BHRERAZ R
AEBEERNFENERIAN
APPSR (el 0E2 ) - (DSE T
it RRLEEARBEMAE
ABEBNRAERERS  A&E
RESHESEEMTAS R
= BEERMFAFN X -

As at 31 December 2022 Level 1 Level 3 Total
M2022512H831H E—BR FEEBR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARYFT AR%®FrT AR%Fr
Financial assets at FVPL DAARBETTEEFA
BEENERMEE
Contingent consideration FEU SR RAE
receivables - 44,078 44,078
Senior notes BEEE 27,165 - 27,165
27,165 44,078 71,243
AS at 31 December 2021 Level 1 Level 3 Total
R2021512 A318 EF—ER EFZER e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFT AREFT
Financial assets at FVPL DAREESELFA
BEENEREE
Wealth management products — ¥2 & & - 5,043 5,043
Senior notes BEREE 50,413 - 50,413
50,413 5,043 55,456

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market is determined by
using valuation techniques.

202 Central China New Life Limited / 2022 Annual Report

WHNERMEEEZSMTA

i)

AV

EERBHERMEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
The different levels have been defined as
follows:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets (such as publicly
traded derivatives, and equity securities) is
based on quoted market prices at the end of
the reporting period. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Group is
the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data
and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs
is not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is the case
for contingent consideration receivables.

The Group's financial assets at FVPL included
contingent consideration receivables and senior
notes, fair value of which are estimated based
on unobservable inputs (level 3) or obtained
from quoted market prices (level 1) respectively.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2
and 3 for recurring fair value measurements
during the year. For transfers into and out of
level 3 measurements see (b) below.

fm 5 B FS e R BU 5

A BEAARE T T

3 HEERER @)

3.3 AABEML (&)
(@ ARLEEER )
FRBRAELT :

BEFEEERAR/ B _FF3R

E—ER TEREMSEENG
BMTAMAREEMNITETLA
RBRAES) BRA R EBERER
HHRMTISRETR - NER
BENSREENTSREAS
HERE ZSIAFASZ—E
& o

FoEBR: WIHERERMBES
MEmTE(MBIMTETRE) N
AREBERBEERNET @ &%
EHERNTKENATERMS
BEMELORBEENEERH
AT EtE—SMIAMARE
BEFRFENMAERGAEASAE
RYE - AZEMTAIAEZ
[ o

B 1

t

F=BR: W IALZHEKRE
NEXLERBABEDSEE -
AZERTAIAFT=ZER - &
EHERIARENEZEBER -

REBAREEFEL AR
SNEHEEERRREIARE
MEERE  ERREEDFIE
KA BREGAEB(E=EHR) X
KM HRE (F—BR)ES -

FR KEUERABEFEZS
— ZRZEBRZELEER -
FRF-EHRFENBEARE
- B2ETXD) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Continued)

(b)

FBERBEAARE T )

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HBEREE@®
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 QAAEEME (&)
The following table presents the changes in by TREVWHZE2022F12831H
level 3 instruments for the year ended 31 I FEE=EBHIT ANES -
December 2022.
Contingent
consideration
receivables from Contingent
acquisition of consideration
Henan Tianming  receivables from
Property acquisition of
Wealth Management  Taihua Jinye Life
management Co,Ltd.  Service Co,, Ltd.
product  (*“Henan Tianming’) (“Taihua Jinye’) Total
WRTERENE  WERERELR
EBARAT REARAT
(X ) ([ZEHE))
BRER  FGIRRURE  FEINEURE @it
RMB000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBFT ANEETT ANEETT ANEETT
Opening balance B 5043 - - 5043
Recognition arising from acquision ofa ~ WEE—EHBARESL 2B
subsidiary (Note 29) AHE29) - 11,608 - 11,608
Gains for the year recognised in profitor — RMBREERME R
loss (Note 17) (H3#17) 34 (3935) 36,405 32,504
Disposals e (5,077) - - (5,077)
Closing balance BRER - 7673 36,405 44,078
()  Pursuant to the acquisition agreements, () WEKREWZE  WAEX

the Group is entitled to a compensation
from the former owners of Henan
Tianming and Taihua Jinye if they have not
achieved the revenue targets or profit
targets for the performance commitment
years, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B BAHAIN - FFIAESEUARE T TH)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HMBEREE@®
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREEME(E)
(b)  (Continued) by (#&)
(i  (Continuea) 0 (&)
The fair value of the contingent BUSAREBEZAREE
consideration receivables represented the ERKTEEHIE £ IE
present value of the future expected cash BHe EIERTEXR
flows. The estimates are based on the EREBEENREMEEE
discount rate and probability of achieving AT UL IS B B2 B E2
the target, and might be modified BREEEITIEE - A
according to the actual performance of RERGEEEABRT
the target after the acquisition date. The BAARBEIS WA
contingent consideration is recognised as BHENESREERDR -
financial assets at FVPL in the
consolidated balance sheet.

() Quantitative information about fair value © BREFEHEEATIHERGHAME
measurements using significant unobservable (B=BH)NARBEIENT
inputs (Level 3) is as follow: EERWT

Fair value at Range of Relationship of
31 December Valuation Unobservable  unobservable unobservable
Description 2022 techniques input input  inputs to fair value
#2022%
12A31H TABE TABEE TUBRWAESR
it WAREE MHERE BAR BWAEEE QNAEENER
RMB'000 RMB'000
ANREFTL AREFTL
Contingent consideration 7,673 Discounted Expected net 5,587-6,426 A change in expected net
receivables from acquisition of cash flow profit profit +/- 10% results in a
Henan Tianming change in fair value by
RMVB2,131,000
WA KRR AR BRKE 7673 MBREERE  BEHFHE 55872642 FBEFHIEEE/-10%
BUNLEEE
ARH2,131,0007
Contingent consideration 36,405 Discounted Expected net -16,710-8,250 A change in expected net
receivables from acquisition of cash flow profit profit +/- 10% results in a
Taihua Jinye change in fair value by
RMB1,509,000
WEREREANRBRKGE 36405 EERERE  BEFHE 671028250 FEHFHEEE/~10%
BUNLEEE
AR 1,509,000

BEFEEERAR/ B _FF3R
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(c) (Continued)
Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair
value: the higher of expected net profit, the
higher the fair value.

The Group manages the valuation of level 3
instruments for financial reporting purpose on a
case by case basis. At least once every
reporting year, the Group would assess the fair
value of the level 3 instruments by using
valuation technigues.

If the fair values of the financial assets at FVPL
held by the Group had been 5% higher/lower,
the profit before income tax for the year ended
31 December 2022 would have been
approximately RMB3,562,000 higher/lower
(2021: RMB2,773,000 higher/lower).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of
accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom
equal the actual results. Management also needs to
exercise judgement in applying the Group’s accounting
policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that may have a
financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

Central China New Life Limited / 2022 Annual Report
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Expected credit losses on receivables and
contract assets

The Group makes allowances on receivables and
contract assets based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The Group used
judgment in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
past collection history, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of trade and other receivables and contract
assets, as well as doubtful debt expenses in the
periods in which such estimate has been changed.
For details of the key assumptions and inputs used,
see Note 3.1.2 above.

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the
PRC. Judgment is required in determining the amount
of the provision for taxation and the timing of
payment of the related taxations. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

fm 5 B FS e R BU 5

A BEAARE T T

4 EBEXEEHEF AR =)

(@)

(b)
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

Estimation of goodwill impairment

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Determining whether goodwill is
impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable
amount of cash-generated units to which goodwill
has been allocated, which is the higher of the value in
use or fair value less costs of disposal. The calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from cash-generated units and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, or change in facts and
circumstances which results in downward revision of
future cash, a material impairment loss/further
impairment loss may arise.

Estimation of the useful life of customer
relationship identified in business
combination

Customer relationship identified in the business
combination (Note 29) on respective acquisition date
is recognised as intangible assets (Note 15). Customer
relationship primarily related to the existing contracts
of acquirees on the acquisition date. A large portion
of the existing contracts of acquirees are with no
specific expiration date. Based on past experience,
termination or non-renewal of property management
contracts with the property developers or property
owners’ association are uncommon. The Group thus
estimates the useful life and determines the
amortisation period of the customer relationship to
be ten years based on the expected contract duration
of the property management contracts.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (continued)

(d)

Estimation of the useful life of customer
relationship identified in business
combination (Continued)

However, the actual useful life may be shorter or
longer than estimate, depending on acquirees’ ability
to secure its contracts and relationships with property
developers or renew the contracts with property
owners’ associations in the future. Where the actual
contract duration is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of the intangible assets of customer
relationship and the amortisation expenses in the
periods in which such estimate has been changed.

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION
Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the CODM. The CODM,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segment, has been identified
as the executive directors of the Company.

The CODM examines the Group's performance from service
line perspective and has identified three reportable
segments of its business:

Property management and value-added services: this
part of business provides property management
services of residential properties and commercial
properties, and related value-added services,
including consultancy services to property
developers, community value-added services,
intelligent community services, Central China
Consumer Club and real estate marketing services.

Lifestyle services: this part of business primarily
comprises tourism services, sales of goods and
provision of catering services.

Commercial property management and consultation
services: this part of business primarily comprises
provision of hotel management services and
management for agricultural and cultural tourism
projects and commercial real-estate operation.
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FEE  BEDRARRIELEHBOR
IH .
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KRB WEEE=EATRENEE D
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fm 5 B F5 2 R BU 5E

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The Group mainly operates its businesses in the PRC and
earns substantially all of the revenues from external
customers attributed to the PRC. As at 31 December 2022,
substantially all of the non-current assets of the Group
were located in the PRC. Therefore, no geographical
segments are presented.

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating
segments mainly based on the measure of operating profit
excluding other income, other gains/(losses) (unrelated to
revaluation of contingent consideration receivables) and
finance (costs)/income-net which are not directly related to
the segment performance (“segment results”).

(@) Segment results
Segment results also excludes the effects of
significant items of expenditure which may have an
impact on the quality of earnings such as central
administration costs.

Interest income and finance cost are not allocated to
segments, as this type of activity is driven by the
central treasury function, which manages the cash
position of the Group.
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B S EHBIN - FTESBUARE FIT)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 9WER @
(@) Segment results (Continued) (@) P& (E)
The segment results and the reconciliation with profit DER R LE T E R AR AT E A Y
before income tax are as follows: BRONT :
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZE2022F12A31HILEE
Commercial
Property property
management management
and and
value-added Lifestyle  consultation
services services services Group
NEEER HEEEEER
RERS EERY EH R N3]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFR AREFR AREFr AREFR

Segment revenue WA 2,886,821 221,616 91,564 3,200,001
Inter-segment revenue DEEUA (5,583) (39,598) (6,679) (51,860)
Revenue from external customers R B4MBEEHIA 2,881,238 182,018 84,885 3,148,141

Timing of revenue recognition WA RERRES S

—atapointintime — RE—ER% 467,652 171,938 555 640,145

— over time — BEF R 2,413,586 10,080 84,330 2,507,996
Segment results NEEE 736,197 12,571 32,378 781,146
Other income Hepl A 56,842
Other losses — net HihEiE%8m (24,228)
Unallocated operating costs AOLBERA (54,112)
Finance costs — net BEMRA TR (468)
Profit before income tax RETPTE BRI R 759,180
Income tax expenses FEHAx (188,016)
Profit for the year FRFIHE 571,164
Depreciation e 37,434 3,350 1,347 42,131
Amortisation B 17,662 1,297 - 18,959
Impairment of goodwill HERE 22,496 - - 22,496
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
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By} Y5 #h 2R BfU 5

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Bx S A& AN

FBERBEAARE T )

5 S9EEFE @)

Segment results (Continued) (@) D& (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZE2021F12831HILFEE
Commercial
Property property
management and management and
value-added Lifestyle consultation
services services services Group
MEEER HEEEERR
EERS HE R AR T£E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFL ARETFTL ARETFT ARETFT
Segment revenue DEHA 3,128,585 542,121 152,220 3,822,926
Inter-segment revenue DEERA (87,794) (135,131) (1,083) (224,008)
Revenue from external customers R ASMBRFEEIMA 3,040,791 406,990 151,137 3,598,918
Timing of revenue recognition WA RERE S
—atapointin time — NE R 774,769 337,968 23,010 1,135,747
— over time — BEE R 2,266,022 69,022 128,127 2,063,171
Segment results DEEE 670,286 159,420 31,802 861,508
Other income HtA 34,519
Other losses-net HtEETE (15,162)
Unallocated operating costs AOLBEMA (66,970)
Finance income — net BENAFR 12,159
Profit before income tax RatFTERATFE 826,054
Income tax expenses MBS (172,666)
Profit for the year FRFE 653,388
Depreciation e 34,271 3,958 2,167 40,396
Amortisation 5 15,963 1,572 - 17,535
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Fk S A=A -

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets and liabilities are measured in the
same way as in the financial statements. These
assets and liabilities are allocated based on the
operations of the segment.

Investments in financial assets that are managed by
the treasury function are not considered to be
segment assets. These are investments in wealth
management products and senior notes that are
classified as at FVPL.

The following is the analysis of the Group’s segment
assets and liabilities:

As at 31 December 2022

=/\H
=

By} Y5 ¥ 2R BfU 5

A BEAARE T T

5 2E&ER @)

(b)

APRERAM
5 HAERA BRHEEE TR
AR E - RERERA RS BE
EWRETHE -

HAMERESFIEENSREERN
RETEB AN HEE - HEME®
MEEEBRNEERSBANUAAE
BEFfEWETAER

ATRAKENDHEERAEND
i

720225128318

Commercial
Property property
management management
and value- and
added Lifestyle  consultation
services services services  Eliminations Group
NEERR HEBERER
RERE EERE RS iR piN- )
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT  AREFT  ARETZ AREFT  ARETZT
Segment assets PEEE 5,068,504 406,952 122,847 (436,084) 5,162,219
Unallocated cashand cash AP EEERHESE
equivalents ZEN 87,223
Deferred income tax assets ~ ERFTEHEE 58,201
Financial assets at FVPL AR EEHEWFA
BRNEREE 27,165
Total assets EESE 5,334,808
Segment liabilities AHEE (2,272,073) (77,118) (63,622) 436,084 (1,976,729)
Deferred income tax liabilities  ERFTEHEE (38,045)
Current income tax liabilities ~ RVERFTEHEE (260,915)
Total liabilities BEEE (2,275,689)
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

214

As at 31 December 2021

5 2E&EH @
SHEEREE (&)

(b)

®2021512H31H

Commercial

Property property

management Mmanagement

and value- and

added Lifestyle  consultation
services Services Services Eliminations Group

NEEER BEEEEER
BiERS EERT AR g T5E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT ARETT ARETTT ARETTT
Segment assets DEEE 4548473 374,318 110,630 (489,973) 4,543,448

Unallocated cashand cash R FRIR & &R
equivalents SEEY 394,638
Deferred income tax assets  MEIEFF ST E 43438
Financial assets at FVPL NAREEFZ
Wit ABE=H

TRIEE 55,45
Total assets BERE 5,036,980
Segment liabilities DEPBE (2,090,243) (82,887) (71,309) 189,973 (1,754,466)
Deferred income tax liabilities  ¥EZEFTSF & 1& (26,639)
Current income tax liabilitles ~ BNEAFT SR & & (199,347)
Total liabilities BEBE (1,980452)
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B BAHAIN - FFIAESEUARE T TH)
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 S9EER @
(c) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts (c) REEFEHZWEIE

with customers

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods
and services over time and at a point in time in the RE—BEEREBRE R

following major service lines:

B35 -

AREEIAT £ B AR AR BE I A HE RS I
Ko B 7 T 2

Year ended 31 December
BZ12H318LLEFE

2022 2021
2022 % 2021 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBTF T
Property management and related S ER-REYS Y EI) S

services 1,980,540 1,680,469
Installation and decoration services & R E &R 266,773 439,300
Consulting services B RA AR 191,135 277,591
Commission income BEWA 234,485 423,520
Sales of goods EmiHE 206,058 431,759
Membership management income & 8&EUA 165,503 70,468

Commercial property management ¥ & EEIE M AAREEA
and consultation services income 84,280 148,209
Travel service income PR 2% AR TG U A 3,933 60,135
Others Hith 15,434 67,467
3,148,141 3,598,918

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
revenues from CCRE Group contributed 29% and 28%
of the Group’s revenue, respectively. Other than the
CCRE Group, the Group has a large number of
customers, none of whom contributed 10% or more

of the Group’s revenue.

10% 3K A | o

BEFEEFARAR /===

FEHR

H E20224 R20214F 12 A318 Ik &
B REBZEEBEHRADBIMERS
E U A B9 29% K2 28% o M2 &= S -
AEBEEMAREEMES i
BEEMNEPERMBAGRERBRAN
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 2EEH @
(d) Assets and liabilities related to contracts (d HEEFEYEBENWEERERS

with customers
The Group has recognised the following assets and
liabilities related to contracts with customers:

AEECDHERANIEATFANEHN
BERAR:

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2022 2021
2022 £ 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARETFIT

contract assets EHEE
Current contract assets REENEE 24,980 24,486
Loss allowance Eria e (1,093) (597)
Total contract assets BHEEBEE 23,887 23,889
Contract liabilities EHEE
Non-current RS
Property management services MEEE RS 56,048 86,574
Current E
Property management and value- YR E IR RILE RS

added services 580,936 537,929
Lifestyle services AR RS 6,092 2,247
Commercial property management B3 & EE 1 KB AR

and consultation services 1,208 4,176

588,236 544,352

Total contract liabilities EHBEERE 644,284 630,926

(i)  Significant changes in contract liabilities
Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise
from the advance payments made by
customers while the underlying services are yet
to be provided. There was no significant
changes in contract liabilities as at 31
December 2022.
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Fk S A=A -

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Assets and liabilities related to contracts
with customers (Continued)

(d)

(ii)

(iii)

fm 5 B FS e R BU 5

A BEAARE T T

DERNE R ()
HEFANABNEEREE (&)

(d)

Revenue recognised in relation to contract (i) BEHEBEEZHIKA
liabilities
The following table shows how much of the TRINTHRERREEHANDHER
revenue recognised in the current reporting I A B D A A 48 &8 A Ee
period relates to carried-forward contract [ o
liabilities.
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT ARBTFT
Revenue recognised that was REAFAEGHNEEER
included in the balance of HERRKA
contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year
Property management and value-  ¥¥ &8 R ERE
added services 537,929 420,645
Lifestyle services A5 RS 2,247 3,031
Commercial property management 3 & &E B 12 & & A RS
and consultation services 4,176 171
544,352 423,847
Unsatisfied performance obligations (iii) REITHEA BT
For property management services, the majority HUEEERBEME - ABHE

of the contracts do not have a fixed term. For
commercial property management and
consultation services, the services are generally
set to expire when the counterparties notify the
Group that the services are no longer required.
The Group has elected the practical expedient
for not to disclose the remaining performance
obligations for these types of contracts.

For part of the property management related
value-added services, the Group recognises
revenue in the amount that equals to the right
to invoice which corresponds directly with the
value to the customer of the Group's
performance to date, on a monthly basis or
settlement cycle. The Group has elected the
practical expedient for not to disclose the
remaining performance obligations for these
types of contracts.

BEFEEERAR/ B _FF3R

WA EETEHR - AAXYMEE
BR#HARBMS  REBER
HFTBAARKE T BHRERS
WiEim - AEBEDEEERNRE
HZit WBBARBEZEEE
BRNFBREORT -

AR EY R E TR A BB ER
BmE  AEEEAKEBELR
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Br ZEHAIN B BEUAREFITE)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEER @
(d) Assets and liabilities related to contracts (d BHEFSHNEBENEERERE (A)

with customers (Continued)

(iii) Unsatisfied performance obligations (iii) KRBTHEH =K (F)
(Continued)
For other property management related value- MEMYESIEMELEERSEREE
added services and lifestyle services, they are lRisms AN EHRNIER &%
rendered in short period of time, which is TE—F - AEEREEETEANER
generally less than a year. The Group has i UWBBEREZSERVAHN
elected the practical expedient for not to FIRBLERE -

6

218

disclose the remaining performance obligations

for these type of contracts.

OTHER INCOME

6 Hittlt A

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT ARETFT

Government grants (Note (a)) BT B (K17t (@) 17,229 25,535
Value-added tax deductible (Note (b)) AR ER (MTaE (D) 10,717 8,984

Interest income from loans to third parties AE=FIRHEEFBFE
(Note (c)) WA (KiaE(c) 28,896 -
56,842 34,519

(@) Government grants mainly consisted of financial (@) BNMHBEE|EM T BFET
subsidies granted by the local governments. There O B K R B o BLE 202212 A
are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies MNBIEFE - BRI BT
attached to the government grant recognised during 7 488 B 755 A ] 10 R B AT B R 1 3K
the year ended 31 December 2022. HMsAEIR -

(b)  Value-added tax deductible mainly included additional () FHENEENREZEEEANE
deduction of input value-added tax applicable to THIE N AT E T A FEIME
certain subsidiaries. e

() Represented interests income charged to third parties © EEE=FWRNERMNE K
for loans carrying interest rates from 5.6% to 12% per A - ZEFIRERNES.6%E 12%
annum. TR o
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B S EHBIN - FTESBUARE FIT)

7 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) — NET 7 Hinkz (F5R)FEHE

Year ended 31 December
BZE12H31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 % 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETT

Net fair value gains/(losses) on financial AR BEETFT ABZH
assets at FVPL (Note 17) SREENARBEKE/
(B18B)F&E (Mt 17) 5,722 (25,476)
Interest income on senior notes (Note 30(b) &5 ZEF| 2 WA (KfzE30(0b) 6,179 6,251
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains HNE (B518), e F 58 (6,463) 3,673
Gains on disposal of property, plant and HEME - WER&E (B
equipment (including right-of-use assets)  EA#EEE) Wz 2,630 24
Losses from disposal of a subsidiary HENB AR EE (169) =
Others HAth 343 366
8,242 (15,162)
8 FINANCE (COST)/INCOME — NET 8 ®E(RA) WAFHE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥MTFT ARBTFT
Finance income B A
Interest income from bank deposits RITHFEHFEWA 9,879 15,612
Finance cost A& A A
Interest expenses of borrowings BERFERE (6,623) -
Interest expenses on discount of long-term K HAFE (F ZRIFBLIR A A B FE 2
payables (2,459) (1,709)
Interest expenses of lease liabilities HEBGEMERZ (1,265) (1,744)
(10,347) (3,453)
Finance (cost)/income-net BE (RA), WA FE (468) 12,159
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

9

FBERBEAARE T )

RUEES 5 IR

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEFE

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT — ARETFT
Employee benefit expenses (Note 10) EERAMRZ (K5 10) 645,373 745,388
Security charges ZIRE 431,848 349,480
Greening and cleaning expenses SN 403,706 361,732
Construction and installation costs FRE R ENA 211,205 409,963
Cost of goods sold HEMN A 185,461 311,993
Utilities INSZES 3-§ 169,476 120,959
Maintenance costs REKA 93,998 94,580
Depreciation and amortisation charges WEREHEE 61,090 57,931
Impairment of goodwill (Note 15) REERE (A1aT 15) 22,496 =
Professional service fees BXRGE 27,819 31,954
Office expenses WAL 28,571 27,146
Taxes and other levies HIEREMEE 10,541 14,071
Traveling and entertainment expenses EIRRBERS 10,380 21,485
Promotion expenses HEEEMA 9,968 16,497
Community activities costs tEEEHER 8,408 11,414
outsourcing tourism services costs PR E AR TS N A AR 7,962 56,004
Auditor's remuneration Z SR <
— Audit service — ZEART 4,600 4,000
— Non-audit services — IR EURT 840 1,653
Outsourcing labor costs BIINBE 3,267 23,361
Others Hfth 38,856 42,843
2,375,865 2,702,454
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Fk S A=A -

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

10 EEREFMAX

A BEAARE T T

Year ended 31 December
BZE12H31BLEE

2022 2021

2022 F 2021 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARETFIT

Wages, salaries and bonuses TE - HahiF 484,778 591,395

Social insurance expenses MtEREAX

— Pension costs — defined contribution ~ — RS ER— AEMHN

plans (Note (a)) RINEHEI (K772 (@) 53,068 57,305

— Others — Efh 32,929 29,823

Housing funds FEAES 24,694 28,868

Share-based payments (Note 22) LARRAD R EERE B A 3k (B 5 22) 829 2,220

Other employee benefits (Note (b)) Hife 8@F (faF b)) 49,075 35,777

645,373 745,388

Employees in the Group's PRC subsidiaries are
required to participate in a defined contribution
retirement scheme administrated and operated by
the local municipal government. The Group’s PRC
subsidiaries contribute funds which are calculated on
certain percentage of the employee salary to the
scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the
employees.

All the Hong Kong employees of the Group participate
in @ mandatory provident scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”). Under the MPF Scheme, each company
of the Group in Hong Kong (the employer) and its
employees make monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. The
contributions from each of the employers and
employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per
month and thereafter contributions are voluntary.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contribution payable in the future years as at 31
December 2022 (31 December 2021: same).

FHE - REE BB QR M2
H3 o REENERAREMNERES
HREEEREEFENE—BOLL

o
Al 7

AEEMBEREAREENZ2SBES
([amestd ) - RisESsE
AEEZEREAR(BE) REEES
AiREWA(EERBERED) W
5% A&t B - BEREE S B
HRAEG A 1,500 TR LR - Higft

KBRS -

AEEBRERBANFENERRETS

RS RE K -

N2022F 12 A31 8 » WL 7 %
LA 8 48 H0 Rk JE A 4 51 (2021 85 12 A
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Br ZEHAIN B BEUAREFITE)

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued) 10 {EEREFIFHAX &)
(b)  Other employee benefits mainly include team building b HiESREMNTIEaiEEREY £
expenses, meal and traveling allowances. N ERROERL -

(c)  Five highest paid individuals (©)
The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 33
included two (2021: two) directors. The emoluments

hE&ERHMAL

AEEAEEREESTMALTRIE
M (2021F - MB)EE - HFHE
RHIFEIBEI R DT R o F AR
BT=%Q2021F : =%) ATHM&

payable to the remaining three (2021: three) m
individuals during the year are as follows:
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLFE
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARKFT
Salaries I& 4,708 5,129
Discretionary bonuses BIBIEAL 500 419
Pension costs BReEH 32 56
Housing funds, medical insurance FEAES BERRRKEM
and other social insurances ftERE 63 86
Share-based payment VAR 17 2 ERER T 3k 82 315
5,385 6,005

The number of non-director emoluments fell within

the following bands:

FEZRFMREZAZDT

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A831BLEE

2022 2021
2022 £ 20214

Emolument bands (in HK$) R i (BB TTED)
HK$1,000,001-HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 78 7T & 2,000,000 78 7T 2 2
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 % 7T £ 3,000,000 % 7T 1 -
HK$3,000,001-HK$4,500,000 3,000,001 % 7T £ 4,500,000 7% 7T - 1
3 3

222
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

11

REZEQATNKRE

Year ended 31 December
BZE12H31BLEE

2022 2021

2022 £ 2021 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARETFIT

Opening carrying amount FYREE 5,841 970
Capital injection AE - 5,298
Share of profit/(loss) R F (E1E) 237 (427)
Closing carrying amount FREMEE 6,078 5,841

In the opinion of the directors, there is no associate
individually material to the Group.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability and accordingly,
is exempted from Cayman Islands income tax. The
Company'’s direct subsidiary in the BVI was incorporated
under the International Business Companies Act of the BVI
and, accordingly, is exempted from British Virgin Islands
income tax.

Hong Kong profits tax rate is 16.5%. No provision for Hong
Kong profits tax was provided as the Group did not have
assessable profit in Hong Kong for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021:same).

Income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations
in Mainland China has been calculated at the applicable tax
rate on the estimated assessable profits for the year, based
on the existing legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.

12

EERA - BAAARLATERYAEE
HEBEX -

B R

ARRRNF SRS MR T — KRS
EREMLAR - Al ERRABNS SR
B - ARREEBEBRAESNEENE
ARDRBEBEARHE(ABHEAR
EVREMMY - R EREERNEBAERR
BBFEH -

EBFIERBRE165% ° HZE 2022412 A
NBLEFE BRAEENEEELEBB SN
FERTAFE - R BB B RS AT IREE
(20214 : §8[R) °

SR BRI EL R EREEE RIE
BiTHBED - 2B RIER - RFAMGFE
ARBA R ERR R o
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INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

The general corporate income tax rate in the PRC is 25%
according to Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (the
"CIT Law") effective on 1 January 2008. Henan Aiou
Electronic Technology Co., Ltd. was qualified as “High and
New Technology Enterprises” (“HNTE") in 2018 and
renewed in 2021. Jiyuan City Zhongbang Environmental
Sanitation Co., Ltd. was qualified as HNTE in 2019 and
renewed in 2022. Henan One Family Network Technology
Co., Ltd. and Song Yun (Beijing) Information Service Co.,
Ltd. were qualified as HNTE in 2020 and renewed in 2022.
Accordingly, these four subsidiaries of the Group are
entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 15% for a three-
year period. Certain of the Group's subsidiaries enjoy the
preferential income tax treatment for Small and Micro
Enterprise with the income tax rate of 20% and are eligible
to have their tax calculated based on 12.5% or 25% of their
taxable income.

FBERBEAARE T )

12 FrSHiIFXZ ®)

RIBEP2008F 1 A1 B EMHCREEREHR
E) PRI —REEMEHHEF25% °
AN EEFHRARRBR2018FER
[ ERMER] ERAR 20211 FEEZLE
1% FRM RERRFRZAR A AR 2019
FRE SRR E] B - WK2022F
FHER - A —RBERRARRANRE
E(ER)EERBERIBN2020FEF
(BT d] BN WR202FEHE
%o Bt AEEZNENBARAEEZA
=“FHIS%NEBMERRE - AREET
MERARZFH20%NMIEEEERBHHR
T WHEERBEERTKAN125%3K
25% wt 7%

Year ended 31 December
BZ12H318LLFEE

2022 2021

2022 & 2021 £

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARETFIT

Current income tax BIERFTIS A 196,822 208,439
Deferred income tax (Note 26) EIEFTIS R (A5t 26) (8,806) (35,773)
188,016 172,666
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12 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profits of the group entities

as follows:

g =)

im 5 B 5 ER 2R By 5

ise stated) (BRBZAHBI - AIESBEUARKETITH)

12 Fh8#HBEXZ @)
AEEFAABEHERRBEANERE
BT R s B EER
m

Year ended 31 December
BZE12H31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 £ 2021 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBTFT
Profit before income tax REFFTSRLATFDE 759,180 826,054
Tax calculated at applicable income LA TS i R E a9 5k
tax rates 197,238 215,905
Tax effects of: AT EENRBE -
— Preferential income tax rates —HARETHE AR
applicable to certain subsidiaries Frie i EEE (13,183) (29,500)
— Utilisation of previously unrecognised ~ — B S AT R FERATIA
tax losses [igi] (1,692) (14,937)
— Additional tax deductions for research ~ — HFEE Ak A E BB SN TE R
and development costs (3,416) (4,483)
— Tax losses and deductible temporary — RERELEMESREER
differences for which no deferred Tt TE 5 48 K AT 4K 40
income tax asset was recognised TRtER 1,609 2,968
— Expenses not deductible for tax — AR A X
purposes 7,456 2,430
— Share-based compensation —RHme 193 347
— Additional tax deductions for salaries — ERARKEATERNEING
for the disabled hiring TE R R (130) (179)
— Associates’ results reported net of tax ~ — Et& AR 2 2IRELE
(HIBRTEIE) (59) 115
Income tax expenses FRSTAT R < 188,016 172,666

The effective income tax rate was 25% and 21% for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, respectively.

HE202FER2021E12A31BIEFE - &
BRFTISFL AR R 9 Bl & 25% K 21% ©

———
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13 EARNINGS PER SHARE

226

(@

(b)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year ended 31 December 2022 and
2021 (excluding treasury shares (Note 20 (b)).

FBERBEAARE T )

13 8ikAEF

(@)

BREXZR

H E20224% 202112 A318 1IFF
B SRERBFRARGREEMN
FI R Bk LA B B 17 3 3 AR h0AE 15 BRaT
H (T EEEFRD (FFE20b)) °

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLFE

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4
Profit attributable to shareholders of 78/ &A% R &1k 1) E
the Company (RMB’000) (AR¥TFr) 562,260 619,559
Weighted average number of ordinary & 317 & 38 A% &9 i F 19 £
shares in issue (in thousands) (F1) 1,268,570 1262888
Basic earnings per share attributable  F RZA A BIRR B E(G AR A
to shareholders of the Company BN (AERARKITZS)
during the year (expressed in RMB
per share) 0.44 0.49
Diluted earnings per share (b) SREEEF

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares arising from share options
granted by the Company.

SREFEFN T BREHRALE
R 0 T R 0
BT - BB ET L BB INET
SHEH G H -

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BHLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Profit attributable to shareholders of 7N &A% B2 & 15 Kl
the Company (RMB’000) (ARMFT) 562,260 619,559
Weighted average number of ordinary = 217 & @A HY I 19 5
shares in issue (in thousands) (FB&%) 1,268,570 1,262,888
Adjustments for share options EIRREEITAE (TR
(in thousands) 12,974 30,014
Weighted average number of ordinary & &8 2 78 L BN
shares for the calculation of diluted  AN4EF9 & (F )
earnings per share (in thousands) 1,281,544 1,292,902
Diluted earnings per share FRARRRRREGSRES
attributable to shareholders of the BN (AERARKITZS)
Company during the year
(expressed in RMB per share) 0.44 0.48
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

A BEAARE T T

14 W% - BERRE

Equipment
and Right-of-
furniture Machinery  Vehicles use assets Total
RERER e B fREEE @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT
Year ended 31 December 2021 HZ2021%F 12831 BLEE
Opening net book amount BRYIERTE S5 14,626 8,594 5,990 27,103 56,313
Additions NE 16,647 7,342 4,903 45,802 74,694
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BB B A ) 2,889 1,788 391 = 5,068
Disposals e (177) 29) (127) = (333)
Depreciation charge HEEH (12,536) (4,035) (3,471) (20,354) (40,396)
Currency translation BHIEH, = = = (288) (288)
Closing net book amount HRREFE 21,449 13,660 7,686 52,263 95,058
As at 31 December 2021 M"2021%12A31H
Cost PR R 57,013 20,882 13,942 87,985 179,822
Accumulated depreciation 2EHTE (35,564) (7,222) (6,256) (35,722) (84,764)
Net book amount BREFE 21,449 13,660 7,686 52,263 95,058
Year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ 2022412 5 31H
LHFEE
Opening net book amount BRI AR HRE 21,449 13,660 7,686 52,263 95,058
Additions =T 7,965 5,363 2,301 11,671 27,300
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BT A A (A7 3E29)

(Note 29) 261 175 359 - 795
Disposals unf=— (336) (620) (28) (29,615) (30,599)
Depreciation charge TEER (12,631) (5,629) (3,970)  (19,901)  (42,131)
Currency translation EHE N - - - 599 599
Closing net book amount BRERTE S5 16,708 12,949 6,348 15,017 51,022
As at 31 December 2022 72022128318
Cost AR 61,070 23,460 15,045 71,869 171,444
Accumulated depreciation 2EtihE (44,362)  (10,511) (8,697)  (56,852)  (120,422)
Net book amount R FEE 16,708 12,949 6,348 15,017 51,022
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14

228

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Depreciation expenses were charged to the following
categories in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income:

14 Y% - BERRE @)

FEAXARAEEERERA T ER

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEFE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARETFIT

Administrative expenses THRAX 19,456 20,881
Cost of sales SHE PR 22,378 19,363
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHEAT 297 152

42,131 40,396

No property, plant and equipment is restricted or pledged
as security for borrowings as at 31 December 2022 (31
December 2021: same).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e [\ 4 =
= ECE S Ead i
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B S EHBIN - FTESBUARE FIT)
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15 EHREE
Order-
Backlog
Platform and  Software
Goodwill and know- customer and
(Note (c)) how relationship others Total
[k TaE BEIE 0
(W)  BHE HEFBE REf st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANREFT ARETT AREFTT AREFT AREFT
Year ended 31 December 2021 #HZ2021F12831BLLEE
Opening net book amount HRE T 54,680 15,640 16,646 740 87,706
Additions NE = - - 2,999 2,999
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHB AR 72,458 21,316 107,918 = 201,692
Disposals HeE - (829) = - (829)
Amortisation By - (3,080) (13,317) (1,138) (17,535)
Closing net book amount HRIRE R 127,138 33,047 111,247 2,601 274,033
As at 31 December 2021 R2021%12 8311
Cost B%S 127,138 40,036 128,134 7,501 302,809
Accumulated amortisation Rt - (6,989) (16,887) (4,900) (28,776)
Net book amount REFE 127138 33047 047 2601 274,033
Year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ2022% 12 A3MBLLEE
Opening net book amount R E R 127,138 33,047 111,247 2,601 274,033
Additions NE - - - 7,073 7,073
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B AR (K2 29)

(Note 29) 9,947 - 23,476 16 33,439
Disposals HeE - (2,009) - - (2,009)
Amortisation iy - (3,157)  (14,945) (857)  (18,959)
Impairment (Note (d)) RE (K7t () (22,496) - - - (22,496)
Closing net book amount HRRHFE 114,589 27,881 119,778 8,833 271,081
As at 31 December 2022 R2022%12A31H
Cost XA 137,085 38,027 151,608 14,590 341,310
Accumulated amortisation and SEEHELRE

impairment (22,496) (10,146)  (31,830) (5,757)  (70,229)
Net book amount REFE 114,589 27,881 119,778 8,833 271,081

REFEEIERAT/ B SFFH 229



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9=
wh 43

15

230

87} 55 R 2R B 5

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Bx S A& AN

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets has been charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
below:

e sEUARET T

15 BEE @)
B AERBOHAGA2EMKAEE 0T
iR

Year ended 31 December
HBZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021

2022 & 2021 4

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR F T ARBEFIT

Administrative expenses 1TEFA X 4,356 4,030
Cost of sales SHEK A 14,603 13,505
18,959 17,535

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
acquired a property management company (Note 29).
Total identifiable net assets of the entity acquired as
at the acquisition date amounted to RMB23,497,000,
including identified customer relationship of
RMB23,476,000.

HZE202F12831BILFE - A%H
W —RmEE R AR (MI7E29) o %
W E BN E B W B A A 35
BEEFEAAR23497,000T &
50T % Bl = P B R A K 6 23,476,000

JC °

A valuation was performed by an independent valuer (b)) FHEBRBL(GEMET  UWEBTAS
to determine the amounts of the customer EREZE202F12A31H IEFE YK
relationship acquired by the Group during year ended ENEFPHEERSE NS RERHE
31 December 2022. Method and key assumptions in ERFHEARTFAEAABENTER
determining the fair value of the customer AR B EENT
relationship at the acquisition date are disclosed as
follows:
Expected life of
Valuation Key the intangible
technique assumptions assets
BREEN
fHE M ARMERE FEHAFHA
Customer relationship =2 ERR Multi-period excess  Pre-tax discount 10 years
return method rate: 22.7%
% BB EE M A TRRTARIR = - 106
22.7%
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15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 15

©

(d)

The excess of the consideration transferred over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets of acquired
subsidiaries is recorded as goodwill. Goodwill was
comprised of the followings:

| EE @)

©

EEENREBLCRBAIZMNEE
FENAREER  HEBEABED
R BmEREATSE:

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2022 2021
2022 & 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FT AR®ETT

Acquisition of Taihua Jinye (Note () U B Ze 2 88 2 (A7 3% () 37,145 59,641
Acquisition of One Family Network — JEE— R 4845 17,533 17,533
Acquisition of Jiyuan Zhongbang Wb R 12,361 12,361
Acquisition of Henan Tianming W o B KPR (K27 (@)
(Note (a)) 9,947 —
Others Hi 37,603 37,603
114,589 127,138
Impairment test for goodwill (d) mERENR

Goodwill arises from the Group’s acquisitions of
subsidiaries and was determined at the acquisition
date respectively, being the difference between the
purchase consideration and the fair value of net
identifiable assets of acquirees. Goodwill has been
assessed based on the related acquiree’s cash-
generated units for impairment testing.

BEDRAAEBERERB AR MESE
YR RE AT - REHEERK
WESAEAEEFENALEEREL
B EHE - mENERNBRERKRET
BIR S E A BACETRHMEERERIH
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

(d)

Impairment test for goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the cash-generated units
are determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculation use pre-tax cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Management determined
a projection period of five years based on expected
development trend of the acquiree and industry
experiences. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using the estimated terminal growth
rates stated below. The growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the related
industry in which the cash-generated units operates.
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific
risks relating to the relevant industry.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use

FBERBEAARE T )

15 BEE @)

(d)

BB RERE ()

ReEL BGOSR ERNRE
REEFEETE - 2B ERARE
EEEHE AFHRMEREEME
HeRARMBERE - ERERE
BB TR RSB MITRER
FEE T AF TR - BEDFHE
VIR 2R T ARAR T SCAT At B9 il 51 48 o
BEXRETHE -ZEREXTHEBR
CEABUMEENHEBITENRY
TR RE - PEMAMNBIRERZHA
B RBRT EARRETT X A B AR E R

LA
i

o o
ZN

MN2022F12 A318 - EREBESEMN

calculations as at 31 December 2022 are as follows: KANERKRREAOT
Henan Taihua One Family Jiyuan
Tianming Jinye  Network Zhongbang Others
ARRE RERE —-H\R  BERERE Hith
Expected growth rate of WAR BRI R X
revenue 12%-83% 17%53% -20.0%-23% 3.0%-34% 2.3%-10.8%
Terminal growth rate after ~ AEBMRHER R
5years 2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3%
Pre-tax discount rate FBRIARIR & 22.2% 21.5% 20.0% 20.1% 19.1%-23.1%

The key assumptions used for value-in-use

R2021F 12 A318 - FREBEFEMER

calculations as at 31 December 2021 are as follows: MR RERWT :
Henan Taihua One Family Jiyuan
Tianming Jinye  Network zZhonghang Others
ARRE RERE PR BEERE Htth
Expected growth rate of WARTEEERE  Notapplicable
revenue TEA  7.8%-20.0% 5.0%-15.6% 10.0%-15.1% 5.0%-25.2%
Terminal growth rate after ~ REEBMKRFEEER  Notapplicable
5 years i 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%
Pre-tax discount rate BRIAR X Not applicable
NiE A 22.1% 20.2% 19.9% 19.3%-23.0%
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15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

(d)

Impairment test for goodwill (Continued)

By reference to the recoverable amount assessed by
the independent valuer as at 31 December 2022, the
directors of the Company determined that an
impairment provision of RMB22,496,000 on goodwill
arising from acquisition of Taihua Jinye was required
as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: nil).

According to the result of the impairment testing, the
estimated recoverable amounts of cash-generated
units exceed their carrying amount (i.e. the
headroom) as below:

15 BEEE @)
(d) FBRENRE)
482 2= P53 E AP 72 2022 F 12 A 31
BEHEOAKRESHE  AARERE
TER2022F 12310 B B R E
BEELENPHETIERERBARE
22,496,00075 (20214512 A31H : ) -

BREABENRER ReEEBN
(AR E S BRI R E(SE)
o -

As at 31 December

R12H31H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR®ETT

Henan Tianming PN
One Family Network — KA
Jiyuan Zhongbang ERRE

2,182  Not applicable

NEH
34,502 77,406
2,935 3,633
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15

234

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment test for goodwill (Continued)
Management performed sensitivity analysis based on the
assumptions that expected growth rate of revenue or pre-
tax discount rate would be changed by taking into accounts
the volatility of the business and industry in which the
acquirees are engaged. Had the following estimated key
assumption for the forecast period been changed as below,
the headroom would decrease to the amounts:

FBERBEAARE T )

5 B EE @)

BAERERR (&)
ZRIGUB R R FENERHRITEANE
1 EEERBEEARTERIE R RSCRG AT
SHRAR TSR ABBNREETHRREM
DT o MfEF ERRERTRAMBEHLENLT
2 - AIRBERIENATERE

As at 31 December

®12A31H
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT ARBTFT
Henan Tianming =N
— Expected growth rate of revenue — FEHIR AL R R TR 1% 1,900  Not applicable
decrease by 1% TEA
— Pre-tax discount rate increase by 1%  — FiRIBAIR KL 11 1% 1,576  Not applicable
NiE A
One Family Network — R
— Expected growth rate of revenue — FEHAR A R E TR 5% 26,079 15,504
decrease by 5%
— Pre-tax discount rate increase by 1%  — FRRIBAIR KL 11 1% 35,755 69,321
Jiyuan Zhongbang BERRE
— Expected growth rate of revenue — FEHAM A RE TR 1% 2,614 2,871
decrease by 1%
— Pre-tax discount rate increase by 1%  — FRATELIR E42 00 1% 1,219 1,469

Based on the above assessment and the historical result,
Except for Taihua Jinye was made to impairment of
goodwill, our directors have not identified any reasonably
possible change in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount is based that would cause the carrying
amounts of the cash-generated units to exceed their
respective recoverable amounts as at 31 December 2022
(31 December 2021: same).
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 16 ZERESHEMIE
CATEGORY

As at 31 December

R12H31H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARKTT

Financial assets at FVPL UAREBENELFTABEN
EREE 71,243 55,456

Financial assets at amortised cost (R ATEN SR EE

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 19) ReRRESEEBYM(HF19) 2,049,079 2,264,412
Note receivables, trade and other JEW IR - B 5 KA M EKGRIE
receivables (excluding prepayments) (TNBEENKIE) (KT 18)
(Note 18) 2,674,387 2,153,703
Restricted cash ZERGIHEe 5,326 1,907
4,728,792 4,420,022

Financial liabilities at amortised BB ER AT ENERAE

cost
Trade and other payables (excluding B 5 N E M ENRE (TR ERET

accrued payroll and other taxes e REMBMATIRR) (Ht24)

payables) (Note 24) 1,073,185 919,284
Lease liabilities (Note 23) MEBEKFZE23) 11,799 50,183

1,084,984 969,467
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17 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVPL 17 U AREBEEFELFAERZNE
ml &=
As at 31 December
M®12H831H
2022 2021
2022 & 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Financial assets at FVPL DAARBEESELEFTABZHN
SREE
— Wealth management products — By EM - 5,043
— Senior notes (Note () — BEEE (Hit@E) 27,165 50,413
— Contingent consideration — RS ARIE (A7 3.3(D))
receivables (Note 3.3(b)) 44,078 —
71,243 55,456
Less: non-current portion of contingent  J& : FEUWE AR B IETREN 5
consideration receivables (44,078) -
Current portion of financial assets at AR EEELA AR
FVPL SREENREHBD 27,165 55,456

KRR REREEMENR2020F 11 A%
THELEE - £ % A12500000%
TT 0 REE N 2024465 A24 B EIE
HENET 75% 18

(@ The Company subscribed the senior notes issued by @)
CCRE in November 2020 amounting to
US$12,500,000, which will mature on 24 May 2024
and bear interest at the rate of 7.75% per annum.

(b)  Amounts recognised in profit or loss: b) PIERERHSE

During the year, the following gains/(losses) were ER AU (B18) RIS
recognised in profit or 10ss: i .

P

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLEE

236

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARETFIT
Fair value gains/(losses) on REMkE (BE) BERER
financial assets at FVPL ZUAREBEFELTA
recognised in other gains/ BRNeREENAAER
(losses) — net (Note 7) Wi (E8) (ffaE7)
— Wealth management products — BB E 34 5,905
— Senior notes — BEER (26,782) (31,381)
— Revaluation of contingent — B EREARE
consideration receivables 32,470 -
5,722 (25,476)
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 18 B S R H{EUWEIEU R FE{ =

PREPAYMENTS 15
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2022 2021
2022 % 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FiT AREFIT
Trade receivables (Note (a)) Z 5 EWEIE (K17 @)
— Related parties (Note 30(d) — BEE 5 (B2 30(d)) 1,692,151 1,137,223
— Third parties —%=5 936,228 657,831
2,628,379 1,795,054
Note receivables B AR 20 600
Less: allowance for impairment of trade & : & 5 FEU FOIB R B RS
receivables (201,707) (84,468)
2,426,692 1,711,186
Other receivables H fth fE U IR
— Loans to third parties (Note (b)) —RE=FERMHFED) 75,243 =
— Amounts due from related parties — e EE RS 75 5RIE (M3 30())
(Note 30(d)) 103,760 306,623
— Utilities — RNAEHEE 30,184 21,187
— Deposits —&&e 31,799 29,829
— Deposits for a potential acquisition ~ — EEKELR S - 100,000
— Amounts due from the non- — FEU— M B A R I A A
controlling interests of kI (F1E ()
subsidiaries (Note (c)) 7,874 23,943
— Others — HAt 5,150 7,060
254,010 488,642
Less: allowance for impairment of other 38, : £ & U 7k 18 Rl (B B 45
receivables (6,315) (46,125)
247,695 442,517
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

18 ESZREMEBWRIERFEFNRE

PREPAYMENTS (continued) (&)
As at 31 December
M®12H831H
2022 2021
2022 & 2021 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARSFT
Prepayments TEfTFRIE
— Security charges and cleaning —ZREBRFRAAX
expenses 75,493 67,840
— Others — Hfb 34,557 33,841
110,050 101,681
Total 4t 2,784,437 2,255,384
Less: non-current portion of other B B UG IR R TR RIE R
receivables and prepayments FETRENEB (75,746) (33,439)
Current portion of trade and other S G SEYSS U NE
receivables and prepayments KR ENEL 2,708,691 2,221,945

(@ Trade receivables mainly arise from property
management services and related value-added
services.

Property management services income are received
in accordance with the terms of the relevant services
agreements. Service income from property
management service is due for payment by the
residents upon the issuance of demand note.

The related value-added services to property

developers are usually due for payment upon the
issuance of document of settlement.
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 18 B S R H{hpEU S E R Fa{th1E

PREPAYMENTS (continued) (&)

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the aging analysis of the R2022F K2021F12A318 » R

trade receivables based on recognition date of trade B EWHIARDZ BN E S EWR R

receivables were as follows: MR DT

As at 31 December
M12H31H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFIT

0-180 days 0£180H 1,433,836 1,258,325

181-365 days 1812365 H 494,381 272,320

1to 2 years 1224 568,389 184,506

2 to 3 years 2FE3F 89,684 54,453

3to 4 years IFELF 23,769 14,185

over 4 years AF LA E 18,320 11,265

2,628,379 1,795,054

As at 31 December 2022, trade and other receivables were MR2022F 124318 - B 5 M HMERKFKIA

mainly denominated in RMB. FEUAREBEE -

As at 31 December 2022, the fair values of trade and other M2022F12A31H + B 5 R EMEWRKIA

receivables approximated their carrying amounts. MARBEEAERMERS

Information about the impairment of trade and other BREE S & H i e U =R R E A = E

receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit risk was EERBMER RN I2HE -

disclosed in Note 3.1.2.

(b) As at 31 December 2022, the Group provided loans to () M202%F12A318 ' AEBRE=F
third parties amounted to RMB75,243,000, which bear REEFR2EART52430007T -
interest at rates of 5.6% to 12.0% per annum and will BEFS5E120%:FE > WiEH=
mature within three years. FAEIE] -

() As at 31 December 2022, the receivable balance (© F20229F 12 A318 » EUIASRARKE
amounting to RMB3,104,000 was related to property 3,104,000 T E R H T A TIFERER
management services provided to certain non- MYEERREER -

controlling interests.
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

240

19 RERREFEY

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2022 2021
2022 £ 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FT AREFIT

Denominated in RMB AAREESHE

Cash at bank RITIRE 1,962,249 1,903,433

Cash on hand FEERE 187 140
1,962,436 1,903,573

Denominated in HK$ LABTTEHE

Cash at bank R1TIRE 82,436 354,666

Denominated in US$ LAZETTEHE

Cash at bank RTRE 4,207 6,173
2,049,079 2,264,412

Cash and short-term deposits held in Mainland China are
subject to local exchange control regulations. These
regulations provide for restrictions on exporting capital
from Mainland China, other than through normal dividends.
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20 SHARE CAPITAL 20 jg7A
Number of Equivalent
ordinary Share share
shares capital capital
ZEREE [ BAREEY
HK$'000 RMB’000
FET ARMTF T
Authorised EE

As at 1 January 2021 R2021F1A1H 38,339,000 383 338
Increase of authorised shares A& J&1H 18 N 4,961,661,000 49,617 42,457
As at 31 December 2021 R2021F12 A31H 5,000,000,000 50,000 42,795

As at 1 January 2022 and R2022F1HA1B R

31 December 2022 2022% 12 A31H 5,000,000,000 50,000 42,795
Issued 21T
As at 1 January 2021 R2021F1A1H 1,246,215,000 12,082 11,057
Share option scheme-issued BT EI— 2317

shares f&1n 23,719,000 238 198
Cancellation of shares R (b))

(Note (b)) (968,000) (10) (8)
As at 31 December 2021 R2021F12 A31H 1,268,966,000 12,310 11,247
As at 1 January 2022 R2022F181H 1,268,966,000 12,310 11,247
Share option scheme-issued BT EI— 22317

shares (Note (a)) &5 (Hfat @) 15,341,000 154 138
Cancellation of shares R, (b))

(Note (b)) (5,581,000) (56) (48)
As at 31 December 2022 R2022F 12 A31H 1,278,726,000 12,408 11,337
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20 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

FBERBEAARE T )

20 BEA (@)

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2022, 15,341,000 @@ HEHZE202%128318IEFE 0 15,341,000
pre-IPO share options were exercised at a price of DITEBR0LBTHNE X ARES
HK$0.62 with received proceeds of HK$9,511,000 BB ETE - WE B HRIB
(equivalent to approximately RMB8,748,000). The 9,511,000 7t (& RN A A R %
average related price at the time of exercise was 8,748,0007T) ° 1TfER Ky I T EHE
HK$3.46 per share. BER3.468TT °

(b)  Treasury shares b  EERH

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALFE
2022 2021
2022 F 20214

Number of Number of

treasury treasury
shares Amounts shares Amounts
EFROHE 8 EFERMHEE G|
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARETFIT

At the beginning of the year R F1] 924,000 3,883 - -

Shares repurchased BRI, (Ka0)

(Note (1) 4,657,000 14,054 1,892,000 8,143
Shares cancelled (Note (ij) =888 (B7E (i) (5,581,000) (17,937) (968,000) (4,260)
At the end of the year RER - - 924,000 3,883
(i)  The Company repurchased 4,657,000 shares of i) AABREE202F12A31H 5

its own ordinary shares during the year ended € B 04,657,000 B B ¥ B K
31 December 2022 (2021: 1,892,000 shares). (20214 : 1,892,000%) - B E K E
The total purchased consideration was #9 /16,485,000 7T (& N AR
approximately HK$16,485,000 (equivalent to 14,054,000 7T ) I 75 EL h {7 8 R FE R A
RMB14,054,000) and was recognised as ETFR% o

treasury shares in other reserves.

@iy The Company cancelled 5,581,000 shares iy M202F12A3MBIEFE  KR7EE
during the year ended 31 December 2022. 5,581,000 Bz fn o IRkt - B BEITR
Accordingly, the issued share capital and share KRB RERFHEROERRLD
premium were reduced by the amounts of the
shares cancelled.
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21 OTHER RESERVES H{ibE#E
Employee
share-hased Foreign
Share  Treasury Capital compensation  Statutory  currency  Total other
premium shares reserves reserves reserves  translation reserves
EENRH
RERN it
RARE EXRH EXitE HefE EERE HEES fhEam
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT ARETr ARETT  ARETI
Balance at 1 January 2021 R2021E1 A1 RIS 2,014,792 - 81,023 15,288 65,467 (125,188) 2,051,382
Share option scheme-value of iR e ERRKER

employee services (Note 22) (Ht22) - - 2,220 - - 2220
Share option scheme-issued shares Bzt EI— B4R 22,781 - - (10,710) - - 12071
Repurchase of shares of the Company  BEIAR &R (? - (8,143) - - - - 8,143)
Cancellation of shares adlha) 4,252) 4260 - - - - 8
Currency translation differences ERBREED - = = = (22183) (22,183)
Dividend distribution to shareholders  FRETER S (4127)

(Note 27) (340.833) = = = = = (340,833)
Appropriation of statutory reserves  EERREE (M)

(Note (3) = = = = 59,858 - 59,858
Balance at 31 December 2021 12021512 A 31 B &S 1,692,488 (3,383) 81,023 6,798 125,325 (147.31) 1,754,380
Balance at 1 January 2022 #2022 1 A1 RIvER 1,692,488 (3,883) 81,023 6,798 125,325 (147,371) 1,754,380
Share option scheme-value of ElE 2 ESREEE

employee services (Note 22) (H#22) - - - 829 - - 829
Share option scheme-issued shares B Mk#ERTEl— E B4R G 15978 - (7,368) - - 8,610
Repurchase of shares of the Company  EEIAR B&L (Afi£200)

(Note 20(b)) = (14,054) = - = = (14,054)
Cancellation of shares (Note 20(b)  FHSARRIA (et 20) (17,889) 17,937 - - - - 48
Currency translation differences ERBEES = = - - - 34,765 34,765
Dividend distribution o shareholders — FIRER 2 RS (Hi£27)

(Note 27) (604,217) = = = = = (604,217)
Appropriation of statutory reserves AT RERE (Hi )

(Note () = - - - 57,718 - 57,718
Balance at 31 December 2022 R202E12 831 BES 1,086,360 = 81,023 259 183,043 (112,606) 1,238,079
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21

22

244

OTHER RESERVES (continued)

(@) PRC statutory reserves
In accordance with relevant rules and regulations in
the PRC, except for sino-foreign equity joint venture
enterprises, all PRC companies are required to
transfer 10% of their profit after taxation calculated
under PRC accounting rules and regulations to the
statutory reserve fund, until the accumulated total of
the fund reaches 50% of their registered capital. The
statutory reserve fund can only be used, upon
approval by the relevant authority, to offset losses
carried forward from previous years or to increase
capital of the respective companies.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company approved and adopted the option scheme on
3 January 2019. Share options under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme (the “Option”) are granted to eligible
participants (the “Eligibles”) including directors and certain
key employees. Options are conditional on the Eligibles
have served the Group for certain period (the vesting
period). Share Options are granted for no consideration and
carry no dividend or voting right. When exercised, each
Option is convertible into one ordinary share. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or
settle the Option in cash.

Share options granted to employees under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 3 January 2019 and 10 January 2019, 31,680,000 and
13,320,000 Options were granted to the Eligibles with the
same exercise price of HK$0.62 per share.

For vesting schedule of the share options granted to
directors and certain key employees, the share options will
be vested within 24 months immediately following the
listing date.
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22 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
Share options granted to employees under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)
Movement in the number of share options granted to
employees and their related weighted average exercise
prices are as follows:

22 URBHERNNER@®

ERAMBEN BT B ERET M
B ()

1 B 5 A0 R AR MR RSB A T 45
T EEB T :

Number of options

BREHE
Exercise price 2022 2021
TEE 2022 F 2021 F
At the beginning of the year REFA]) HK$0.62 7% 7T 15,881,000 42,210,000
Exercised 217 HK$0.62 7% 7T (15,341,000) (23,719,000
Forfeited 281 HK$0.62 % 7T - (2,610,000)
At the end of the vear RER HK$0.62 7% 7T 540,000 15,881,000
Currently exercisable B AT T{E HK$0.62 %8 7T 540,000 225,000

Fair value of share options granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The fair value of options granted on 3 January 2019 and 10
January 2019 under Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
determined using the Binomial option-pricing model was
approximately RMB20.8 million.

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for share options
granted to employees is RMB829,000 and RMB2,220,000 for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 respectively.

BRAHBRENBRETR T 2BREN
DIREE

201961 A3A K2019F1 A 10 ARE S
RAFEERNBRE TR T ZBRENLRR
BEDEA-_BAABREEERYEE 4
R/ARK208EET -

HZE2022F K2021F 12831 HIEFE - 5
BT REEBMNERENGE 2ERERPER
B 485 X 5 Bl A A R # 829,000 7T &k A R
2,220,000 7T °
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23

246

LEASES 23 HE
(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (a) REEEEEBRTERRANESHE
balance sheet
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARKFT
Right-of-use assets CREEE
— Leased properties and equipment — THE W K RE (Hf: 14)
(Note 14) 15,017 52,263
Lease liabilities HEAE
— Current — RE 7,077 28,373
— Non-current — JEmE 4,722 21,810
11,799 50,183
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (b) REEZTEHREXRTERIANSE
statement of comprehensive income
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2022 2021
2022 & 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARKFr
Depreciation charge TEEMA
— Leased properties and equipment  — TR &Y & &5 (K1 e 14)
(Note 14) 19,901 20,354
Interest expense (included in finance  FI B (Gt ARVERKAFE)
costs) (Note 8) (Htat8) 1,265 1,744
Rental expenses relating to short- BHEHREEBEHEEEHEN
term and low-value leases e GTABEERA K
(included in cost of sales and THAX)
administrative expenses) 1,137 1,216
Cash outflows for leases HMERS R 20,841 19,742
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23 LEASES (continued)

(c) A maturity analysis of lease liabilities as at 31 (c)
December 2022 and 2021 is shown in the table

below:

23 HE @)

2022 k2021 12A31BHE &
ENZIRBERONENTK

As at 31 December

M12H831H
2022 2021
2022 £ 2021 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT ARETIT
The present value of lease liabilities is FHE & EMIRELNT :
as follows:
Within one year —F A 7,409 30,037
Later than one year but no later than —Z= =4
two years 2,146 14,406
Later than two years but not later than —Z R F
five years 2,948 9,021
12,503 53,464
Future finance charge RIRELE B (704) (3,281)
11,799 50,183
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24 Trade and other payables 24 B RHEMEMNSTKIE

As at 31 December
®12H31H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETFIT AREFT

Trade payables (Note (a)) B SN FIA (M5 @)
— Related parties (Note 30(d)) — B 5 (Ma# 30(a)) 31,288 14,188
— Third parties —E=F 545,518 428,098
576,806 442,286
Other payables H e 5B
— Deposits — &% 250,905 257,253
— Property maintenance funds —FEHEESD 99,730 103,349
— Utilities /N5 - 36,009 22,461
— Amounts due to related parties — FEIST AR 5 5RIA (MaE (b)
(Note (b), Note 30(cl) K#£30()) 14,286 19,086
— Payables for acquisitions of subsidiaries — UEEHT B A &) BN FUE 47,108 41,399
— Others — Hfh 48,341 33,450
496,379 476,998
Accrued payroll [EET % & 124,483 101,553
Other taxes payables H IR 48,978 52,520
1,246,646 1,073,357
Less: non-current portion of other payables & = H b & B 3EENEIEE (1,457) (20,486)
Current portion of trade and other payables & 5 K H b & (- ZB BN 2 6 5 1,245,189 1,052,871
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the carrying amounts of R2022F K 2021612 8318 » ESREM
trade and other payables approximated their fair values. ENRIERNEREREREEAAEERS -
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24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 24 H 5 R E{tifE( FIE (#)

(@) Asat 31 December 2022 and 2021, the aging analysis (@) & Z=2022%F &2021F12A318 + &
of the trade payables based on invoice date were as REZAHNE ZENRIBAZKRE D
follows: LU

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2022 2021
2022 £ 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARBTIT

0-180 days 0180 H 359,539 340,648
181-365 days 1812365 H 112,257 56,341
110 2 years 15226 66,640 37,636
2 to 3years 2E3F 35,038 6,251
Over 3 years 3FAE 3,332 1,410

576,806 442,286

()  The amounts due to related parties were unsecured, (b)) EEEE S RIBEEEKR - 2R RAR

interest-free and repayable on demand. ESRERE
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25 BORROWINGS 25 &=

As at 31 December

M12H831H
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Non-current liabilities EmEaE
— Long-term bank borrowings — RHIRITIER
— secured (Note (b)) — B (M D) 52,000 -
Included in current liabilities FTARBAE
— Short-term bank borrowings — RHASRITIE K
— secured (Note (c)) — HEE (HEF () 22,000 -
Total bank borrowings RITIE B 74,000 =
(@ As at 31 December 2022, the Group's bank (@ 202294128318 » REBRITERK
borrowings were repayable as follows: HEEBAAT :
As at 31 December
MW12A831H
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETFr AREFT
Within 1 year —F AR 22,000 -
Over 1 year and within 2 years —FLLEEBERFEUAA 25,000 -
Over 2 years and within 5 years FEA EBRFUAA 27,000 -
74,000 =
(b)  The secured long-term bank borrowings amounting (b)) M2022512 4318 - BEARBRTT

f& 5 A R ¥ 52,000,000 7T 7Y 1% & 7E F
M #8.25% [ 9.18% &t B + I H FFHEAX
BmiETYE  BERREEER -

to RMB52,000,000 as at 31 Dec 2022 were bearing
with fixed interest rates of 8.25% and 9.18% per
annum and secured by certain property, plant and
equipment of a non-controlling interest..

250
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25 BORROWINGS (continued)

a non-controlling interest.

25 B @)
(c) The secured short-term bank borrowings amounting (©)
to RMB22,000,000 as at 31 Dec 2022 were bearing
with a fixed interest rate of 5.6% per annum and
secured by certain property, plant and equipment of

(d)  All the borrowings are denominated in RMB as at 31 (d)

December 2022.

26 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
As at 31 December 2022, there was no offsetting of
deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax
liabilities balances within the same tax jurisdiction (31
December 2021: same). The analysis of deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

R2022F 12 31 H » BIEIRREEERT
2 3% A B # 22,000,000 7T T3 3% B 5E
FE56%5HE - WH IR DS
T - BRE RBEEER o

M2022F12 A31H - FREEZBEUA
R¥EETE -

26 EIEFRSHH

20229128318 A—HKREERAD
BEFBHEENREEMSHABREHRTT
ISR R (2021F 12 8318 « #HR) °
BEMIBEEREERIBAEBENSITAT :

As at 31 December

M12HA31H
2022 2021
2022 % 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETFT AREFT
Deferred tax assets: FEERRIEEE ¢
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered — B 1218 A BB R EE
after more than 12 months HIREE 3,011 2,898
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered — B 1218 A R Uk E &5 E
within 12 months MIBEE 55,190 40,540
58,201 43,438
Deferred tax liabilities: BEERIERE -
— Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered  — #5712 1@ A 14 Ug [2] 9 & 1E
after more than 12 months HIEGBE (34,481) (23,555)
— Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered — — #5712 A AUk [21 &9 & E
within 12 months HEEE (3,564) (3,084)
(38,045) (26,639)
20,156 16,799
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26

252

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year of 2022 and 2021 is as follows:

FBERBEAARE T )

26 RIEFTSH (#)
20224 B 2021 - BEFEREERLE
EHRENT

Deferred
tax assets — Deferred
allowanceon  tax assets —
doubtful debts tax losses

HERE—  HEHE-
REER HERR
RMB000 RMB000

ANEBTL  AEKTR

Deferred tax

liabilities —

excess of

carrying

amount
Deferred tax ofother  Deferred tax
assets — intangible liabilities —
accrued assets over financial

expenses  thetax bases  assets at FVPL Total

BEREEE— BEREEE-

AfEVE AAAEETE

BEfieRE— EREEEER  OHARaN
Eiffx  HRERNES SHEE it
RMBO00 RMBO00 RMBO00 RMB000

ARBTL  ARETT  ARETr ARETR

As at 1 January 2021 R2021%1518 709 3,6% = 3977) - 6,172
Creditec to the consolidated MEA2ENERTA

statement of comprehensive

income 2379 8,390 - 3,084 - 35773
Acquisition of a subsidiary e - - - (25,746) - (25,746)
At 31 December 2021 R2021E128 318 30,892 12,546 = (26,639) - 16,799
As at 1 January 2022 R202%1818 30,892 12,546 - (26,639) - 16,799
Credited/(charged) to the NEAZERERTA

consolidated statement of /(%)

comprehensive income 16,206 271) 848 3,564 (9,101) 8,806
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 29) ~ WEEMB LR (i 29) 420 - - (5.869) - (5,449)
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12B31R 47,518 9,835 848 (28,944) (9,101) 20,156

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses and
temporary differences totaling of RMB46,633,000 (31
December 2021: RMB36,883,000) as it is not probable that
future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction.
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26 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

27

Deferred income tax liabilities of RMB183,619,000 (31
December 2021: RMB128,170,000) have not been
recognised for the withholding tax that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings amounted to RMB1,836,190,000
(31 December 2021: RMB1,281,697,000) of certain
subsidiaries. The company is able to control the timing of
distribution from these PRC subsidiaries. Such earnings are
expected to be retained by the PRC subsidiaries for
reinvestment purposes and would not be remitted to the
oversea intermediate holding companies in the foreseeable
future based on management’s estimation of overseas
funding requirements.

26 RIEFRSH #)

WARFE TH B RGN REAZF AR
183,619,0007T (202112 A31H : A R ¥
128,170,000 7T ) & FE 25 TR 0 T FE SRR AL FT 15
& E AR 1,836,190,000 7T (20214 12 A
31H : AR¥1,281,697,0007T) ° A2 & A]
THIZEF R BARMNDIKEERE - RIEE
BEHFINE ST KM - ZERFTEE
HERPEMNEARREANERE  WAKE
A] 8 BBy R R [E O /8N R R A A °

DIVIDENDS 27 KRR
2022 2021
2022 & 2021 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#TF T ARMFT
Dividends = 604,217 340,833

(@ A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2021 of HK$0.337 per ordinary share,
approximately HK$427,164,000 (equivalent to
RMB362,193,000) was declared by the Board at the
Annual General Meeting held on 10 May 2022. The
final dividend has been distributed out of the
Company'’s share premium and paid in cash.

(b)  An interim dividend in respect of the six months
ended 30 June 2022 of HK$0.211 per ordinary share,
approximately HK$267,592,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB242,024,000) was declared by the
Board at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on
26 August 2022. The interim dividend has been
distributed out of the Company’s share premium and
paid in cash.

(c) A final dividend in respect of year ended 31
December 2022 of HK$0.191 per ordinary share,
approximately HK$243,998,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB217,956,000) have been proposed
by the board of directors of the Company and are
subject to the approval of the shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting to be held on 11 May 2023.
The final dividend will be distributed out of the
Company’s share premium. These consolidated
financial statements have not reflected these
dividends payable.

@ ARFREZGER2022F58108%
THRRBF KRS FTIRE Z2021F
12ANBEFENRBREGRER
f%0.3377%8 7T #) /427,164,000 JT
(FBE R AR 362,193,0007T) ° K H
BEERARRBRMDEEFRDIK I
LSRR -

) ZBEEERN202FE8H26BRITZHE
BRIAS T IRE ZE20224F6 A30H It
7~ E A # R HARS B AR E A 0.21178
TT 0 A £ 49267,592,0005% T (HEE R
4 N R #242,024,0007T ) » 1 HAAR 2
BEEARARGEEDIR  WARE
IR e

€ ARREFSEEEREZ2022F12
A31BIEFEIREREREERE R
f%0.19178 7T - & £ %9243,998,000 7
TC(FEE R4 AR ¥ 217,956,0007T)
BIFRR R 20234F5 A 11 BETHAR
REFAE E#ERAITEE - KH
BEHEARRATHRDBEES DK o
ZERAPERR I AR R % E B
BEE o

BEFEIERAT/ B —FERH 253



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fm 5 B 5 #h R BU 5

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Br ZEHAIN B BEUAREFITE)

28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 28 WERE
(a) BEFERS

(@) Cash generated from operations

=]

Year ended 31 December
BE12HA31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBFT
Profit before income tax RetFTEH AT F)E 759,180 826,054
Adjustments for: FEES
— Depreciation of property, plantand  — #7% - = REETE
equipment (Note 14) (Kt 14) 42,131 40,396
— Amortisation of intangible assets — BB ERE (WA 15)
(Note 15) 18,959 17,535
— Allowance for impairment of trade ~ — B 5 &k E b EW BT &
and other receivables and contract HEERRERE
assets 77,949 101,499
— Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 7) —HE—HHMBAF
(K17£7) 169 =
— Gains from disposal of property, —HEYE BERX
plant and equipment including (BEEAEEE) K
right-of-use assets (Note 7) (K17t 7) (2,630) (14)
— Gains from disposal of intangible — EEEEHERE
assets = (10)
— Impairment of goodwill (Note 15) — EBEREME15) 22,496 -
— Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) — (&34 &8, (Uzs) #58
(Note 7) (Hizz7) 6,463 (3,673)
— Net fair value (gains)/losses on — UARBEFEXFAE
financial assets at FVPL (Note 7) ENERIEENARE
B (Ke=),EBFEE
(K1:E7) (5,722) 25,476
— Interest income on senior notes — BEEEFBMWA
(Note 7) (Hiat7) (6,179) (6,251)
— Share of (profit)/loss of associates ~ — fE(REE AR (FIE),/
(Note 11) &8 (MfaE 11) (237) 427
— Finance cost (Note 8) —RVERA (B17E8) 10,347 3,453
— Interest income from loans to third ~ — ME=HIRHERHN T E
parties (Note 6) WA (Bt 6) (28,896) =
— Share option scheme-value of — BiRERE— EE RS
employee services (Note 10) BE (HfaF 10) 829 2,220
894,859 1,007,112
Changes in working capital: EBEeE
— Trade and other receivables and — B 5 REMEUGRIEN &
prepayments TEf IR (618,243) (844,244)
— Contract liabilities —EAHBaE 8,209 127,139
— Inventories —FE 3,108 (8,666)
— Contract assets —AHEE (494) (20,669)
— Trade and other payables — B S REAMEMNKIE 159,898 23,639
— Restricted cash — XRHEE (3,419) (872)
443,918 283,439
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28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(o)

The reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial
activities is as follow:

28 BEREasdR @
) BETEEL BB HE -

Other
payables —
amounts due
Lease to related
liabilities parties  Borrowings
Hitn S
I — EAf
HEAE BAHE 7 RIE f&ax
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000
ARSFT ARETFT ARETFT
As at 1 January 2021 RN2021%E1A1H 21,209 23,770 =
Cash flows HeRE
Financing cash outflow BERERE (18,526) (4,684) -
Non-cash changes FREEB
Additions-leases (Note 14) WNE—ME (MiE14) 45,802 - -
Finance expense recognised (Note )  BHERmE RS (M7£8) 1,744 - =
Currency translation difference EHImE 46) = =
As at 31 December 2021 72021%12 A31H 50,183 19,086 -
As at 1 January 2022 R202F1H41H 50,183 19,086 _
Cash flows HeRa
Financing cash outflow MERSRL (19,704) (4,800) (36,623)
Non-cash changes FREEH
Additions-leases (Note 14) NE —HE (M 14) 11,671 - -
Disposal of right-of-use assets BREFAEEE (32,245) - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 29)  WEEKIB R 7] (AfaE29) - - 104,000
Finance expense recognised (Note 8) B HERR AR (M1:18) 1,265 - 6,623
Currency translation difference EEBREEE 629 - -
As at 31 December 2022 2022% 12 A31H 11,799 14,286 74,000
29 BUSINESS COMBINATION 29 EBEH

(@)

Summary of acquisitions

(i)  Acquisition of Henan Tianming
In January 2022, the Group acquired 51% equity
interests in Henan Tianming, at a cash
consideration of RMB33,660,000. Henan
Tianming is a property management company
located in Zhengzhou City, Henan Province, the
PRC.

(@) WHESEHME
(i) W TRXEH
R2022F1 A - ANEBE WA
R S1%E - ReREABA
R # 33,660,000 7T ° A F K BH A
MRFENT A SNTRYEE
BN IO
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29 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 29 EBFEH@

(@) Summary of acquisitions (Continued) (@) WE=EHMEE)
(i)  Acquisition of Henan Tianming (Continued) (i) WX (&)
Details of the purchase consideration and the EAWBRERDWE EEED
net assets acquired are as follows: FE =g (U N
As at
acquisition
date
RUkE A
RMB’000
AREFT
Purchase consideration s (E
— Cash paid —BEfRE 26,928
— Payable — FERTFRIE 6,732
— Effect of cash flow discount —REenERRNTE (122)
— Contingent consideration receivables — JEWSARAE (Ha£ 3.3(D))

(Note 3.3(b)) (11,608)
Total purchase consideration WIBREREE 21,930
Recognised amounts of identifiable MATKBABEERAAREASRS

assets acquired and liabilities assumed ®RENEEE
Property, plant and equipment W - B R 795
Intangible assets mEEE
— Software — 16
— Customer relationship — BPEBR 23,476
Trade and other receivables and prepayments & 5 K H th & Y 7k I8 LA K2 T8~ R 124,637
Deferred income tax assets BEREFTIS T EE 420
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEEYD 5,600
Borrowings (R (104,000)
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMER IR (15,515)
Contract liabilities EHEE (6,063)
Deferred income tax liabilities BXEFEHAE (5,869)
Net identifiable assets acquired FrUsBEmT s 5| & = F 58 23,497
Less: Equity interests held by non-controlling — Jst : FEFERS i 2545 8 RO B A

interests (11,514)
Add: Goodwill e 9,947
Net assets acquired TR EEFE 21,930

The goodwill is attributable to the expected
future development of the acquired business
and improvement on market coverage. It will
not be deductible for tax purposes.

HMERENE LB S
RERRTIBEEEMNE £
H R AT EIB A o
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29 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(a
(ii)

(iii)

Summary of acquisition (continued)

Accounting policy choice for non-
controlling interests

The Group recognises non-controlling interests
in an acquired entity either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets. This decision is made on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. For the non-controlling
interests in acquisition of Henan Tianming, the
Group elected to recognise the non-controlling
interests in at its proportionate share of the
acquired net identifiable assets.

Revenue and profit contribution

The acquired businesses contributed revenues
of RMB68,757,000 and net profits of
RMB7,856,000 to the Group for the period from
the acquisition date to 31 December 2022.

Since the business was acquired on 1 January
2022, the pro forma revenue and net profit is
not applicable.

No contingent liability has been recognised for
the business combination.

29 ¥EBEA6t@)

(@) WESEHMEE)
(i) BHFRERERNE T BRERE

(iii)

BEFETARAT/ B —EER

REBIR R EEIZIFERE
S WEERNA B FEE
B L I HE AR B UK R B R Y SRR
BeEsn o EIRTE 5% BRI Ha s #Y
EREETT - SRR RN
FEER R - NREEEBIREN
P U R m] 58RI B BV BR M L 1D
RIS -

W5 R AU B At
REBUWERBE202%12A4
31BEAE - TS AR EE
BB A A R % 68,757,000 7T &
R AR EE 7,856,000 7T °

MR ZEBR2022F1 181K
B BEWRARFENBEYAE
A e

BELRGAFEANAAR -
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29

258

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)
(b) Purchase consideration — cash outflow

29 ¥EBEA6t@)

(b) BERE—RESRH

Year ended
31 December
2022
BZE2022%F
128 31H
LFE
RMB'000
ARETIT
outflow of cash to acquire subsidiaries, WEMEARNRSRE - kR
net of cash acquired FRKEBER
Cash considerations RERE
— Henan Tianming — A FE A 26,928
— Another company acquired in the previous year — EF—FWENS—KA A 3,387
30,315
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired B BRIER e RIS EEY (5,600)
Net outflow of cash — investing activities WEFRE —REEE 24,715
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Name and relationship with related parties

30 BBt RXZ
() BAW: T %78 R B MBI R

Name Relationship with the Group

=18 R SR E W BA R

Mr. Wu Controlling shareholder of the Company
HAERTE RN EERRAR R

CCRE Group A group controlled by Mr. Wu

EXEEHE FA A7 A4 I Y &2 B

Central China Management Company Limited and its
subsidiaries (“CCMGT Group”)
FREXBRARREMB AR ([HREXER])

Henan Drawin Technology Industry Group Co. Ltd. and its
subsidiaries (“Drawin Group”)

ARAERSENEEXEBER AT RENE AR
([ExrEH])

Biyang County Jianheng Real Estate Development Co. Ltd.

WG GEEEMERERR AR

Zhumadian City Zhenghua Land Real Estate Development
Co. Ltd.
HEEMEEEMEEREERAA

Henan Jianye Haima Real Estate Co. Ltd.
FAREEEEERRAA

Henan Jianye Taihong Real Estate Co. Ltd.
HERERREXBRAR

Henan Jianye Aimi Digital Film Culture Communication
Co. Ltd.
MR IR FEL X EEER DA

Zhengzhou Jianye Eighteen City Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BMNEETIHNEXERAF

A group controlled by Mr. Wu

AR SE A S

A group controlled by Mr. Wu

A AASE A S E

A joint venture of CCMGT Group

TREXKEENSEDRE

A joint venture of CCMGT Group

TREXKEENSEDRE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BESENEEDRE

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group
BEEENGEDRE

A joint venture of CCRE Group

BESENAEDRE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BESENGERE

BEFEEERAR/ B _FF3R
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@

260

Name and relationship with related parties
(Continued)

30 BEARSE @)
(a) BEmES &WR SRS HIRER (F)

Name
=L

Relationship with the Group
BA A &R B W BA R

Henan Aijia Household Products Co. Ltd.
ARYERERAMBRAR

Xiangcheng Zhiteng Urban Construction Co. Ltd.
BERERMTRRARLA

Zhengzhou Jianye Wudong Digital Film Co. Ltd.
BMNEXAREUEZLERAF

Zhengzhou Jianye Zhengxi Digital Film Co. Ltd.
ENEZEETE B AR QA

Zhengzhou Jianye Zhengzhong Digital Film Co. Ltd.
EMNEEBREUEZARAA

Zhengzhou Renji Real Estate Development Co. Ltd.
BN CEFMEREFRA A

Zhengzhou Shengging Real Estate Development Co. Ltd.

BB EHERZFRAF

Shengiu County Forest Peninsula Real Estate Co. Ltd.
MEBRMFESEEBR AR

Henan Hongge Curtain Wall Co. Ltd.
A EERER AR

Zhengzhou Shenglong Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BMNEEEXERIA

Henan Yuzhu Real Estate Co. Ltd.
AEBKREERRAT
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A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEEENaEDRE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEEENGERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEEEENAERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BESEENEEDRE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEEENaEDRE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEEENGERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
EEEENAERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BESEENEEDRE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEEENaEDRE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEEENGERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEEEENSERE
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30 EAEES RS (@)

(@) BEARETT B8N E2EAME TS HOBAMR ()

(Continued)
Name Relationship with the Group
£18 BEAEENEFR

Xinmi City Emperor Resettlement Industry Co. Ltd.

MEmTmLEXBRAF

Zhoukou Zhonghang Real Estate Co. Ltd.

BARMEXERDA

Zhoukou Greentown Real Estate Development Co. Ltd.

BRI EHERE AR AR

Jiaozuo Lvjian Real Estate Development Co. Ltd.

FIFREFHERZAR QA

Zhengzhou Jianze Real Estate Co. Ltd.

BNEEEXBERAA

Yima Jianling Real Estate Development Co. Ltd.
ESEERMEREERETAR

Anyang Zhongrun Real Estate Development Co. Ltd.

ZEHBEHEREZEGRAR

Luohe Jianwen Real Estate Co. Ltd.

BARXEXRBRAA

Zhoukou Jianrui Real Estate Co. Ltd.

FARmEREXARAF

Jiaozuo Jianteng Real Estate Co. Ltd.

RIFRBEEXERAR

Luoyang Zhuohong Real Estate Co. Ltd.

REELEEERAT

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BESENSELE

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group
BEEENGERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEEENSELE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BESENEEDRE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BESENSELE

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group
BEEENGERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEEENSELE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BESENSEDRE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BESENSELE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEEENGERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEEENSELE

BEFEEERAR/ B _FF3R
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 30 EAEA 3RS (#)

(@) Name and relationship with related parties (a) BAEGAH AW REERIH S WER (&)
(Continued)
Name Relationship with the Group
=18 BEAEEMBR
Henan Guoxuan Real Estate Co. Ltd. A joint venture of CCRE Group
FrEEEFEEXEARAA BESENESERLE
Puyang Construction City Development Co. Ltd. A joint venture of CCRE Group
ESERERER AR BXEENEEDZE
Hebi Rongyi Real Estate Co. Ltd. Ajoint venture of CCRE Group
BEREEXERARF BEEENEEDRE
Henan Acrobatics Group Co. Ltd. A joint venture of CCRE Group
AAEMEEEEER AR BESENEEDRE
Henan Shuixiu Performing Arts Media Co. Ltd. A joint venture of CCRE Group
FRKRF EEEEFR QA BESENSERLE
Henan Haoyu Cultural Tourism Co. Ltd. Ajoint venture of CCRE Group
AARFXCIRER R A A BXEENEEDZE
Henan Haoyu Cultural Development Co. Ltd. Ajoint venture of CCRE Group
ARARFXCERBR AR BEEENEEDRE
Puyang Haoyi Trading Co. Ltd. A joint venture of CCRE Group
EEMZERERRAA EEEENAERE
Puyang Haoyi Property Service Co. Ltd. A joint venture of CCRE Group
BT REMERBERA A BESENSERLE
Henan Bingxue Acrobatics Co. Ltd. Ajoint venture of CCRE Group
T RKEHEER AT BXEENEEDE
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@

Name and relationship with related parties
(Continued)

30 EAEES RS (@)

(@) BEARETT B8N E2EAME TS HOBAMR ()

Name
=5

Relationship with the Group
BEAEENEFR

American Friesen Performing Arts Co. Ltd.
FRBHEREREGREE LA

Henan Jianye Taihong Commercial Management Co. Ltd.
T EARERAEEERRRAR]

Linzhou lianye Baicheng Trading Co. Ltd.
MIMNEZE BB ERR LA

Huixian City Tengye Education Consulting Co. Ltd.
BETREHNEERAGRAT

Jiangsu Aijia Household Products Co. Ltd.
TN ERERARERAR

Linzhou Heavy Machinery Real Estate Development Co.
Ltd.
MINEHEMERZEFR QA

Luoyang University Science and Technology Park
Construction Co. Ltd.
BEREREERZZER QA

Luoyang Jinjian Urban Construction Development Co. Ltd.
BEMeEETMERERER AR

Luohe Jingcheng Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BASMEBEEERAR

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BESENSELE

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group
BEEENGERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEEENSELE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BESENEEDRE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BESENSELE

A joint venture of CCRE Group

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BESENGERE

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group
BEEENSELE

BEFEEERAR/ B _FF3R
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@

264

Name and relationship with related parties
(Continued)

30 BEARSE @)
(a) BEmES &WR SRS HIRER (F)

Name
=

Relationship with the Group
BEAEEMBR

Luohe Liangchen Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BNRREZEGRAR]

Nanyang Wufu Real Estate Co. Ltd.
AT AREEBR AR

Henan Rongxing Real Estate Co. Ltd.
MR EBEXARAA

Zhengzhou Lvchen Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BMEREFZBRAR]

Shanggiu Baile Real Estate Co. Ltd.
HEBLEERRAR

Luoyang Jianzun Real Estate Co. Ltd.

REREEXERAEME AR

Henan Jianye Huayi Brothers Cultural Tourism Industry
Co., Ltd.

AEREERA B LIREEERR AR

Henan Football Town Real Estate Co., Ltd.
AR EBEBRA T

Changge Jianzhi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
REMEEFHERZER AR
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A joint venture of CCRE Group
BESENGERE

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group
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A joint venture of CCRE Group
BESENEEDRE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BESENESELE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEEENGERE

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group
BEEENSELE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
EEEENAERE
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(@

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Fk S A=A -

Name and relationship with related parties
(Continued)

=/\H
o

By} Y5 ¥ 2R BfU 5

A BEAARE T T

30 BEARSE @)
(a) BAMS BIEREIRINL S BIIR (&)

Name
=5

Relationship with the Group
BEAEENEFR

Zhengzhou Jianling Real Estate Co., Ltd.
BMEREZEFRAR]

Taigian Jianrun Urban Development Co., Ltd.
BRIGEBNMERBR A

Henan Jiancheng Economic Development Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
RN REHERZEER AR

Fugou County Yingbin House Real Estate Co. Ltd.
KERUDBENEXARADA

Huaiyang District Tianzhu Real Estate Co. Ltd.
SR REEXEFRAA

Luoyang Hongkun Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BIGEAREEX AR A A

Zhengzhou Dazhang Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BN R EBEEFRA A

Luohe Jingde Real Estate Co. Ltd.
B EEXRER AR

Shanggiu Hesheng Real Estate Co. Ltd.
HEEREFERAR]

Xinxiang Zunfu Real Estate Co. Ltd.
TR TENEZEGRAR]

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BESENSELE

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group
BEEENGERE

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group

An associate of CCRE Group
BEEENBEAF]

An associate of CCRE Group
EEEENBE AT

An associate of CCRE Group
BEEEREE AT

An associate of CCRE Group
BESEMNEE AT

An associate of CCRE Group
BEEENBE AR

An associate of CCRE Group
EEEENBE AT

An associate of CCRE Group
BEEEREE AT
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@

266

Name and relationship with related parties
(Continued)

FBERBEAARE T )

30 BEARSE @)
(a) BEmES &WR SRS HIRER (F)

Name
=L

Relationship with the Group
bS] R

Nanyang Jianheyuan Real Estate Development Co. Ltd.
mEREe REMERERRAR

St. Andrews Golf Club (Zhengzhou) Co. Ltd.
EEEiTe KRB (EN) BRAF]

Zhengzhou Financial Island Construction Development
Co. Ltd.
BMemESERERERAA

Zhengzhou United Real Estate Co. Ltd.
N EBEERRA

Henan Yulv Investment Co. Ltd.
TEBIRIEEBR AR

Henan Lingtai Real Estate Development Co. Ltd.
AEEREHERERR AR

Hebi Hetai Real Estate Development Co. Ltd.
BEMmMEEMEREFRA A

Shanggiu Mingde Real Estate Co. Ltd.
HEHEEERRAR

Fugou County Yingbin House Real Estate Co. Ltd.
KERLDBENEXAR LA

Huaiyang District Tianzhu Real Estate Co. Ltd.
HEERREEXFR A

An associate of CCRE Group
BEEEMEE QA

An associate of CCRE Group
EEEENBENF]

An associate of CCRE Group

EREENBE QT

An associate of CCRE Group
BESEREE AT

An associate of CCRE Group
BESEMNEE AT

An associate of CCRE Group
BEEEMHE AT

An associate of CCRE Group
EEEENBENF]

An associate of CCRE Group
BESEREE AR

An associate of CCRE Group
BESEMNEE AT

An associate of CCRE Group
BEEEMHEE AT
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continuved) 30 EIEsHF X5 (&)

(b) Transactions with related parties (b) EHREBINRXS
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, H E2022% K2021F12A31H 1 F
the Group had the following significant transactions B AEEEUTERN@EH IS -

with related parties.

Provision of goods and services to companies MiBEEFTIEH AR - BEEE RS
controlled by Mr. Wu, joint ventures and associates of REEZEENNESELERE SRR
CCRE Group and CCMGT Group: RENEm IR

Year ended 31 December
BE12H31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 & 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT ARETFIT

Commission income HEBA 217,738 394,635
Installation and decoration services *’“‘*&**T%Ei‘% 207,727 343,522
Consulting services A RIS 125,420 147,735
Property management and related Y5518 N AR R AR 7S
services 92,898 146,317
Commercial property management and 3 & EE 1B LA AR
consultation services income WA 79,920 137,813
Sales of goods Emife 73,853 123,086
Membership management income ZEEEWA 165,121 68,581
Travel service income IR AR S UL A 1,022 31,002
963,699 1,392,691
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 30 EHEAE 3RS (&)

(b) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (b) EBEREEES MRS (&)
Receipt of goods and services from companies ESHEEIREN AT BEEER
controlled by Mr. Wu, joint ventures and associates of RREEZEEENESELENBE AT
CCRE Group and CCMGT Group: RHENEm &R :

Year ended 31 December
HBZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 £
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR®ETT

Tourism service costs IR 97 AR 7% K 25 1,794 28,298

Cost of goods sold SHER A 800 3,932

Others HAmh 8,129 2,272
10,723 34,502

Additions of right-of-use assets RNEFREEE

— Office rental —WAEHES - 4,259

Interest expenses for lease liabilities HEABMNERAX

— Office rental —WRERE 262 549
The senior notes were issued by CCRE and bear BAEEREEMERT  BREMX
interest at the rate of 7.75% per annum (Note 17(a)): 7.75% 512 (B 17(a)) :

Year ended 31 December
BE12A3MBLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFT ARETT

Interest income on senior notes (Note 7) B Z=EFBIA (KaE7) 6,179 6,215
All of the transactions above were carried out in the LI AERSGHEHRAEENIETER
normal course of the Group’s business and on terms BRERET WKBRXSEH 2 EH
as agreed between the transacting parties. TE AV EFRHEST o
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 30 EAEsHF X5 (&)

(c) Key management compensation (c) FEEBEAEHM
Compensations for key management including HABREEHFENEEEEAEN
directors’ emoluments during the period is set out EHENERTI AT -
below:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEFE

2022 2021
2022 & 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETFIT

Salaries and other short-term employee %<& & EH b 5B HiE B2 7

benefits 18,222 18,789
Share-based payments AR D BETE AR 251 1,577
18,473 20,366
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

270

(d) Balances with related parties

FBERBEAARE T )

30 BEARSE @)
(d) EEBEmSFSMAEeR

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2022 2021
2022 & 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARMTF T
Trade receivables B 5 IR
— CCRE Group and its joint ventures ~ — EZEEENELSEPE
and associates PN /NE] 1,689,379 1,128,778
— CCMGT Group and its joint ventures — REEXEENHEAE
% 2,621 8,276
— Drawin Group —HEZREHE 151 169
1,692,151 1,137,223
Other receivables (Note () E At R IR (YL ()
— CCRE Group and its joint ventures ~ — B@ZEEBELRHEAEDE
and associates PN RN 83,763 286,101
— CCMGT Group —HREEEH 19,980 20,522
— Drawin Group —HER&EE 17 -
103,760 306,623
Prepayments ERERE
— CCRE Group and its joint ventures ~ — ZEEENMELSEGE
and associates PN/ 1,262 620
— Drawin Group —HER&HE - 18
1,262 638
Contract assets BHEE
— CCRE Group and its joint ventures ~ — EZEEENELSE P
and associates PN /NE] 21,573 21,310
— CCMGT Group —HREEEE 3 2
21,576 21,312
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 30 EANSEA R 5 ()
Balances with related parties (Continued) (d) ERRAEES WALER (4E)

(d)

As at 31 December

®12A31H
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARSFT
Trade payables 5N FIR
— CCRE Group and its joint ventures ~ — EREEENEAE
P 31,278 14,132
— Drawin Group —H£REHE 10 56
31,288 14,188
Other payables (Note (i) FL At S FRIE (B 2% (1))
— CCRE Group and its joint ventures ~ — B@EEELHEAEDE
and associates P& /NG 14,245 19,063
— CCMGT Group — HREEEE 41 23
14,286 19,086
Lease liabilities HEaE
— CCRE Group —REXKHE 1,496 12,884
Contract liabilities aHaE
— CCRE Group and its joint ventures ~ —EZEEERESE M
and associates &A= NG] 5,573 4,940
— CCMGT Group —HREEEE 64 66
5,637 5,006

(i) Trade receivables, other receivables, note receivables, 0]
trade payables, other payables, lease liabilities and
contract liabilities due from/to related parties are

unsecured and interest free.

(if) Other payables due to related parties are interest-free (i)

and repayable on demand.

BEMEERRLT /

e T RARE 5 B B S R IRIE - B
W IE - BRREE  EHEMARK

8 - HAEARIEA -

HERERENER

EREERRRS

H Ao e BB T IR R % B R E K

it o
B °

———

—_—
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31

272

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 31 ARTOBEAEXRRGEETE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December

MW12H318
2022 2021
2022 & 20214

Note  RMB’000 RMB’000
Mz AREFR ARETT

Assets BE

Non-current assets ERBEE

Investment in subsidiaries RSB RARIMIEE 118,878 118,049

Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB REE 3,793 9,461
122,671 127,510

Current assets REBEE

Other receivables H A e U GROR 808,026 1,181,584

Financial assets at fair value through profit AR (EBEFTEX 5t ABz

or loss MNEmMmEE 27,165 50,413

Cash and cash equivalents ReERKFLEEY 81,010 200,987
916,201 1,432,984

Total assets EEHE 1,038,872 1,560,494

Equity B

Equity attributable to shareholders &2 FRREEER
of the Company

Share capital f& s 20 11,337 11,247

Other reserves (Note (a)) HAbfEE (A5 @) 1,087,593 1,581,757

Accumulated losses 25TEE (67,921) (41,467)

Total equity R 1,031,009 1,551,537
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31 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 31 ARBEEAERNEEESH @)
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

As at 31 December

®12H31H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
iz AREFR ARETT

Liabilities =V
Non-current liabilities FERBAE
Lease liabilities HEAE - 1,302
current liabilities REEE
Other payables E MR FUR 6,367 2,281
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,496 5,374
7,863 7,655
Total liabilities 8BRS 7,863 8,957
Total equity and liabilities EEREEEE 1,038,872 1,560,494
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the AATIEEABRBRN2023E3AUARE
board of directors of the Company on 24 March 2023 and et THARESFERAEE -
was signed on its behalf.
Wang Jun Shi Shushan
& BEWL
Director Director
EE EFE
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31 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 31 ARTEEAEXRREESETH @)
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
(@) Reserve movement of the Company (a) ZTATEEES
Employee
share-hased  Foreign Total
Capital ~ Treasury Share compensation  currency other
reserves shares  premium reserves translation  reserves
EEN
R RER Hif

BX@fFE  ERRG  ROEE  NMERR  HRER  RBEEE
RMB000  RMBOOO  RMB000 RVMBO00  RMBUO0  RMB00D
ARBTL ARMTT ARRTT — ARMTT ARETT ARMTI

Balance at 1 January 2021 B2021E1R1RM&R 100,000 - 2014792 15,288 (174477) 1,955,603
Share option scheme-value of ~ BRk#E=HEl — (REMRE

employee services EE - - - 2,220 - 2220
Share option scheme-issued ERETE — BBk

shares fn - - 22,781 (10,710) - 12,071
Repurchase of shares of the BEANARG

Company - (8,143) - - - (8.143)
Cancellation of shares Rz - 4,260 (4.252) - - 8
Currency translation differences ~ EBME =% - = = - (969 (39,169
Dividend distribution to AR

shareholders - - (340833 - - (340833

Balance at 31 December 2021 R2021%128318#

53 100,000 (3883 1,692,488 6798 (213646) 1581757
Balance at 1 January 2022 M2022F 1R 1A% 100,000 (3,883) 1,692,488 6798  (213,646) 1,581,757
Share option scheme-value of  BRk#E=HEl — REMRE
employee services EE - - - 829 - 829
Share option scheme-issued ERETE — BBk
shares f - - 15,978 (7,368) - 8,610
Repurchase of shares of the BEANARG
Company - (14,054) - - - (14,054)
Cancellation of shares Rz - 17937 (17,889) - - 48
Currency translation differences  E#AEZH - - - - 114620 114,620
Dividend distribution to ARE D ERE
shareholders - - (604,217) - - (604,217)

Balance at 31 December 2022 74202212 A 31 8#
o3 100,000 - 1,086,360 259 (99,026) 1,087,593
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32 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT 32 AEERIAREE
LIABILITIES
(@) Capital commitments (@) BEAXREE
For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the H 220225 M2021F12 A31H Ik F
Group's capital commitments mainly related to the B AERNERNEREFEEHEZ L
development of the intelligent platform and financial AR BAZESRNGFEAER - F15
sharing system. The details are set as below: T

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2022 2021
2022 £ 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARETFIT

Intangible assets mpEE 3,829 5,260
Property, plant and equipment W - BB R&E = 441
3,829 5,701
(b) cContingencies (b) ZHAREE
The Group did not have any material contingent R2022F 12 318 + AEEBEEM
liabilities as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: BAKABE0214E12 8318 : 4
same). &) °
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33 DIRECTORS' BENEFITS AND INTERESTS 33 ZEERFIMNMES

(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERESTHAEMS
The remuneration of every director and the chief BEEERESTTHRAB 2B H 5 WA
executive is set out below: N
For the year ended 31 December 2022: BEZ2022F12A31HILFE :
Housing
allowances,
other

allowances  Contribution
and benefits to pension

Fees Bonus in kind scheme Total
R
Rtk Bffe
Name #e e e NEWERN SRR air
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB’000

ARETR  ARMFR ARET T ARBTR  AREFR

Executive directors BiTES
Mr. Wang Jun () TEEE() 2,497 - 15 - 2,512
Mr. Wang Qian (ii) TE ) 2,406 - 15 - 2,421
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ms. Wu Lam Li et 89 - - - 89
Ms. Min Huidong (1) RERLLW) 89 - - - 89
Independent non-executive BYXHTEES

directors
Mr. Leong Chong PAEE 199 - - - 199
Ms. Luo Laura Ying VL Lan 199 - - - 199
Ms. Xin Zhu FRRL 199 - - - 199
Chief executive officer BRYTE
Mr. Shi Shushan (iv) LEILFEM) 1,114 500 48 32 1,694

6,792 500 78 32 7,402
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33 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS 33 EEEMRFIZE @)
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@) EERESTHRAEMS (&)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021: BEZ2021F12A31HILFE :
Housing
allowances,
other
allowances  Contribution
Share-based  and benefits ~ to pension
Fees Bonus payment inkind scheme Total
(i1
IkidE  EfREN Bie
#4 e ®e  ERNAR EWET HEGS oy
RMB000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT AREFT AREFTT ARETT ARETT
Executive directors HiTES
Mr. Wang Jun () THREE) 3,452 - - 15 - 3467
Mr. Cai Bin (i) EREEN) 251 - 385 4 2 642
Mr. Wang Qian (ii) TEEE) 3,887 451 - 15 - 4353
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ms. Wu Lam Li Rt 90 - - - - 90
Ms. Min Huidong (1) RERLLW) 0 - 479 - - 569
Independent non-executive BY¥HTEES
directors
Mr. Leong Chong PAEE 200 - - - - 200
Ms. Luo Laura Ying BeuT 200 - - - - 200
Ms. Xin Zhu FHat 200 - - - - 200
8,370 451 864 34 2 9.721

(i)

(iii)

Mr. Wang Jun was the chairman of the board of directors
of the Company and the chief executive officer of the
Company, and resigned the position of chief executive
officer on 14 February 2022.

Mr. Cai Bin was appointed as director in October 2019
and resigned on 26 March 2021.

Mr. Wang Qian was appointed as director on 26 March
2021, and resigned the position of director on 3 February
2023.

Mr. Shi Shushan was appointed as the chief executive
officer on 14 February 2022, and was appointed as the
position of director on 3 February 2023.

Ms. Min Huidong resigned the position of non-executive
director on 24 March 2023.

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

BEFETARAT/ B —EER

FTERAEERARANERTELIRELARNT
BEHNTE  BER202242/148
BHEEENITE AL ©

B ER2019F 10 KRTAES
AR 20214 3 A 26 BEHT -

TEHARENR2021E3 268 EZT A
EEIWMN202342 A3ABHTE =R -

S EINEER202F2 148 EE T
BEERITE - WHR2023F2A3RE
ZEARES -

MRERAZTN2023F3 24 EHEF
HITES -
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33 DIRECTORS' BENEFITS AND INTERESTS
(Continued)

278

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no director
or the chief executive officer has waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments. The emoluments of directors
and the chief executive officer of the Company were
not distributed as the management of the Company
considers there is no reasonable basis of allocation.

Directors’ retirement benefits and
termination benefits

There were no retirement benefits paid to or
receivable by directors during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021 by defined benefit pension
plans operated by the Group and there were no
director’s termination benefits subsisted during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
the Group did not pay consideration to any third
parties for making available directors’ services.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favor of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
there were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
entered into by the Company or subsidiaries,
undertaking of the Company, where applicable, in
favor of directors.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

There were no significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.
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33 EEEMRER @)

(@

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

ESRESTRAEME (&)

HE2022F 12 AN BILEE - #ESE
EXEENTERESREREEM
M- BERARREEERBLES
BHOREE MARRESZREEH
TERFHILEDIR o

ESRAENRERER

R E = 20229F K% 2021612 A31H 1
FE EFUERBAANEEEED
BREXBBEESFEEI NI ERE
AR ORAEF) - B pAEL & 2022 F ) 2021
FVRANBUEFENNFEEAES
BEEAE A o

BRRUMESREREMOE=FRMHED
RE

R & = 2022F K% 2021612 A31H 1E
FE AEEARRERHESRE MM
ERE=FZARE -

MES ZFESEFHNEAER
RZEESNHEERRHUNERN
HEERREMRZNER

R & = 2022F K% 2021612 A31H 1E
FE - ARARAARMBAR - &
X(MER)BENESAZRARINL
FRER EERRHEMZ S -

BEERRS  THIEHNPIHMEK
&

M2022F K2021F12A318 + # &
RIVEASEEEXBER  BARER
2EFRANREETREFEE XM
BERAEABEaNENEARS &
REHL -
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34 SUBSIDIARIES

34 BT

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Group as at

A BEAARE T T

REFN2022FER2021E12 A3MEHNEE

31 December 2022 and 2021 are set out as below. MEBARFENT
Place of incorporation Registered/issued Principal activities/ Attributable equity
Company name and kind of legal entity ~ and paid-up capital place of operation interest of the Group
Eiat AR L B/ 8
AEER REREREY REHRER TEER/SERY rREEGER
31 December
12A318
2022 2021
2022 115
Directly owned:
EEER:
Sky Joy Limited BVI, Limited liahility company ~ US§1/US$1 Investment holding in BI 100% 100%
ABRBRAA ZBGBRNS ARAA 1EXT/1ER REBABRMENERE
1R
Indirectly owned:
BERER
Central China New Life (Hong Hong Kong, Limited liability ~ HK$10,000/Nil Investment holding in Hong 100% 100%
Kong) Limited company Kong
BEMEE(BB)ARAR &4 ARAH 10000%7,/% REBRERERR
Henan Central China New Life The PRC, Limited liability RMB700,000,000/ Consultancy Services in 100% 100%
Service Co., Ltd. company RMB700,000,000 Henan Province
MEREAEERBERAR  RE BRAA ARBT000000007/  WIEEREHARS
ARE700,000,0007
Henan Central China Property The PRC, Limited liability RMB300,000,000/ Property management 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd.* company RMB300,000,000 services in Henan
Province
MERRNEERERAT mE - BRAA ARE3000000007/  RABERENFERRS
AR 300,000,007
Henan Zhizun Housing Agency The PRC, Limited liability RMB100,000,000/ Real estate marketing 100% 100%
Co., Ltd.* company RMB100,000,000 Services in Henan
Province
MHEERERNERAT el ERAR ARE1000000007/  WIBEERHEEHEZHR
AR 100,000,000 %
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34 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

FBERBEAARE T )

34 BT &)

Place of incorporation Registered/issued Principal activities/ Attributable equity
Company name and kind of legal entity ~ and paid-up capital place of operation interest of the Group
AL B /BT
NRER RERERER REHRER TEEE/KEnY rREEGER
31 December
12R314
2022 2021
2022F 20214
Indirectly owned: (Continued)
HEEs: (2
Henan Central China New Life The PRC, Limited liability RMB100,000,000/ Tourism services in Henan 100% 100%
Travel Service Co., Ltd.* company RMB38,050,000 Province
MERENEEREREER HE - BRAF ARE1000000007/  WuEBHERERSE
A AR 38,050,000 T
Henan Central China New Life The PRC, Limited liability RMB100,000,000/ Hotel management services 100% 100%
Hotel Management Co., Ltd.* company RMB16,000,000 in'Henan Province
TERENEEEEERER B ABATF ARE1000000007/  WIEERHZBEEERS
A AR 16,000,000 7
Henan Central China New Life The PRC, Limited liability RMB50,000,000/ Management Consulting 94% 94%
Agricultural Development Co,, company RMB22,000,000 services in Henan
Ltd.*(formerly known as Henan Province
Songyan Agricultural
Development Co., Ltd.)
TEREMEEREERARY  HE ERAA ARES0000000/  WIEEHEEERFARE
7 (AT : THEARERR AR¥22,000,0007C
ARAR)
Henan Aiou Electronic Technology — The PRC, Limited liability RMBS,000,000/ Technology services in 93.33% 93.33%
Co., Ltd.* company RMB3,000,000 Henan Province
MELEEFREERAA mE - BRAA AR8,0000007T,/ R B A S R iTRS
AR 3,000,007
Henan One Family Network The PRC, Limited liability RMB100,000,000/ Technology servicesin 100% 100%
Technology Co., Ltd.* company RMB100,000,000 Henan Province
- ZEEREERAT mE - BRARA ARE1000000007/  WIEERERIRS
AR 100,000,007
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34 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34 WEBRAT @)
Place of incorporation Registered/issued Principal activities/ Attributable equity
Company name and kind of legal entity ~ and paid-up capital place of operation interest of the Group
AL L s B /BT
IEES REZEREY REHRER TBER/BEHY TEEELER
31 December
12A31H8
2022 2021
2022F 20214
Indirectly owned: (Continued)
BEEs: (8)
Song Yun (Beijing) Information The PRC, Limited liability RMB10,000,000/ Technology services in 80% 80%
Service Co., Ltd.* company RMB10,000,000/ Beijing
SE(IR)EARBARAR B BRAR ARE100000007/  RICRUEFHAMRS
AR 10,000,007,/
Xinyang Nanhong Property The PRC, Limited liability RMB3,000,000/Nil Property management 100% 100%
Service Co., Ltd.* company Services in Henan
Province
EETELINERBERAR e ERAF ARE3000007T,/F  RABEHSNEERRE
Henan Central China New Life The PRC, Limited liability RMB10,000,000/ Management Consulting 100% 100%
Business Management Co., company RMB10,000,000 Services in Henan
Ltd.* (formerly known as Henan Province
Central China Jing Yuecheng
Commercial Management Co.,
Ltd)
WEREREEREERERY B ARAA AR¥10,000,00075,/ NlmatEEEEARE
A (RI7E - MR ESNE AK#10,000,000 7
FERERAA)
Linzhou Liuhe Property The PRC, Limited liability RMB3,000,000/ Property management 51% 51%
Management Co.,Ltd.* company RMB3,000,000 services in Henan
Province
HWMTAEERB AR AR HE - ERAT AR#3,000,0007T,/ RUBE N ENEERRE
AR 3,000,007
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34 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34 MEBAE &)
Place of incorporation Registered/issued Principal activities/ Attributable equity
Company name and kind of legal entity ~ and paid-up capital place of operation interest of the Group
AL L s B /BT
INCER REZEREY REHRER TBEK/REHY KEEELER
31 December
12R314
2022 2021
2022F 0216
Indirectly owned: (Continued)
53 L )
Zhengzhou Jiaxiang Property The PRC, Limited liability RMB3,000,000/ Property management 51% 51%
Management Co., Ltd.* company RMB3,000,000 services in Henan
Province
DM ERNERBERAF mE - FRAT AR#3,0000007,/ RIBEENZERRE
AR 3,000,0007C
Jiyuan City Zhongbang The PRC, Limited liability RMB10,000,000/ Property management 51% 51%
Environmental Sanitation Co., company RMB3,100,000 Services in Henan
ltd. * Province
ERMREREREAERAT e - BRAF AR#10,000,0007T,/ RAIBERENEERRE
AR 3,100,007
Taihua Jinye Life Service Co., Ltd.*  The PRC, Limited liability RMB50,000,000/ Property management 51% 51%
company RMBS5,000,000 services in Hebei Province
REREEERBERAA - BRAR AR 50,000,00078,/ R AR ENZERRE
AR5,000,00070
Luoyang Zhonghong Zhuoyue The PRC, Limited liability RMB3,000,000/ Property management 51% 51%
Property Management Co., company RMB3,000,000 services in Henan
Ltd.* Province
RERLEHNEERERAR  HE ERAA AR#3,0000007T,/ RABERENEERRE
AR#30000007
Henan Jin Guanjia Property The PRC, Limited liability RMB10,000,000/ Property management 65% 65%
Management Co., Ltd.* company RMB1,000,000 services in Henan Province
WESERNEERERAR B ARAA ARE100000007/  RABERENEERRE
AR 1,000,0007



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i O B FE ¥R =AU 5L

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B S EHBIN - FTESBUARE FIT)
34 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34 WEBRAT @)
Place of incorporation Registered/issued Principal activities/ Attributable equity
Company name and kind of legal entity ~ and paid-up capital place of operation interest of the Group
TR L s B /BT
NRER REZEREY REHRER TEEY/BEnY rREEGER
31 December
12R318
2022 2021
2022 20216
Indirectly owned: (Continued)
HEEs: (2
Henan Jianye Vehicle Life The PRC, Limited liability RMB1,000,000/Nil Technology services in 93.33% 70%
Technology Co., Ltd.* company Henan Province
WEREELERBERAT B ARAA ARBI0000007/F  WIEERERIIRS
Henan Central China New Life The PRC, Limited liability RMB20,000,000/ Tourism services in Henan 100% 100%
Culture Tourism Operation company RMB2,000,000 Province
Management Co., Ltd.*
WERENEECREEEE B ARAT ARE200000007/  RABERERERS
BERAR AR 2,000,0007
Henan Central China Shared The PRC, Limited liability RMB10,000,000/ Technology services in 100% 100%
Home Network Technology Co.,  company RMBS5,350,000 Henan Province
Ltd.*
TERELZFEREREER BB ARAA AR¥100000007t/  RABERERMRE
A7) AR 5,350,000
Henan Jianye Tianming City The PRC, Limited liability RMB30,000,000/ Property management 51% Not applicable
Service Co., Ltd. company RMB30,000,000 services in Henan Province TER
WERERAATREERAR B ARAR AREI00000007/  RABERENEERRE
AR 30,000,000

d The English name of the subsidiaries represents the best effort
by the management of the Group in translating their Chinese
names as they do not have an official English name.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Bl FFE NI

A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated 7N E 3% T~ X Bt B 45 2148 2= 0@ B B EE 2
assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for MG A EBEREAEE  BENRIFHEIREZS B
the last four financial years prepared on the basis as hereunder — Z#F -

stated is as set out below:

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS FEES

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A310LLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
2022 % 20214 20204 20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Revenue WA 3,148,141 3,598,918 2,654,499 1,754,402 693,988
Profit before taxation BRER A 759,180 826,054 556,909 307,541 71,867
Income tax HiESe i 188,016 (172,666) (116,165) (74,702) (19,897)
Profit from continuing operations REFELE EBOME 571,164 653,388 440,744 232,839 51,970
Loss from discontinued operation REBRIEREEBNER - = = (5,054) (69,737)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERFE/(F1B) 571,164 653,388 440,744 227,785 (17,767)
Attributable to: AT RS -
Equity shareholders of the Company AR RIERKE 562,260 619,559 426,587 233,954 19,471
Non-controlling interests IR 8,904 33,829 14,157 (6,169) (37,238)
Eamings per share (RMB cents) SREAMN(ARES)
— Basic —EX 0.44 0.49 0.38 0.26 1.35
— Diluted — s 0.44 0.48 037 0.26 051

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 4aEE - AERERS

As at 31 December
R12A318
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
2022 20015 20205 201946 201845
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE 506,206 451,809 222,865 101,257 283,294
Current assets MEEE 4,828,602 4585171 4027114 1,362,187 1,040,548
Total assets EEHAE 5,334,808 5,036,980 4,249,979 1,463 444 1,323,842
Liabilities =1
Current liabilities MEAR 2,123,417 1,824,943 1467882 1,017,667 625,941
Non-current liabilities EE =l 152,272 155,509 64,747 64,128 600,586
Total liabilities EEAE 2,275,689 1,980,452 1,532,629 1,081,795 1,226,527
Net assets EEFE 3,059,119 3056528 2717350 381,649 97,315
Equity B
Total equity attributable to equity AREEERR AR

shareholders of the Company ek 2,942,564 2,954,233 2,691,344 369,442 116,671
Non-controlling interests JEER R 116,555 102,295 26,006 12,207 (19,356)
Total equity =Rk 3,059,119 3,056,528 2,717,350 381,649 97,315

284 Central China New Life Limited / 2022 Annual Report



/N 2SS

CENTRAL CHINA NEW LIFE




	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	公司簡介
	大事記
	獎項及榮譽
	主席報告
	財務摘要
	管理層討論及分析
	企業管治報告
	董事及高級管理層履歷
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合資產負債表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務資料概要
	封底



